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(
(RoAR) P
(ROAE)
O]
Tierl
Tierl

OooooOodd
12 31 12 31
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
154,159 145,545 124,839 104,813 89,711
(2,520,500) (2,379,661) (2,041,118) (1,713,693) (1,466,775)
41,786 41,740 41,454 39,717 31,385

(683,201)  (682,449) (677,773) (649,373)  (513,145)

41,629 41,158 40,692 39,175 31,032
(680,634)  (672,933)  (665,314) (640,511)  (507,373)
157 582 762 542 353

(2,567) 9,516)  (12,459) (8,862) (5,772)
379,224 317,740 259,677 225,601 198,356
(6,200,312) (5,195,049) (4,245,719) (3,688,576) (3,243,121)
48,935 48,935 46,787 46,787 46,787
(800,087)  (800,087)  (764,967) (764,967)  (764,967)
5,931,050 5,122,292 4,138,815 3,641,193 2,959,939
(96,972,668)(83,749,474) (67,669, 625) (59,533, 506) (48,395, 003)

7.04 6.49 5.55 4.82 4.24
(115) (106) (91) (79) (69)
0.85 0.88 0.87 0.84 0.66
(14) (14) (14) (14) (11)
218,811  (20,835) 34,150  (136,228)  (55,426)

(3,577,560) (-340,652)  (558,353)(-2,227,328) (-906,215)
(176,451)  (142,554)  (48,285)  (10,324)  (101,352)
(-2,884,974)(-2,330,758) (-789,460) (-168,797)(-1,657,105)
110,123 154,229 44,394 11,722 14,598
(1,800,511) (2,521,644) (725,842) (191,655)  (238,677)
385,356 226,364 228,375 199,643 336,828
(6,300,571) (3,701,051) (3,733,931) (3,264,163) (5,507,138)

58,023 56,489 50,735 46,822 41,365
0.76% 0.90% 1.07% 1.200% 1.10%
® 11.95% 14.26% 16.77% 18.48% 16.65%
8.64% 9.12% 8.93% 8.78% 9.29%
9.65% 9.17% 8.99% 8.78% 9.29%

11.98% 11.87% 12.33% 11.24% 12.42%
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cITIC 1987 cITIC
cITIC cITIC
1985 1987

cITIC 800
(1)2005 CITIC cITIC
(22006 11 16  CIFH cITIC

2006 11 22 cITIC BBVA BBVA
®) 2006 12 31
(4)2007 27
(5)2009 10 23 CIFH 70.32%
(6)2011
25.786
5,273,622,484 2,480,360,496 46,787,327,034
31,905,164,057 14,882,162,977
)
1.00 2,462,490,897
4.84
2014 12 16 2014 2014
2014 2015 30
4.84 5.55 2,462,490, 897 2,147,469,539
1501428 2015 12 31 11,918,455,941.45
11,888,695,194.53
2016 20 2,147,469,539
48,934,796,573
34,052,633,596 14,882,162,977 cITIC
cITIC
(8)2016 350,000,000
48,934,796,573 350,000,000 34,052,633,596

14,882,162,977 350,000,000

35/382



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)

oOoOooodn
2015 2017
CITIC
81.076 55.14%
31.34% 14.224
500
CITIC
589,900 6.50%
20.15% 38.083
25.90% 34.96%
23.211 51.15% 6.72
16.886 3.95
72.75% 17.0%
67.47
16.37% 500,000
504,700 20.51%
21,600 31.35% 3,400
20 28.83%
13.9045
29.91% 72
72 2.8076 71.09%

41.257
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ciTic 139 (6) 65.37%
2016 12 31
CIFH 7,503 100%
cITIC 27
2701-9
89
CNCB 1,889 99.05%
21 2106
200 51%
777
cimic CBD 4,000 100%
2-310

27 28
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52,834 5,189
10,420 43,566 4,037 10,132
17.46% 40,432 69.68% 7,459
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2016
PPI 1.4%
14.34% 3,639.290
34.76% 48.580
1.69%

PBOC

16.81%

0.23

EU
GDP 6.7%
2016
MPA
CBRC
106.896
48.021
13.81%
2016
12.31
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CBRC
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15.79% 5,931.050
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OooooOodd
2016 2015 %
106,138 104,433 1,705 1.63
48,021 41,112 6,909 16.81
154,159 145,545 8,614 5.92
(47,272) (50,602) (3.330) 6.58
(52,288) (40,037) 12,251 30.60
54,608 54,986 (378) (0.69)
(12,822) (13,246) (424) (3.20)
41,786 41,740 46 0.11
41,629 41,158 471 1.14
2016 5.92% 154.159
3.0 68.8% 3.0
31.2%
%
2016 2015 2014
68.8 71.8 75.9
31.2 28.2 24.1
100.0 100.0 100.0
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2016 1.705 1.63% 106.138
2016 2015
(0 (%)
2,741,863 132,218 4.82 2,327,333 136,077 5.85
1,142,552 45,820 4.01 878,034 45,638 5.20
@ 631,763 21,567 3.41 479,516 18,196 3.79
496,305 7,566 1.52 510,289 7,502 1.47
268,567 5,446 2.03 221,356 4,250 1.92
37,212 857 2.30 102,603 3,998 3.90
5,318,262 213,474 4.01 4,519,131 215,661 4.77
3,303,483 55,630 1.68 3,003,860 64,749 2.16
1,233,287 34,099 2.76 981,227 36,534 3.72
276,925 8,313 3.00 71,480 2,957 4.14
108,242 5,586 5.16 101,304 5,304 5.24
89,099 2,686 3.01 28,375 994 3.50
35,619 861 2.42 23,057 561 2.43
10,319 153 1.48 7,365 121 1.64
299 8 2.68 174 8 4.60
5,057,273 107,336 2.12 4,216,842 111,228 2.64
106,138 104,433
(@) 1.89 2.13
® 2.00 2.31
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2016 2015
24,250 (28,109) (3,859)
13,755 (13,573) 182
5,770 (2,399) 3,371
(206) 270 64
906 290 1,196
(2,550) (591) (3,141)
41,925 (44,112) (2,187)
6,472 (15,591) (9,119)
9,377 (11,812) (2,435)
8,505 (3,149) 5,356
364 (82) 282
2,125 (433) 1,692
305 (5) 300
48 (16) 32
6 (6) -
27,202 (31,094) (3,892)
14,723 (13,018) 1,705

2016 0.31 2.00%

0.24 1.89%
VAT
0.76 4.01% 0.52
2.12%
2016 213.474 2.187 1.01%

0.76
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2016 3.859 2.84% 132.218
2016
1.03
2016 2015
(0 (%)
1,245,091 55,807 4.48 1,178,627 65,540 5.56
1,496,772 76,411 5.11 1,148,706 70,537 6.14
2,741,863 132,218 4.82 2,327,333 136,077 5.85
2016 2015
0 (%)
1,860,308 92,655 4.98 1,630,940 97,956 6.01
87,753 2,705 3.08 89,753 3,214 3.58
793,802 36,858 4.64 606,640 34,907 5.75
2,741,863 132,218 4.82 2,327,333 136,077 5.85
2016 182 0.40%
45.820
1.19 264.518
2016 3.371 18.53%
2015 479.516 2016 31.75%
2016 64 0.85%
7.566
2016 1.196
28.14% 5.446 47.211
2016 3.141
78.56% 857 65.391
1.6
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2016 3.892 3.50% 107.336
0.52
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2016 9.119 14..08% 55.630
0.48
2016 2015
(%) (%)
1,483,786 38,033 2.56 1,499,194 46,324 3.09
1,281,695 9,029 0.70 999,091 7,454 0.75
2,765,481 47,062 1.70 2,498,285 53,778 2.15
343,475 8,028 2.34 352,878 10,453 2.96
194,527 540 0.28 152,697 518 0.34
538,002 8,568 1.59 505,575 10,971 2.17
3,303,483 55,630 1.68 3,003,860 64,749 2.16
2016
2.435 6.67% 34.099
0.96
2016 5.356 181.13%
8.313 205.445
2016 282 5.32% 5.586
6.938
2016 1.692 170.22%
2.686 60.724
2016 300
53.48% 861
12.562
2016 32 26.44% 153
2.954
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OooooOodd
2016 6.909 16.81% 48.021
2016 2015 %
42,280 35,674 6,606 18.52
3,547 3,635 (88) (2.42)
1,682 1,192 490 41.11
- 1 @ (100.00)
512 610 (98) (16.07)
48,021 41,112 6,909 16.81
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2016 6.606 18.52% 42.280
20.51% 45.360

2016 2015 %
19,324 13,419 5,905 44..00
7,114 5,808 1,306 22.49
6,128 3,711 2,417 65.13
5,777 6,972 (1,195) (17.14)
2,566 2,228 338 15.17
2,384 3,131 747) (23.86)
1,396 1,747 (351) (20.09)
671 623 48 7.70
45,360 37,639 7,721 20.51
(3,080) (1,965) (1,115) 56.74
42,280 35,674 6,606 18.52
5.905 44.0%
1.306 22.49%
2.417 65.13%
2016 88 3.547
2016 2015 %

2,311 2,300 11 0.48

894 1,531 (637) (41.61)

265 240 25 10.42

77 (436) 513 117.66

3,547 3,635 (88) (2.42)
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2016 3.33 6.58% 47.272
2.94%
2016 4.11
30.66%
2016 2015 "
24,418 22,387 2,031 9.07
9,225 8,763 462 5.27
9,142 9,419 @77 (2.94)
42,785 40,569 2,216 5.46
4,487 10,033 (5,546) (55.28)
47,272 50,602 (3,330) (6.58)
) 30.66% 34.77% 4.11
) 27.75% 27.87% 0.12
2016 12.251 30.60% 50.288
10.595 30.17% 45.715
2016 2015 "
45,715 35,120 10,595 30.17
5,033 2,941 2,002 71.13
871 729 142 19.48
) 669 1,247 (578) (46.35)
52,288 40,037 12,251 30.60
2016 424 3.20% 12.822
0.61 23.48%
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2016 15.79% 5,931.050
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
% "
2,877,927 48.5 2,528,780 49.4
(75,543) (1.3) (60,497) (1.2)
2,802,384 47.2 2,468,283 48.2
1,035,728 17.5 1,112,207 21.7
™ 818,053 13.8 580,896 11.3
553,328 9.3 511,189 10.0
375,849 6.3 199,579 3.9
170,804 2.9 138,561 2.7
@ 174,904 3.0 111,577 2.2
5,931,050 100.0 5,122,292 100.0
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Ogoooood
2016 13.81% 2,877.927
47.2% 1.0
1,846.274 78.852
4.46% 956.606 287.993
43.07% 33.2%
6.8
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
(%) (%)
1,846,274 64.2 1,767,422 69.9
75,047 2.6 92,745 3.7
956,606 33.2 668,613 26.4
2,877,927 100.0 2,528,780 100.0
(75,543) (60,497)
2,802,384 2,468,283
2016 75.608 6.79%
1,037.484 176.974 41.79%
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
() (%)
480,630 46.3 396,247 35.6
310,361 29.9 293,378 26.4
246,493 23.8 423,467 38.0
1,037,484 100.0 1,113,092 100.0
(1,756) (885)
1,035,728 1,112,207
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2016 237.120 40.81%
818.217
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
() (D)
64,911 8.0 26,220 4.5
534,695 65.3 373,930 64.3
217,500 26.6 179,971 31.0
1,111 0.1 976 0.2
818,217 100.0 581,097 100.0
(164) (201)
818,053 580,896
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
() ()
628,389 76.8 488,544 84.1
166,749 20.4 90,540 15.5
20,767 2.5 447 0.1
2,290 0.3 1,556 0.3
22 - 10 -
818,217 100.0 581,097 100.0
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2016 139.845 28.62% 628.389
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
() (D)
132,073 21.0 162,834 33.3
230,511 36.7 165,203 33.8
164,608 26.2 50,994 10.4
3 - 4 _
101,194 16.1 109,509 22.5
628,389 100.0 488,544 100.0
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
(D) (D)
593,257 94.4 460,526 94.3
35,132 5.6 28,018 5.7
628,389 100.0 488,544 100.0
2016 9.059 62.949
18.70% 1.694
19 131
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2016 12 31
/ 7/ (D)
5,064 18/02/2021 2.96% -
4,825 04/03/2019 2.72% -
4,000 28/02/2017 4.20% -
4,000 18/08/2029 5.98% -
3,334 27/02/2023 3.24% -
3,138 24/04/2017 4.11% -
3,000 22/03/2017 3.50% -
2,997 08/03/2021 3.25% -
2,879 27/07/2021 2.96% -
10 2,751 25/08/2026 3.05% -
35,988
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
1,111 976
1,111 976
2016
1 CIFH 100.00 16,569,226 - 16,569,226 -
2 CNCB 100.00 1,578,732 - 1,578,732 -
3 51.00 102,000 10,200 102,000 -
4 CITIC 100.00 4,000,000 - 4,000,000 -
40.00 1,010,424 776 975,633 -
(CIAM)
20.00 100,234 - - -
(BFAE)
- 104 - 104 -
23,360,720 10,976 23,225,695
CNCB
2016
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00762 ( ) 7,020 - 3,237 - 3,167 70
' 7,510 - 110,348 145 103,321 7,027
MA 202 - 5,438 27 4,793 645
03996 ( ) 324,699 0.82% 301,388 - 334,909 (33,522)
339,431 420,411 172 446,190 (25,780)
2016
)
113,750 87,500,000  2.99% 113,750 5,688 -
SWIFT 161 35 - 432 - (16)
4,535 16 - 4,616 - -
( B)
14,264 2 - 14,517 - -
(HK)

S.A. 347,450 50,000.00  1.56% 347,450 - -
239,776 - 10% 225,000 - -
50,000 50,000,000  2.71% 50,000 - -
1,400 1,400,000 14% 1,400 - -
1 774 - - 774 - -
772,110 757,939 5,688 (16)

CNCB

2016 CNCB 777
2016 12 31 2015 12 31

201 138
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45 53

@ (82) 10

164 201

2016 12 31 2015 12 31

856,455 3,365 2,813 604,523 1,291 995
2,612,557 42,232 40,045 1,600,764 11,489 10,119
77,385 1,769 2,201 23,985 1,008 304
3,546,397 47,366 45,059 2,229,272 13,788 11,418

60/382



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 DO0000O00o0o00b0OoO0Odnoo(Es9d)
oOoOooodn

2015 12 31 2016 12 31
10,343 132,218 (128,079) 14,482
7,882 21,567 (19,841) 9,608
12,963 45,820 (47,832) 10,951
1,458 13,869 (13,540) 1,787
32,646 213,474 (209,292) 36,828
(2,134) (5,033) 3,261 (3,906)
30,512 208,441 (206,031) 32,922
2016 12 31 2015 12 31

1,836 1,045

196 85

(145) (137)

(73) (33)

1,814 960
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OOooOoOoOoo
2016 15.49%
5,546.554
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
" "
3,639,290 65.6 3,182,775 66.3
1,065,169 19.2 1,117,792 23.3
120,342 2.2 71,168 1.5
386,946 7.0 289,135 6.0
@ 334,807 6.0 141,736 2.9
5,546,554 100.0 4,802,606 100.0
2016 456.515 14.34% 3,639.290
0.7 65.6%
3,081.277 439.852 16.65%
558.013 16.663 3.08%
52.9% 9.8
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
(%) (%)
1,691,065 46.5 1,194,486 37.5
1,390,212 38.2 1,446,939 45.5
69,012 1.9 101,333 3.2
3,081,277 84.7 2,641,425 83.0
232,960 6.4 178,917 5.6
325,053 8.9 362,433 11.4
558,013 15.3 541,350 17.0
3,639,290 100.0 3,182,775 100.0
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2016 12 31 2015 12 31

(0 (%)

3,304,504 90.8 2,854,718 89.7

334,786 9.2 328,057 10.3

3,639,290 100.0 3,182,775 100.0

2016 12 31 2015 12 31

(0 ()

26,999 0.7 28,201 0.9

889,591 244 781,559 24.6

828,014 22.8 730,304 22.9

653,838 18.0 498,538 15.7

528,599 14.5 472,675 14.9

434,248 11.9 408,822 12.8

68,361 1.9 77,792 2.4

209,640 5.8 184,884 5.8

3,639,290 100.0 3,182,775 100.0

12

() (%) ) Q) Q) (%)
1,878,541 51.6 461,667 12.7 474,021 13.0 265,410 7.3 1,638 0.1 3,081,277 84.7
323,690 8.8 122,909 3.4 65,184 1.8 45,989 1.3 241 - 558,013 15.3

2,202,231 60.4 584,576 16.1 539,205 14.8 311,399 8.6 1,879 0.1 3,639,290 100.0
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2016
2016
/
C )

2016 48,935 - 58,636 3,584 87,917 118,668 1,946 319,686
1 - - - - - 41,629 157 41,786
2 DY

- - - (4,726) - - 1 (4,725)
3
@ - 34,955 - - - - - 34,055
4
@ 3 ) ) _ _ _ 3,324 3,324
5 - - - - 13,257 (23,631) (156)  (10,530)
2016 12 31 48,935 34,955 58,636  (1,142) 101,174 136,666 5,272 384,496
200 100.00
35.0 3.800
34.955 Tierl
Tierl
1.3%
CNCBI 2016 10 11 500 Tierl
2021 10 11 4.25%
3.107%
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2016

2016 12 31 2015 12 31
- 535,313 631,431
- 163,157 133,567
- 86,499 92,164
- 74,936 77,038
- 215,845 149,138
1,075,750 1,083,338
13,348 14,799
10,045 7,232
353,567 143,182
1,452,710 1,248,551
218.811
33.897 176.451
110.123
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2016 )
218,811 -
443,232 37.16

75,619 -

(369,112) 2.83
(79,859) -
()
(176,451) 23.78
545,658 (14.60)
(714,490) (7.82)
110,123 (28.60)
604,406 94.36
38,279 -
(507,840) 231.28

IFRS
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2016 12 31 2015 12 31
64,911 26,220 54

47,366 13,788 (1,130) -

534,122 373,636 - (8,815)

305 325 8 -

646,704 413,959 (1,068) (8,815)

45,059 11,418 - -

45,059 11,418 - -

(

)
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30%

2016 )
208,641 158.21
3,372 183.12
167,208 40.78
64,911 147.56
47,366 243.53
534,533 43.01
58,654 46.12
184,050 390.80
83,723 70.00
45,059 294.63
120,342 69.10
386,946 33.83
(1,142) -
5,272 170.91
1,682 41.11
(52,288) 30.60
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2016
2016 2015
() () (D) ()
85,639 55.6 22,679 41.5 85,314 58.6 30,214 54.9
40,175 26.1 10,848 19.9 33,333 22.9 4,725 8.6
16,109 10.4 13,786 25.2 18,359 12.6 16,218 29.5
12,236 7.9 7,295 13.4 8,539 5.9 3,829 7.0
154,159 100.0 54,608 100.0 145,545 100.0 54,986 100.0
2016 12 31 2016
@ ()
() () ()
1,010,909 17.1 723,128 13.0 19,801 36.3
1,143,563 19.3 1,134,943 20.5 9,710 17.8
887,856 15.0 883,235 15.9 6,698 12.3
1,273,550 21.5 1,258,132 22.7 9,181 16.8
657,675 11.1 656,226 11.8 2,143 3.9
573,399 9.7 568,835 10.3 4,222 7.7
85,967 1.5 85,161 1.5 80 0.1
285,434 4.8 236,883 4.3 2,773 5.1
5,918,353 100.0 5,546,543 100.0 54,608 100.0
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2015 12 31 2015
o @
(D) D) D)
639,057 12.5 396,293 8.3 17,819 32.4
1,099,638 21.5 1,090,233 22.7 9,427 17.2
752,930 14.7 750,275 15.6 157) 0.3)
1,114,437 21.8 1,098,983 22.9 11,354 20.6
617,426 12.1 609,982 12.7 8,280 15.1
557,507 10.9 551,901 11.5 5,855 10.6
93,262 1.8 92,311 1.9 198 0.4
240,054 4.7 212,618 4.4 2,210 4.0
5,114,311 100.0 4,802,596 100.0 54,986 100.0
2012 CBRC
2016 0.11 11.98%
Tierl 0.48 9.65% Tierl
0.48 8.64%
2016
2016 78.33%
49.64% 72._.87% 2016
164.284 47.05%
96.118
24.83% 2016 496.313
(14.31%)
0.99 61.77%
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2016 12 31 2015 12 31 (%) 2014 12 31
Tierl 342,563 316,159 8.35 262,786
Tierl 382,670 317,987 20.34 264,582
475,008 411,740 15.37 362,848
3,964,448 3,468,135 14.31 2,941,627
Tierl 8.64% 9.12% 0.48 8.93%
Tierl 9.65% 9.17% 0.48 8.99%
11.98% 11.87% 0.11 12.33%
2016 12 31 2015 12 31 (%) 2014 12 31
5.47% 5.26% 0.21 5.19%
Tierl 382,670 317,987 20.34 264,582
6,994,025 6,044,069 15.72 5,096,499
) [2015]
http://www.citichank.com/about/investor/financialaffairs/gglzb/ IR
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29
138 1,424 38
1,281 81
CBRC
3,164 9,925
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€Y
2016 12 31
€H) @
49,284,796,573 (2)
€Y)
@ 34,052,633,596 14,882,162,977 350,000,000
2016 12 31
1.00 48,934,796,573
100.00 350,000,000
CBRC CSRC 2016 10 21 100.00
350 3.80%
Tierl
2016 10 26
10 26
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3.80%
ROE )

www.chinabond.com.cn

20
0.01% 2.50%

www.chinabond.com.cn

0.01%

@

@

®

10

)
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2010

2016 10 26

1.30%

10 26

20



o
5.125%

(2) Tier2

20

Tierl

20
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Tierl
Tierl 5.125%
Tier2
(a) CBRC
)
CBRC
CSRC
20
7.07

20
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CBRC

CBRC

CBRC

@

® CBRC

@
(&) 10%
®
*
®
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200

@
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®3)

2011 12 31 31,905,164,057 31,905, 164,057
521,649

2012 12 31 31,905,164,057 31,905,164,057
521,649

2013 12 31 31,905,164,057 31,905,164,057
521,649

2014 12 31 31,905,164,057 31,905,164,057
521,649

2015 12 31 31,905,164,057 31,905,164,057
521,649

2016 20 2,147,469,539 2,147,469,539 (L)

35,111

2016 12 31 34,052,633,596 34,052,633,596

556,761
(1)2016 20 2,147,469,539
48,934,796,573 2,147,469,539

2011 12 31 14,882,162,977 14,882,162,977
243,323

2012 12 31 14,882,162,977 14,882,162,977
243,323

2013 12 31 14,882,162,977 14,882,162,977
243,323

2014 12 31 14,882,162,977 14,882,162,977
243,323

2015 12 31 14,882,162,977 14,882,162,977
243,323

2016 12 31 14,882,162,977 14,882,162,977

243,323
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(€H)
2016 11 350,000,000 0 0
2016 12 31 350,000,000 0
€))
Q@ 2016 10 21 100.00 350
2016 11
@
2016 12 31 195,889 162,661 33,228
®)
%
2016 12 31
) (D)
CITIC 31,988,728,773 (1)(2) 65.37%
HKSCC 12,113,208,222 (2)(3) 24754
199
2,147,469,539 (1) 4.39%
55
892,896,560 (1) 1.82%
28
47,142,303,094 96..34%
€))
@
G)CITIC
(4)CITIC CITIC CITIC CITIC
CITIC 65.97%
32,284,227,773 28,938,928, 294 3,345,299, 479
CITIC 65.37% 31,988,728,773
28,938,928, 294 3,049,800, 479

2016 12 31 %
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2016 12 31 31 10

2016 12 31

) ) )
- 43,860,000  12.53 - - -

- 38,430,000 10.98 - - -

005L  FHO002
- 38,400,000 10.97 - - -
005L CT001
- 30,700,000 8.77 - - -
- 30,700,000 8.77 - - -
- 30,700,000 8.77 - - -
- 21,930,000 6.27 - - -
- 15,350,000 4.39 - - -
- 10,960,000 3.13 - - -
-15,350,000 8,770,000 2.51 - - -
- 8,770,000 2.51 - - -
€Y)
@
005L  FHO02 005L CT001
10
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10

50
MOF

Tierl
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2012
1.5% 2016 12 31

GAAP IFRS

Tierl

51
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Ogoooood
2007 27 2007 27
@
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
5.10 5.45 6.22 7.35 5.36
74 ) @9 ) (9 ) (106 ) (78 )
3.51 3.39 3.62 4.41 4.03
61 ) 49 ) (52 ) 64 ) (58 )
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
4.73 5.48 8.19 10.50 7.52
a7 ) (90 ) (134 ) a2 ) (123 )
3.49 3.39 3.57 5.41 5.15
57 ) (55 ) (58 ) 88 ) 84 )
@
2016 2016 2016 2016 10 2016 11 2016 12
4.97 5.20 5.36 5.21 5.12 5.16
72 ) @5 ) 78 ) @5 ) 74 ) @5 )
4.62 4.91 5.09 5.01 4.80 4.81
67 ) @1 ) 74 ) 73 ) (70 ) (70 )
2016 2016 2016 2016 10 2016 11 2016 12
6.35 6.75 6.41 6.27 7.22 7.52
(104 ) (110 ) (105 ) (103 ) (118 ) (123 )
5.65 5.82 5.80 5.92 5.95 6.29
(92 ) 95 ) 95 ) o7 ) ©7 ) (103 )
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19 24%

2017 31
2016
12 31
2016 20
LI Qingping CITIC
1962 10 CITIC
CITIC
CIFH CITIC
2014 2016
2014
2014
2013 CITIC
CITIC
2009 2013
2009
2009
2007
2008 12
1984 2007
30
2011 12 CITIC CITIC
CHANG Zhenming 2009 CITIC
1956 10 2011
2006 10 CIFH
2008
2013 2016
2010 12 2011 12
CITIC 2006
2010 12 2006
12 2011
2006 11 2013 CNCBI
2004 2006
1995
2004 CITIC
1994 1995
1993 1994
1992 10 1993
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2016 20
(SUN Deshun) CNCBI 2014
(1958 11 ) 2016 2014
2011 12 2014
2011 10
2010 2011 10
2005 12 2009 12
1984 2005
11
1995 12 2005 11
1999 2004
1981
1984 PBOC
30
2016 11
HUANG Fang 2015 11 2013
1973 2011
2010 10
2011
1992 2010
2016 2011
WAN Liming 11
1966 2009 12 2011 11
2007 2009 12
1996 2007
1996
1996 1988
1996
28
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2012 10
WU Xiaoging 2008 10 2005
1953 10 2008 10
1999 12 2005
1995
1999 12
2012 11
WONG Luen Cheung
Andrew
1957 it
2013
DBS
2010
2011
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2016
HE Cao
1955
1979
2002
2013 2002
Tierl
2009
2009 2010
2014
12
13
2007 2012
20
1979
1986
1987
2004
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2016
CHEN Lihua
1962

21

1999
2001

2005 2006

1983
1988 1998
1999
2000

European Journal
of Operational Research Proceeding of
Workshop on Internet and Network Economics
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2016 12 2014
QIAN Jun
1970 EMBA/DBA/EE
2013 12 Review of
Finance 2013
EMBA 2009
2013
2000
2013
2000 2013
2006 2006
2011 2013 Haub
2011
Frontiers of Economics in China
2007 2009
2007 2008
MIT
2002
1988 1991
1993
2000
American Economic Review Journal of
Finance Journal of Financial and Quantitative
Analysis Journal of International
Economics
China’ s Great Economic
Transformation Emerging Giants: China and India
in the World Economy China’ s Emerging

Financial Markets: Challenges and Opportunities
Global Perspectives of Rule of Law
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2015 12
CAO Guogiang 2015 CITIC
1964 12 2015 12 CITIC
2013 12
2009 10 2016
CIFH CNCBI 2010
2015 10 2006 2010
2005 2006
1992 12
2005
1988 1992 PBOC
30
2015 CITIC
SHU Yang CITIC
1964 2016
2016 10
2010 2015 CITIC
CITIC
CITIC USA
CITIC USA CITIC
CITIC
USA CITIC
USA
WANG Xiuhong 2003 12 2015
1946 10
2004 10 2010 12
2003 2004
1997
2003
1994 1997
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2015
JIA Xiangsen) 2010 2014
1955 2008
2010
1984 2008
ZHENG Wei) 1999
1974
1998
2016
2016
1999 2000
2015 CBRC
CHENG Pusheng
1968 2013 10 2015
2011 2013 10
2008
2011
2005 2008
2004 2005
1995 2004
1992
1995
1991 1992 PBOC
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2013
WEN Shuping)
1957 2011 2013
2009 2011
2009 2009
2008 2009
2007 11 2008
2003 2007 10
1997 2002 12
1991 1997
1987 10 1991
1985 1987
1980
1985
1978
12 1980
1975 1978 11
2016
MA Haiqing) 2015
1970 12 2016
2013 2015
2012 2013
2009 2012
1994
( )
(SUN Deshun)
(1958 11 )
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2010
ZHANG Qiang 2013 CNCB
1963 2012 CNCBI
2006 2010
2006
2007
2000 2006
1990 2000
1990
30
2013 2014
ZHU Jialin 2014 10
1964 10 2016
12
CITIC
2005
2013 2004
2005
2000 2004
1998 10 2000
1997 12
1998 10
1997 1997 12
1986
1997
1988
1989
2014 2014 11
FANG Heying) 2017
1966 CNCB CNCBI
CIFH
2013 2014 11
2014
2007
2013
2003 2007
1996 12 2003
1996 1996 12
1992 12
1996
1991 1992 12
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2014
GUO Danghuai) 2014 11
1964 2013 2014
2010 2013
2006 2010
2005 2006
2001 2005
2000 11 2001
CITIC
1999 2000 11
1986
1999
2015
YANG Yu 2015 12 2011
1962 12 2015
2006 2011
1982 2006
2017
HU Gang 2014 2014 12
1967 2015
2013
2014
2005 2013
2000
2005
1997 10 2000
1993
1997 10
1993 1993
1989
1993

10
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2017
LU Wei 2016 10
1971 10 2016
2013 2016 10
2013 2013
1997 2013
2001
2002
1994 1997
20
@

94/382



EDINETOOOO
oOoOooodn

OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)

EEERs

Efxgs

I

EUEAs

AR
RiEER=

E3-E

BERs
i - Wi

)R EH
A=

gx%n%
EESAS

mERs
TRRR

E-E
I

iif B ) 2

@

— =0 AR ADRED -1

I*

BEE 41 448 B 41

I*

S5

I_

HE 2 SN 4 _

..... _¢EEHU1¢!MEE¥lg_

|*

i 0 K 4 m

I*

PRI — m

LN S 4

1

e 5 2R WO 4 |

b6 S M Y 4

HE G o0 N 4

B 410 O 44

E<EC# ey _

< E AN F

1

SKO - ERETEHEH _

CSRC

T
33

18

95/382

23

CSRC

11

2016



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)
oOoOooodn

10

96/382



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)
oOoOooodn

2016

2016 11

2016

2016

2015 2016 10

2016
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2016

18 CBRC
12

2016

2016

21.5758

2016
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2016 12 31
2016
2016
2015 2016
T
2016
@
T 2016
2016 IFRS
2016
16.40

4.5
T
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131

2017

2016 12 31
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2015 12 31
IFRS

38 59

( 23 103 ) 1 3 7
193
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12 31
2016 2015
)

213,474 3,490,300 215,661 3,526,057
(107,336) (1,754,944) (111,228) (1,818,578)
6 106,138 1,735,356 104,433 1,707,480
45,360 741,636 37,639 615,398
(3,080) (50,358) (1,965) (32,128)
7 42,280 691,278 35,674 583,270
8 3,547 57,993 3,635 59,432
9 1,682 27,501 1,192 19,489
10 — — 1 16
512 8,371 610 9,974
154,159 2,520,500 145,545 2,379,661
1 (47,272) (772,897) (50,602) (827,343)
106,887 1,747,602 94,943 1,552,318
(45,715) (747,440) (35,120) (574,212)
(6,573) (107,469) (4,917) (80,393)
12 (52,288) (854,909) (40,037) (654,605)
8 131 27 441
1 16 53 867
54,608 892,841 54,986 899,021
13 (12,822) (209,640) (13,246) (216,572)
41,786 683,201 41,740 682,449
41,629 680,634 41,158 672,933
157 2,567 582 9,516
41,786 683,201 41,740 682,449
(6,627) (108,351) 4,275 69,896
1,897 31,016 1,364 22,301
— — 3 49
° 82 ® (98)
_ _ 8 131
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OoOooOodnd
14 (4,725) (77,254) 5,644 92,279
37,061 605,947 47,384 774,728
36,903 603,364 46,575 761,501
158 2,583 809 13,227
15 0.85 14 0.88 14
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2016 12 31 2015 12 31
)
16 553,328 9,046,913 511,189 8,357,940
17 208,641 3,411,280 80,803 1,321,129
3,372 55,132 1,191 19,473
18 167,208 2,733,851 118,776 1,941,988
19 64,911 1,061,295 26,220 428,697
20 47,366 774,434 13,788 225,434
21 170,804 2,792,645 138,561 2,265,472
22 32,922 538,275 30,512 498,871
23 2,802,384 45,818,978 2,468,283 40,356,427
24 534,533 8,739,615 373,770 6,111,140
25 217,498 3,556,092 179,930 2,941,856
26 1,035,728 16,934,153 1,112,207 18,184,584
27 1,111 18,165 976 15,958
29 17,834 291,586 15,983 261,322
840 13,734 802 13,113
30 305 4,987 325 5,314
31 914 14,944 854 13,963
32 12,697 207,596 7,981 130,489
33 58,654 958,993 40,141 656,305
5,931,050 96,972,668 5,122,292 83,749,474
184,050 3,009,218 37,500 613,125
35 981,446 16,046,642 1,068,544 17,470,694
36 83,723 1,368,871 49,248 805,205
20 45,059 736,715 11,418 186,684
37

120,342 1,967,592 71,168 1,163,597
38 3,639,290 59,502,392 3,182,775 52,038,371
39 8,819 144,191 8,302 135,738
40 6,364 104,051 4,693 76,731
41 37,155 607,484 38,159 623,900
42 244 3,989 2 33
43 386,946 6,326,567 289,135 4,727,357
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32 11 180 10 164
44 53,105 868,267 41,652 681,010
5,546,554 90,686,158 4,802,606 78,522,608

45 48,935 800,087 48,935 800,087
46 34,955 571,514 — _
47 58,636 958,699 58,636 958,699
48 (1,142) (18,672) 3,584 58,598
49 27,263 445,750 23,362 381,969
50 73,911 1,208,445 64,555 1,055,474
51 136,666 2,234,489 118,668 1,940,222
379,224 6,200,312 317,740 5,195,049

52 5,272 86,197 1,946 31,817
384,496 6,286,510 319,686 5,226,866

5,931,050 96,972,668 5,122,292 83,749,474

2017 22
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®

(i)

(i)

@iv)

2016 12 31

2015
O
(i)

(iii)

@iv)
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OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)

ooooooo

( )

48,935 — 58,636 3,584 23,362 64,555 118,668 121 1,825 319,686

— — — — — — 41,629 11 146 41,786

14 — — — (4,726) — — = 1 - (4,725)
— — — (4,726) — — 41,629 12 146 37,061

46 — 34,955 — — — — — — — 34,955
52 — — — — — — — — 3,324 3,324
49 — — — — 3,901 — (3,901) — — —
50 — — — — — 9,356 (9,356) — — —
51 — — — — — — (10,374) — — (10,374)
— — — — — — — (10) — (10)

52 — — — — — — — — (146) (146)
48,935 34,955 58,636 (1,142) 27,263 73,011 136,666 123 5,149 384,496

( )

46,787 49,296 (1,833) 19,394 50,447 95,586 5,844 1,825 267,346

— — — — — 41,158 445 137 41,740

14 — — 5,417 — — — 227 — 5,644
— — 5,417 — — 41,158 672 137 47,384

— (400) — — — — (6,395) — (6,795)

2,148 9,740 — — — — — — 11,888

49 — — — 3,968 — (3,968) — — —
50 _ — — — 14,108 (14,108) — — —
52 _ — — — — — — (137) 137
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2015 12 31 48,935 58,636 3,584 23,362 64,555 118,668 121 1,825 319,686
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(i)
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™

2016

2015

O
(i)
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OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)

OooooOodd

)
800,087 — 958,699 58,598 381,969 1,055,474 1,940,222 1,978 29,839 5,226,866
— — — — — 680,634 180 2,387 683,201

14 — — —  (77,270) — — — 16 — (77,254)
— — —  (77,270) — — 680,634 196 2,387 605,947
46 — 571,514 — — — — — — 571,514
52 — — — — — — — 54,347 54,347
49 — — — 63,781 — (63,781) — — —
50 _ — — — 152,971 (152,971) — — —

51 — — — — — (169,615) — — (169,615)

— — — — — — (164) — (164)

52 — — — — — — — (2,387) (2,387)

12 31

800,087 571,514 958,699  (18,672) 445,750 1,208,445 2,234,489 2,011 84,186 6,286,510

)
764,967 805,990 (29,970) 317,092 824,808 1,562,831 95,549 29,839 4,371,107
— — — — — 672,933 7,276 2,240 682,449
14 — — 88,568 — — — 3,711 — 92,279
— — 88,568 — — 672,933 10,987 2,240 774,728
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Ooooodo
Gii)
— (6,540) — — — — (104,558) — (111,098)
@Giv) 35,120 159,249 — — — — — — 194,369
)
49 — — — 64,877 — (64,877) — — —
50 _ — _ — 230,666 (230,666) — — —
52 — — — — — — — (2,240) (2,240)
2015 12 31
800,087 958,699 58,508 381,969 1,055,474 1,940,222 1,978 29,839 5,226,866
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12 31
2016 2015
)

54,608 892,841 54,986 899,021
1,068 17,462 519 8,486
(812) (13,276) (111) (1,815)
(62) (1,014) 9 147
850 13,898 104 1,700
52,288 854,909 40,037 654,605
2,703 44,194 2,454 40,123
14,052 229,750 8,382 137,046
(70) (1,145) (10) (164)
(14,155) (231,434) (14,749) (241,146)
110,470 1,806,185 91,621 1,498,003
(46,833) (765,720) 20,959 342,680
5,967 97,560 (2,400) (39,240)
(49,368) (807,167) (34,393) (562,326)
(37,851) (618,864) 1,382 22,596
(32,196) (526,405) (2,757) (45,077)
(369,112) (6,034,981) (358,952) (5.868,865)
75,619 1,236,371 (459,657) (7,515,392)
146,550 2,396,093 (12,550) (205,193)
(87,181) (1,425,409) 380,182 6,215,976
33,747 551,763 29,350 479,873
— — (573) (9,369)
49,172 803,962 29,550 483,143
443,232 7,246,843 323,142 5,283,372
(30,769) (503,073) (29,169) (476,913)
7,364 120,401 3,430 56,081
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108,341 1,771,375 (112,456) (1,838,656)
218,811 3,577,560 (20,835) (340,652)
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12 31
2016 2015
)
545,658 8,921,508 638,920 10,446,342
109 1,782 22 360
80 1,308 69 1,128
(714,490) (11,681,912) (775,111) (12,673,065)
(7,708) (126,026) (6,427) (105,081)
— — 1)) (441)
27 (100) (1,635) — _
(176,451) (2,884,974) (142,554) (2,330,758)
— — 11,888 194,369
46 34,955 571,514 — —
52 3,324 54,347 _ _
604,406 9,882,038 310,966 5,084,294
(507,840) (8,303,184) (153, 296) (2,506,390)
(14,192) (232,039) (8,420) (137,667)
(10,530) (172,166) (137) (2,240)
— — (6,772) (110,722)
110,123 1,800,511 154,229 2,521,644
152,483 2,493,097 (9,160) (149,766)
- 226,364 3,701,051 228,375 3,733,931
6,509 106,422 7,149 116,886
—12 31
53 385,356 6,300,571 226,364 3,701,051
213,544 3,491,444 207,745 3,396,631
(94,307) (1,541,919) (102,040) (1,668,354)
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CNCB
2006 12 31

2007 27

CBRC
BO0O0O6H111000001 91110000101690725E

2016 12 31 31

2017 22

2016 12 31

@
12 31

®
RMB
(b) (i)

1ASB
IFRS Cap.622

IFRS

€))
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1ASB
IFRS

IFRS 11

IAS 16 IAS 38

IFRS IFRS 2012-2014
IFRS 10 IFRS 12 IAS 28

1AS

IAS 27

IFRS 11
IFRS 11

IAS 16 IAS 38

IAS 16
IAS 38

IFRS IFRS 2012-2014

IFRS 2012-2014 IFRS
IFRS
IFRS IAS 19
IAS 34

IFRS 10 IFRS 12 IAS 28
IFRS 10

IFRS 10

IFRS 12 IFRS 10
IFRS 12

IAS 28

IAS
IAS
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IAS 27
1ASB IAS 27

() 2016
IAS 12 2017
1AS 2017
IFRS 12 1ASB 2014-2016 2017
IAS 28 1ASB 2014-2016 2018
IFRS 15 2018
IFRS 2018
IFRS IFRS 2018
IFRS
IAS 40 2018
IFRS 2018
IFRS 16 2019
IFRS 10 IAS 28 2016
IAS 12
IASB IAS 12
IAS
IASB IAS
1ASB
IFRS 12 IASB 2014-2016
1ASB 2014-2016 IFRS 12

IFRS
IFRS 12

IAS 28 1ASB 2014-2016
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1ASB 2014-2016
IFRS 15
IFRS 15
IFRS 15
IFRS
IFRS 2014
IAS 39
IFRS
0Cl
oClI
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IFRS 1AS
IFRS
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IFRS
IFRS
IT
IFRS
IFRS IFRS
2016 12 IASB IFRS
IFRS
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IAS 40
2016 12 IASB IAS 40

IAS 40

IFRS
2016 20 1ASB IFRS

IFRS

IFRS 16
IFRS 16

IAS 17

IFRS 16
right-of-use asset

2016
12 31 13,348
54(d)

IFRS 16
IFRS 16 IAS 17
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IFRS 10 IAS 28
IFRS 10 IAS 28
© VAT
MOF SAT
VAT
[2016]36 VAT
[2016]46
VAT [2016]70 2016
2016
[2016]140 [2017]
2017 VAT
VAT

VAT
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6
12 31
2016 2015
)
7,566 7,502
1,722 1,325
3,724 2,925
857 3,998
45,820 45,638
92,655 97,956
36,858 34,907
2,705 3,214
21,562 18,190
5 6
213,474 215,661
(2,686) (994)
(32,629) (35,792)
(1,470) (742)
(861) (561)
(55,630) (64,749)
(14,052) (8,382)
®) ®)
(107,336) (111,228)
106,138 104,433
(i) 2016 12 31
2015 12 31 656
7
12 31
2016 2015
19,324 13,419
7,114 5,808
) 6,128 3,711
5,777 6,972
2,566 2,228
2,384 3,131
1,396 1,747
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671 623
45,360 37,639
(3,080) (1,965)
42,280 35,674
12 31
2016 2015
894 1,531
2,311 2,300
77 (436)
265 240
3,547 3,635
12 31
2016 2015
818 60
314 906
550 226
1,682 1,192
12 31
2016 2015
— 1
12 31
2016 2015
17,071 15,260
1,470 1,296
1,189 1,057
1,250 1,211
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613 636
484 439
106 165
2,190 2,291
6 11
39 21
24,418 22,387
4,670 4,523
1,683 1,540
1,020 914
804 821
685 618
363 347
9,225 8,763
4,487 10,033
O 9,142 9,419
47,272 50,602
(i) 16 2015 16
14 2015
@
2016 12 31
2015 2015
12 31
2016 2015
( ) ( )
23,403 31,955
24,179 15,879
1,684 1,525
49,266 49,359
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12 31
2016 2015
2 3
3 2
2015
12 31
2016 2015
45,715 35,120
34 —
5,033 2,941
43 57
2 (O]
871 729
64 41
(82) (95)
608 1,248
6,573 4,917
52,288 40,037
12 31
2016 2015
14,920 12,992
407 304
24 41
32(b) (2,529) (91)
12,822 13,246

25 16.5
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12 31
2016 2015
54,608 54,986
13,652 13,747
(245) (196)
396 431
(882) (699)
(99) @37
12,822 13,246
12 31
2016 2015
(6,889) 6,578
(1,926) (865)
2,188 (1,438)
(6,627) 4,275
1,897 1,364
_ 3
7 ®)
@ 2
5 ®)
— 8
(4,725) 5,644
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15
2016 2015 12 31
46 2016 12 31
2016
2016 12 31
12 31
2016 2015
41,629 41,158
41,629 41,158
41,629 46,787
0.85 0.88
16
2016 2015
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
7,407 7,355
O 464,633 432,965
(i) 58,855 63,656
(i) 3,568 3,797
) 18,865 3,416
553,328 511,189
(i) PBOC
2016 12 31 PBOC 15 2015 12 31
15 15 2015 12 31
2015 12 31
2015 12 31 9.5
PBOC
i) PBOC
(iii) PBOC
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@
2016 2015
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
123,913 36,194
42,383 12,766
166,296 48,960
31,623 22,668
10,756 9,175
42,379 31,843
208,675 80,803
34 (3%) —
208,641 80,803
(b) —
2016 2015
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
(i) 100,394 57,323
84,016 12,005
24,265 11,475
108,281 23,480
208,675 80,803
34 (34) —
208,641 80,803
(i) 2016 12 31 606 2015 12 31

151
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( ) ( )
3,003 15,320
138,293 77,262
141,296 92,582
25,921 26,202
25,921 26,202
167,217 118,784
34 ©® ®
167,208 118,776

2016 2015
12 31 12 31

( ) ( )
57,802 57,439
109,382 61,298
33 47
167,217 118,784
34 ©® ®
167,208 118,776
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2016 2015
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
@ 9,630 8,536
(b) 50,699 15,226
1 1
60,330 23,763
©) 4,581 2,457
64,911 26,220
2016 2015
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
51 386
2,579 3,778
3,138 876
2,838 3,371
8,606 8,411
— 39
898 44
126 42
1,024 125
9,630 8,536
977 697
6,775 7,737
1,878 102
9,630 8,536
2016 2015
12 31 12 31
50,699 15,226
50,699 15,226
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135 —
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2016 12 31
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2016 12 31 2015 12 31
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14,068 201 23 11,144 237 38
842,387 3,164 2,790 593,379 1,054 957
2,612,557 42,232 40,045 1,600,764 11,489 10,119
77,385 1,769 2,201 18,763 1,008 304
— — — 5,222 — —
3,546,397 47,366 45,059 2,229,272 13,788 11,418
@
2016 2015
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
962,420 814,085
2,298,022 1,299,448
283,656 113,995
2,299 1,744
3,546,397 2,229,272
®
2012 CBRC
2016 12 31
37,134
©
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21
@
2016 2015
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
146,370 136,959
24,434 251
170,804 137,210
— 1,351
— 1,351
170,804 138,561
()
2016 2015
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
— 70,788
170,770 67,232
34 541
170,804 138,561
©
2016 2015
12 31 12 31
170,770 135,200
34 3,261
— 100
170,804 138,561
55(b)

149/382




EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)

OooooOodd
22
2016 2015
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
14,482 10,343
10,951 12,963
9,608 7,882
1,787 1,458
36,828 32,646
34 (3,906) (2,134)
32,922 30,512
@
2016 2015
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
1,811,765 1,749,543
75,047 92,745
) 34,509 17,879
1,921,321 1,860,167
433,210 268,926
111,949 105,770
237,712 175,801
173,735 118,116
956,606 668,613
2,877,927 2,528,780
34
(25,448) (15,345)
(50,095) (45,152)
(75,543) (60,497)
2,802,384 2,468,283
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(b)
2016 12 31
C ()
¢ (i)
( ) ) ( ) ( )
2,829,347 10,579 38,001 2,877,927 1.69
(41,988) (8,107) (25,448) (75,543)
2,787,359 2,472 12,553 2,802,384
2015 12 31
C ()
¢ (i)
( ) ) ( ) ( )
2,492,730 8,011 28,039 2,528,780 1.43
(39,306) (5,846) (15,345) (60,497)
2,453,424 2,165 12,694 2,468,283
Q)
(i)
2016 2015
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
19,060 14,412
18,941 13,627
38,001 28,039
(25,448) (15,345)
12,553 12,694
18,643 13,748
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2016 12 31
) ( ) ) )
39,306 5,846 15,345 60,497
2,662 6,918 38,845 48,425
— (405) (2,305) (2,710)
— — (564) (564)
20 — 255 275
— (4,657) (26,295) (30,952)
— 405 167 572
41,988 8,107 25,448 75,543
2015 12 31

) ( ) ) )
36,469 3,954 11,153 51,576
2,818 5,670 28,933 37,421
— (358) (1,943) (2,301)

— — (592) (592)

19 — 13 32

— (3,778) (22,461) (26,239)

— 358 242 600
39,306 5,846 15,345 60,497
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2016 12 31
( ) ( )« ) ( ) )
3,985 5,576 2,750 300 12,611
7,776 11,649 7,136 115 26,676
22,689 17,191 8,560 561 49,001
1,592 2,765 1,046 62 5,465
36,042 37,181 19,492 1,038 93,753

2015 12 31
( ) ( ) ( ) «( ) )
3,425 3,063 2,508 297 9,293
8,907 5,285 5,105 230 19,527
21,579 12,142 6,341 274 40,336
3,087 1,595 1,000 62 5,744
36,998 22,085 14,954 863 74,900
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()
CFLL CIFH
25
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
7,677 8,459 3,543 4,388
6,514 7,761 3,689 4,343
6,279 6,766 3,212 3,678
14,039 16,762 7,435 8,171
34,509 39,748 17,879 20,580
@ (©))
(643) (214)
33,864 17,662
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2016 2015
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
@ 396,545 297,444
) 116,050 75,314
© 768 446
© 411 134
(d) 20,737 422
22 10
534,533 373,770
2016 2015
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
166,151 97,953
91,905 72,893
34,906 23,842
70,094 75,734
363,056 270,422
15,023 16,759
11,787 7,130
6,679 3,133
33,489 27,022
396,545 297,444
10,935 8,457
356,827 258,974
28,783 30,013
396,545 297,444
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(b)
2016 2015
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
112,127 72,053
3,923 3,261
116,050 75,314
116,050 75,314
©
2016 2015
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
391 115
136 126
652 339
1,179 580
305 338
116 108
758 134
1,179 580
@
2016 2015
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
19,585 —
457 422
695 —
20,737 422
19,585 —
1,152 422
20,737 422
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2016 2015
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
49,286 50,066
69,861 64,022
76,572 39,370
21,430 26,469
217,149 179,927
348 40
3 4
351 44
217,500 179,971
34 (@) (41)
217,498 179,930
291 272
213,008 174,848
4,199 4,810
217,498 179,930
219,014 185,152
214,813 180,341
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26
2016 2015
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
452,966 825,016
458,390 147,605
126,128 139,971
— 500
1,037,484 1,113,092
34 (1,756) (885)
1,035,728 1,112,207
2016 12 31 145,635 2015 12 31
75,639 CITIC
58a(viii)
27
2016 2015
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
1,111 976
@) 2016 12 31
CIAM 40 2,218
BFAE 20 500
O]
(i) BFAE 2016 24 500 BFAE 20
100 BFAE
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(b)

2016 12 31 2016 12 31

CIAM 3,102 579 2,523 (48) 3
BFAE 499 2 497 — @

©

993

2016 976
100

©))
43
2016 12 31 1,111

893
2015 870
52

®
56
2015 12 31 976

159/382



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)

OooooOodd
28
2016 2015
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
CIFH (i 16,570 16,570
e (i) 1,577 1,577
(i) 102 102
CFLL W) 4,000 4,000
22,249 22,249
2016 12 31
_ 7,503
CIFH (i) 100 — 100
CNCB 1,889
N 99.05 0.95 100
(i)
- 200 51 — 51
(i)
CFLL (i) 4,000 100 — 100
(i) CIFH
CIFH 100 CIFH  CITIC
cBl 100
(i) CNCB 1084
CNCB
CNCB 99.05 CIFH CNCB 0.95
2016 12 31 CNCB 100
(i) 2011 200
51
) 2015 CFLL
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29

¢ (iD)
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
2016 14,372 1,121 9,468 24,961
2,396 30 1,072 3,498
680 (680) — —
(65) — (253) (318)
85 — 71 156
2016 12 31 17,468 471 10,358 28,297
2016 (3,452) — (5.,526) (8,978)
(506) — @,177) (1,683)
27 — 243 270
(18) — €D (72
2016 12 31 (3,949) — (6,514) (10, 463)
2016 10,920 1,121 3,942 15,983
2016 12 31 C () 13,519 471 3,844 17,834

¢ (i)
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
2015 12,264 1,684 8,368 22,316
1,227 300 1,258 2,785
863 (863) — —
(10) — (216) (226)
28 — 58 86
2015 12 31 14,372 1,121 9,468 24,961
2015 (2,992) — (4,586) (7,578)
(449) — (1,091) (1,540)
3 — 193 196
(14) — (42) (56)
2015 12 31 (3,452) — (5,526) (8,978)
2015 9,272 1,684 3,782 14,738
2015 12 31 C ) 10,920 1,121 3,942 15,983
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(i) 2016 12 31 3,620
2015 12 31 1,850

(i)
2016 2015
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
50 70 68
10 50 211 158
10 50 13,213 10,669
25 25
13,519 10,920
30
2016 2015
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
325 280
8 27
(CD) —
23 18
12 31 305 325
2016 12 31
2016 12 31
IFRS 13
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2016 2015
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
15 16
255 276
35 33
305 325
2016 2015
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
854 795
— 10
60 49
914 854
2015 12 31
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2016

2016

2015

2015

@

(b)

12 31

12 31

2016 12 31
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2016 2015
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )

12,697 7,981
11 (10)
12,686 7,971

2016 12 31 2015 12 31

/( /(
) /IC ) ) /C )
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
52,757 13,165 38,879 9,694
(968) (250) (8,060) (2,017)
2,882 721 2,818 704
(3,844) (939) (1,647) (400)
50,827 12,697 31,990 7,981
(65) (11) (59) (10)
_ — [h) —
(65) (11) (60) (10)
50,762 12,686 31,930 7,971
) ) ) ( ) )
9,694 (2,027) 704 (400) 7,971
3,468 (422) 19 (536) 2,529
— 2,188 ) — 2,186
3 — — ®) —
13,165 (261) 721 (939) 12,686
7,830 (250) 1,899 (162) 9,317
1,861 (335) (1,197) (238) 91
— (1,438) 2 — (1,436)
3 O] — — (€Y)
9,694 (2,027) 704 (400) 7,971
2015 12 31
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2016 12 31
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2016 2015
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
23,927 12,443
(O) 12,335 12,555
4,448 1,984
3,684 2,777
(ii) 1,814 960
1,677 1,793
1,065 1,072
1,054 851
805 1,355
7,845 4,351
58,654 40,141
2016 2015
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
1,836 1,045
196 85
2,032 1,130
(218) (170)
1,814 960
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OooooOodd
2016 12 31
12 31
Q)

( ( ( ( (
) ) ) ) ) )
17 — 34 — — — 34
18 8 — — — 1 9
22 2,134 5,452 (419)  (3,29) 35 3,906
23 60,497 48,425 (2,710)  (30,952) 283 75,543
24 160 45 0 — (41) 162
25 41 2 — — (41) 2
26 885 871 — — — 1,756
1,999 742 (70) (387) 76 2,360
65,724 55,571 (3,201)  (34,635) 313 83,772

2015 12 31
12 31
O)

( ( ( ( (
) ) ) ) ) )
18 8 — — — — 8
22 1,390 3,398 457)  (2,223) 26 2,134
23 51,576 37,421 (2,301)  (26,239) 40 60,497
24 97 63 (6) — 6 160
25 41 — 4) — 4 41
26 156 729 — — — 885
882 1,379 (90) (178) 6 1,999
54,150 42,990 (2,858)  (28,640) 82 65,724

12
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2016 2015
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
446,824 396,463
531,949 655,307
978,773 1,051,770
2,566 16,722
107 52
2,673 16,774
981,446 1,068,544
2016 2015
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
46,689 31,494
20,000 13,729
66,689 45,223
17,034 4,025
17,034 4,025
83,723 49,248
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2016 2015
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
85,415 8,917
33,100 60,223
— 1,970
118,515 71,110
1,758 58
69 —
1,827 58
120,342 71,168
2016 2015
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
29,055 27,492
91,287 43,676
120,342 71,168

55
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@
2016 2015
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
1,683,827 1,187,929
232,960 178,917
1,916,787 1,366,846
1,390,212 1,446,939
325,053 362,433
1,715,265 1,809,372
7,238 6,557
3,639,290 3,182,775
®)
2016 2015
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
213,624 292,556
25,822 21,775
9,624 9,241
148,798 121,310
397,868 444,882
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2016 12 31
12 31
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
@) 8,158 20,554 (20,039) 8,673
() 32 2,190 (2,190) 32
©) 49 6 (20) 35
63 39 (23) 79
8,302 22,789 (22,272) 8,819
2015 12 31
)
(i) 12 31
) ) «( ) ( ( )
(@) 11,387 20,064 (19,512) (3,781) 8,158
() 16 2,291 (2,275) — 32
©) 40 11 ©)) — 49
78 21 (36) — 63
11,521 22,387 (21,825) (3.781) 8,302
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OooooOodd
2016 12 31
12 31
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
7,134 15,442 (15,093) 7,483
35 1,189 (1,175) 49
— 1,470 (1,470) —
26 1,250 (1,257) 19
915 613 (468) 1,060
34 484 (470) 48
14 106 (106) 14
8,158 20,554 (20,039) 8,673
2015 12 31
)
(i) 12 31
( ) ( ) ( ) ) ( )
10,589 15,260 (14,934) (3,781) 7,134
19 1,057 (1,041) — 35
— 1,296 (1,296) — _
25 1,211 (1,210) — 26
711 636 (432) — 915
28 439 (433) — 34
15 165 (166) — 14
11,387 20,064 (19,512) (3,781) 8,158
2015 12 31 3,781
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b
CITIC
2015 12 31
2016 12 31 12
629 2015 12 31 571
c
40
2016 2015
12 31 12 31

( ) ( )
3,442 2,248
VAT 2,911 —
— 2,563
11 (118)
6,364 4,693

41
2016 2015
12 31 12 31

( ) ( )
27,867 28,701
2,045 2.061
7,243 7,397
37,155 38,159
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42
2016 2015
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
244 2
2016 2015
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
2 5
243 3
— €Y
@ ®)
12 31 244 2
2016 241
43
2016 2015
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
@) 31,288 31,295
) 68,441 70,434
CBI © 7,801 7,345
@ 9,493 8,705
©) 269,923 171,356
386,946 289,135
(a) 2016 12 31
2016 2015
12 31 12 31
2013 11 2018 11 12 5.20 15,000 15,000
2014 27 2017 27 4.125 1,500 1,500
2015 21 2020 25 3.98 7,000 7,000
2015 11 13 2020 11 17 3.61 8,000 8,000
31,500 31,500
(35) (28)
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(i) 2006

2021
2025
2027
2024

22

(ii) 2010 2

4.30

(iii) 2012

Q)

5.15
2014

6.13

(c) 12 31

20
20
20

Q)

(i)

(i)

20
22
24

26

CBI

6.875

3.875

6.00

8

21

2017

2019
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OooooOodd
Q) 177)
31,288 31,295
2016 2015
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
(i) — 2,000
(i) 11,500 11,500
Gii) 19,979 19,977
) 36,962 36,957
68,441 70,434
4.12
2016 22
4.30 2020 28
5.15 2022 21
6.13 2019 26
2016 2015
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
(i) 3,641 3,462
(i) 2,077 1,933
Gii) 2,083 1,950
7,801 7,345
500 2010 24 CBI
300 2012 27
28
3.250
2022 28
300 2013 11
4.718
2024
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(d) CBI 0.46 3.62
(e) 2016 12 31 269,923 2015 12 31 171,356
2.68 3.75 2015 12 31 2.75 4.77
44
2016 2015
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
39(a) 30,033 23,718
3,756 3,781
3,740 2,947
655 389
468 541
448 2,935
436 339
O) 13,569 7,002
53,105 41,652
O 2016 12 31
5,669
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12 31

(i) 2015 12 31
CNTC
11,888
9,740
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2016 12 31 2015 12 31
( ) ( )
34,053 34,053
14,882 14,882
48,935 48,935
2016 2015
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
O) 48,935 46,787
— 2,148
48,935 48,935
2,147,469,539
5.55
2,148

1771382



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)

ooooooo
46
100 350 35,000
3.80
3.80
100 350 200 2016 10
2016 12 31 34,955
Tier Tier
59
1.30
CBRC No.56 [2012])
)

7.07

CBRC Tier
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2016 2015
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
58,555 58,555
81 81
58,636 58,636
39
2016 2015
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
23,362 19,394
3,901 3,968
27,263 23,362
50 10
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12 31
51
@
12 31
2017 22
9,020
(b) 2016 26
2.12
(c) 2017 22

(d) 2016 12 31
50
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2016 2015
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
64,555 50,447
9,356 14,108
73,911 64,555
MOF
2012
1.5
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
49 3,901 3,968
50 9,356 14,108
13,257 18,076
2016 3,901
CFLL
2016 25 10,374 10
2016 12 31 10 2.15
10,521
2016 12 31
87 2015 12 31
38 2015 16 2016 12 31
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52
2016 12 31
CBI 5,149
Tier
7.25
2014 300 2019
22 22 5.627
4.25
2016 500 2021
10 11 10 11 3.107
CBI
CBI
2016 12 31 2014 22
146 2015 12 31 137
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2016 2015

12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
7,407 7,355
58,855 63,656
204,665 70,826
63,158 64,458
51,271 20,069
377,949 219,009
385,356 226,364

C))
2016 2015
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )

8,446 7,089
66,490 69,949
74,936 77,038
163,157 133,567
86,499 92,164
535,313 631,431
215,845 149,138
1,075,750 1,083,338
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(ii) 2015 11 17

(iii) 2015 11 17
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2016 2015
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
337,216 391,878
150
2016 2015
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
7,297 7,119
2,748 113
67(i)

CBRC
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2016 12 31
2015 12

2016 12 31

31
243

EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)

ooooooo
12 31
2016 2015
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
2,917 2,864
2,454 2,553
2,137 2,173
3,354 3,510
2,486 3,699
13,348 14,799
517
394
2015 12 31 42
MOF PBOC
2016 2015
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
12,723 13,371
MOF
2015 12
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55
@
()
2016 2015
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
324,303 115,553
29,188 27,492
76 137
353,567 143,182
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
12
(i) 2016 12 31
1,153 2015 12 31 159
®)
21
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
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2016 12 31
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2016 2015

12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
703,259 606,264
703,260 606,334
62(c) 62(b)

62(b)

62(b)
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2016 12 31

( ) ( ) ( ) ) ( )
56,027 28,624 25,781 (4,294) 106,138
14,221 (12,346) (16,766) 14,891 —
70,248 16,278 9,015 10,597 106,138
( ) 13,677 23,533 6,468 (1,398) 42,280
(i) 1,714 364 626 3,037 5,741
85,639 40,175 16,109 12,236 154,159

(1,099) (470) (760) (374) (2,703)

(17,520) (21,535) (1,346) (4,168) (44,569)

(44,341) (7.322) 17) (408) (52,288)
— — — 8 8
— — — 1 1
22,679 10,848 13,786 7,295 54,608

(12,822)
41,786
2,811 1,182 1,955 840 6,788
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OooooOodd
2016 12 31
) ( ) ( ) ) ( )
2,566,820 1,034,645 1,775,788 539,989 5,917,242
— — 100 1,011 1,111
12,697
5,931,050
3,223,082 809,320 1,261,472 252,669 5,546,543
11
5,546,554
859,905 215,845 — — 1,075,750
2015 12 31
( ) ( ) «( ) «( ) ( )
53,354 24,602 29,936 (3.459) 104,433
15,213 (9,003) (18,640) 12,430 —
68,567 15,599 11,296 8,971 104,433
14,194 17,077 4,639 (236) 35,674
2,553 657 2,424 (196) 5,438
85,314 33,333 18,359 8,539 145,545
(1,020) (369) (702) (363) (2,454)
(18,159) (25,337) (1,223) (3,429) (48,148)
(35,921) (2,902) (216) (998) (40,037)
— — — 27 27
— — — 53 53
30,214 4,725 16,218 3,829 54,986
(13,246)
41,740
3,045 1,094 2,126 684 6,949
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ooooooo
2015 12 31
( DI ¢ ) ( )« ) ( )
2,267,448 799,410 1,584,881 461,596 5,113,335
— — — 976 976
7,981
5,122,292
2,728,042 568,089 1,239,707 266,758 4,802,596
10
4,802,606
934,200 149,138 — — 1,083,338
(1)
(b)
31
CNCB CIFH
CFLL
CFLL
CNCB CIFH

2016 12 31
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ooooooo
2016 12 31
) ) ) ) ( ) ) ) ) )
19,616 13,893 9,343 15,409 15,132 3,084 25,884 3,777 106,138
1,802 2,444 11,224 (587) (1,613) (852) (12,366) (52) —
21,418 16,337 20,567 14,822 13,519 2,232 13,518 3,725 106,138
5,308 3,270 5,644 2,746 3,152 404 20,319 1,437 42,280
857 490 882 313 271 46 2,065 817 5,741
27,583 20,097 27,093 17,881 16,942 2,682 35,902 5,979 154,159
(415) Q72) (464) (333) (405) (104) (579) (131) (2,703)
(8,067) (5,456) (8,017) (5,451) (5,163) (1,143) (8,671) (2,601) (44,569)
(9,391) (7,671) (9,431) (9,954) (7,152) (1,355) (6,851) (483) (52,288)
— — — — — — — 8 8
— — — — — — — 1 1
9,710 6,698 9,181 2,143 4,222 80 19,801 2,773 54,608
(12,822)
41,786
2,159 636 204 728 472 106 2,308 175 6,788
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ooooooo
2016 12 31
) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
1,143,563 887,856 1,273,550 657,675 573,399 85,967 1,010,909 284,323 5,917,242
— — — — — — — 1,111 1,111
12,697
5,931,050
1,134,943 883,235 1,258,132 656,226 568,835 85,161 723,128 236,883 5,546,543
11
5,546,554
211,676 117,938 188,178 193,363 110,711 17,171 208,682 28,031 1,075,750
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o o o o o o A (=S(0 ST oY)

ooooooo
2015 12 31
) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
18,909 11,853 14,581 14,734 14,491 2,273 24,808 2,784 104,433
1,751 3,030 6,689 285 (1,158) 55 (10,754) 102 -
20,660 14,883 21,270 15,019 13,333 2,328 14,054 2,886 104,433
4,920 2,776 4,857 3,107 3,173 504 15,274 973 35,674
1,326 556 653 437 402 79 844 1,141 5,438
26,906 18,215 26,780 18,653 16,908 2,011 30,172 5,000 145,545
(391) (262) (429) (285) 317) 93) (468) (209) (2,454)
(9,255) (6,009) (8,734) (6,484) (6,002) (1,310) (8,243) 2,111) (48,148)
(7,833) (12,101) (6,263) (3,604) 4,734) (1,310) (3,642) (550) (40,037)
— — — — — — — 27 27
— — — — — — — 53 53
9,427 @57) 11,354 8,280 5,855 198 17,819 2,210 54,986
(13,246)
41,740
850 242 574 661 1,254 80 3,190 98 6,949
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2015 12 31

( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
1,099,638 752,930 1,114,437 617,426 557,507 93,262 639,057 239,078 5,113,335
— — — — — — — 976 976
7,981
5,122,292
1,090,233 750,275 1,098,983 609,982 551,901 92,311 396,293 212,618 4,802,596
10
4,802,606
246,678 136,897 222,720 175,503 116,600 26,043 141,993 16,904 1,083,338

Q)
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oOoOooodn
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
( ) ( )
545,921 503,834
208,641 80,803
167,208 118,776
64,910 26,219
47,366 13,788
170,804 138,561
32,922 30,512
2,802,384 2,468,283
512,595 372,758
217,498 179,930
1,035,728 1,112,207
49,669 36,222
5,855,646 5,081,893
1,075,750 1,083,338
6,931,396 6,165,231
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00000000000 DO0000O00o0o00b0OoO0Odnoo(Es9d)

OooooOodd
(ii)
2016 12 31
( ( ( ( (
) ) ) ) )
38,001 33 — 61 —
(25,448) ©) — (31) —
12,553 24 — 30 —
10,579 — — — —
(8,107) — — — —
2,472 — — — —
)
34,667 — — — —
14,193 — — — —
48,860 — — — —
(8,395) — — — —
40,465 — — — —
2,780,487 921,780 170,804 795,077 1,037,484
(i) (33,593) (34) — (104) (1,756)
2,746,894 921,746 170,804 794,973 1,035,728
2,802,384 921,770 170,804 795,003 1,035,728
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00000000000 DO0000O00o0o00b0OoO0Odnoo(Es9d)

OooooOodd
2015 12 31
( ( ( ( (
) ) ) ) )
28,039 30 — 128 —
(15,345) () — (120) —
12,694 22 — 8 _
8,011 — — — —
(5,846) — — — —
2,165 — — — —
)
35,118 — — — —
6,418 — — — —
41,536 — — — —
(5,544) — — — —
35,992 — — — —
2,451,194 703,391 138,561 578,956 1,113,092
(i) (33,762) — — G7) (885)
2,417,432 703,391 138,561 578,899 1,112,207
2,468,283 703,413 138,561 578,907 1,112,207
O)
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
( ) ( )
26,571 21,184
11,433 9,557
38,004 30,741
25,426 20,571
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OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)

oOoOooodn
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
( ( ( (

) ) ) )
385,822 13.4 203,543 414,273 16.4 201,490
293,429 10.2 246,107 254,892 10.1 216,414
238,545 8.3 146,674 260,675 10.3 161,575
180,124 6.3 115,905 147,798 5.8 87,060
161,976 5.6 84,728 147,535 5.8 72,340
148,476 5.2 77,814 127,435 5.0 64,321

90,666 3.2 39,612 102,532 4.1 47,940
60,046 2.1 25,187 54,704 2.2 20,219
19,846 0.7 4,427 20,835 0.8 4,880
267,344 9.2 108,593 236,743 9.4 95,297
1,846,274 64.2 1,052,590 1,767,422 69.9 971,536
956,606 33.2 695,631 668,613 26.4 478,582
75,047 2.6 — 92,745 3.7 —

2,877,927  100.0 1,748,221 2,528,780  100.0 1,450,118
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00000000000 DO0000O00o0o00b0OoO0Odnoo(Es9d)

OooooOodd
10
2016 12 31
) ( ) ) )
10,053 9,063 15,573 (10,979)
8,452 5,877 12,271 (11,278)
21 3,285 15 (45)
2015 12 31
) ( ) ) )
5,378 8,894 9,176 (7,871)
7,475 6,313 14,140 (12,174)
54 2,505 (20) —
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oOoOooodn
(iv)
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
( ( ( (

) ) ) )
771,415 26.8 377,852 680,886 26.9 315,864
634,919 22.1 413,445 553,616 21.9 330,052
477,683 16.6 376,115 396,853 15.7 298,743
379,192 13.2 238,126 340,226 13.5 201,975
374,358 13.0 230,806 348,882 13.8 205,182

70,967 2.5 47,749 68,949 2.7 42,845
169,393 5.8 64,128 139,368 5.5 55,457
2,877,927 100.0 1,748,221 2,528,780 100.0 1,450,118
2016 12 31 10
2016 12 31
( ) ( ) ( )
13,321 6,781 14,729
10,312 5,307 7,786
8,002 5,117 9,825
7,121 3,324 7,001
6,564 3,273 8,747
2015 12 31
( ) ( ) ( )
8,869 3,354 12,624
5,212 1,873 7,380
8,838 4,124 9,398
2,668 1,281 5,795
7,685 3,440 8,361
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oOoOooodn
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
( ) ( )
548,123 492,822
506,536 493,095
1,417,736 1,169,587
330,485 280,531
2,802,880 2,436,035
75,047 92,745
2,877,927 2,528,780
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
) ( )
14,680 0.51 7,857 0.31
2,554 0.09 3,548 0.14
17,234 0.60 11,405 0.45
2016 12 31
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OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)

)

Ogoooood
(vii)
2016 12 31
(i) AAA AA A A
— 212,655 14,050 2 208 1,182 228,097
— 162,917 721 970 — — 164,608
— 3 — — — — 3
— 21,735 228,982 23,873 18,606 7,548 300,744
— 2,513 71,522 20,484 5,608 1,424 101,551
399,823 315,275 45,329 24,422 10,154 795,003
2015 12 31
(i) AAA AA A A
— 126,538 27,025 4,694 6,818 127 165,202
— 140,385 — 578 — — 140,963
— 4 — — — — 4
— 11,157 118,243 15,660 13,040 5,136 163,236
— 1,890 87,682 13,887 4,181 1,862 109,502
279,974 232,950 34,819 24,039 7,125 578,907
viii)
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
( ) ( )
480,630 396,247
310,361 293,378
246,493 423,467
1,037,484 1,113,092
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OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)

ooOoooOoo
2016 12 31
C ()

( ( ( ( ( (
) ) ) ) ) )
1.52 553,328 37,488 515,840 — — —
1.40 208,641 — 206,641 2,000 — —
2.56 167,208 24 80,460 86,724 — —
2.30 170,804 — 170,776 28 — —
4.01 1,035,728 28,164 352,938 442,532 169,148 42,946
(i) 4.82 2,802,384 349 1,158,361 906,588 724,573 12,513
(i) 3.41 818,053 24,339 156,396 188,124 298,639 150,555
174,904 146,546 21,633 6,725 — —
5,931,050 236,910 2,663,045 1,632,721 1,192,360 206,014
3.02 184,050 — 39,000 145,050 — —
2.81 981,446 1,881 770,427 208,588 — 550
2.10 83,723 — 53,943 29,780 — —
2.42 120,342 — 117,349 2,993 — —
1.68 3,639,290 14,658 2,731,303 580,926 310,524 1,879
3.55 386,946 — 88,562 194,164 47,258 56,942
150,757 150,309 245 203 — —
5,546,554 166,848 3,800,849 1,161,704 357,782 59,371
384,496 70,062 (1,137,804) 471,017 834,578 146,643
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OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)

OooooOodd
2015 12 31
C )
( ( ( ( ( (
) ) ) ) ) )
1.47 511,189 14,567 496,622 — — —
1.22 80,803 — 74,077 6,726 — —
2.59 118,776 22 78,139 40,120 — 495
3.90 138,561 — 138,320 141 100 —
5.20 1,112,207 3,583 452,100 461,183 183,372 11,969
(ii)) 5.85 2,468,283 310 1,035,127 990,598 428,157 14,091
(iii)) 3.86 580,896 1,991 107,371 121,567 216,221 133,746
111,577 109,416 444 1,717 — —
5,122,292 129,889 2,382,200 1,622,052 827,850 160,301
3.50 37,500 — 13,500 24,000 — —
3.80 1,068,544 1,632 536,885 528,017 1,010 1,000
1.81 49,248 — 37,039 11,874 335 —
2.43 71,168 — 67,976 3,192 — —
2.16 3,182,775 16,263 2,137,461 665,174 362,891 986
4.65 289,135 — 82,007 96,899 39,795 70,434
104,236 101,302 606 2,328 — —
4,802,606 119,197 2,875,474 1,331,484 404,031 72,420
319,686 10,692 (493,274) 290,568 423,819 87,881
O)
(i) 2016 12 31
54,540 2015 12 31 50,079
Gii)
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OooooOodd
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
(7,845) (1,442) (2,753) (906)
7,845 1,442 2,753 906

(i)
(i)
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OooooOodd
2016 12 31
( ( (

( ) ) ) ) ( )
524,885 27,676 601 166 553,328
158,350 29,861 12,451 7,979 208,641
139,008 17,843 8,392 1,965 167,208
170,804 — — — 170,804

1,035,728 — — — 1,035,728
2,534,542 169,570 83,657 14,615 2,802,384
751,958 33,959 25,898 6,238 818,053
125,301 41,890 4,163 3,550 174,904
5,440,576 320,799 135,162 34,513 5,931,050
184,050 — — — 184,050
932,435 41,923 815 6,273 981,446
57,671 25,688 197 167 83,723
118,515 1,827 — — 120,342
3,304,504 181,508 119,014 34,264 3,639,290
369,652 16,817 477 — 386,946
126,796 14,603 3,711 5,647 150,757
5,093,623 282,366 124,214 46,351 5,546,554
346,953 38,433 10,948 (11,838) 384,496
958,523 90,017 12,151 15,059 1,075,750

C () 31,003 (16,931) 12,341 (16,575) 9,838
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OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)

OooooOodd
2015 12 31
( ( (
( ) ) ) ) ( )
496,205 14,178 613 193 511,189
37,835 29,019 9,860 4,089 80,803
79,776 29,751 6,615 2,634 118,776
137,210 1,351 — — 138,561
1,109,612 2,595 — — 1,112,207
2,227,366 168,536 63,532 8,849 2,468,283
527,396 24,883 15,299 13,318 580,896
98,924 8,541 3,885 227 111,577
4,714,324 278,854 99,804 29,310 5,122,292
37,500 — — — 37,500
1,028,229 34,148 847 5,320 1,068,544
38,814 9,714 — 720 49,248
71,168 — — — 71,168
2,854,718 192,475 99,888 35,694 3,182,775
273,085 14,350 1,700 — 289,135
89,850 6,748 3,257 4,381 104,236
4,393,364 257,435 105,692 46,115 4,802,606
320,960 21,419 (5,888) (16,805) 319,686
998,408 66,099 10,986 7,845 1,083,338
C (i) (26,270) 8,141 1,257 27,960 11,088
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OooooOodd
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
804 15 1,714 90
(804) (15) (1,714) (%0)
(i) 500
(i)
(i)
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oOoOooodn
2016 12 31
O]
( ( ( ( (
) ) ) ) ) ) )
66,247 85 18,865 —_ —_ 468,131 553,328
101,482 105,159 2,000 — — — 208,641
— 80,442 86,742 — — 24 167,208
- 170,775 29 —_ —_ - 170,804
— 352,938 442,532 197,312 42,946 — 1,035,728
G 15,529 532,820 919,444 588,000 706,599 39,992 2,802,384
ii

i) 3,015 122,827 187,363 326,963 156,607 21,278 818,053
25,929 37,816 51,983 13,095 4,480 41,601 174,904
212,202 1,402,862 1,708,958 1,125,370 910,632 571,026 5,931,050
- 39,000 145,050 — —_ — 184,050
183,673 588,635 208,588 — 550 — 981,446
— 53,943 29,780 — — — 83,723
- 117,349 2,993 — —_ — 120,342
2,202,231 584,576 539,205 311,399 1,879 — 3,639,290
— 85,346 197,319 47,340 56,941 — 386,946
82,716 17,322 34,817 7,247 4,056 4,599 150,757
2,468,620 1,486,171 1,157,752 365,986 63,426 4,599 5,546,554
(2,256,418) (83,309) 551,206 759,384 847,206 566,427 384,496
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OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)

oOoOooodn
2015 12 31
(O)
( ( ( ( (
) ) ) ) ) ) )
71,059 — 3,416 — — 436,714 511,189
57,103 16,974 6,726 — — — 80,803
—_ 81,118 37,620 16 —_ 22 118,776
— 138,320 141 100 — — 138,561
— 452,100 461,183 186,955 11,969 — 1,112,207
(i) 19,429 504,373 892,359 602,310 418,369 31,443 2,468,283
1

(i) 296 63,979 113,642 261,416 139,919 1,644 580,896
23,220 14,711 25,133 8,984 8,952 30,577 111,577
171,107 1,271,575 1,540,220 1,059,781 579,209 500,400 5,122,292
— 13,500 24,000 — — — 37,500
225,398 312,518 528,022 1,010 1,000 596 1,068,544
—_ 37,039 11,874 335 — — 49,248
— 67,976 3,192 — — — 71,168
1,334,115 819,432 665,351 362,891 986 — 3,182,775
—_ 80,028 97,281 41,392 70,434 — 289,135
57,151 13,821 19,673 7,926 938 4,727 104,236
1,616,664 1,344,314 1,349,393 413,554 73,358 5,323 4,802,606
(1,445,557) (72,739) 190,827 646,227 505,851 495,077 319,686
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OoOoOoOoOodno
2016 12 31
535,313 — — 535,313
215,845 — — 215,845
87,364 74,772 1,021 163,157
15,172 27,835 31,929 74,936
84,999 1,500 — 86,499
938,693 104,107 32,950 1,075,750
2015 12 31
631,431 — — 631,431
149,138 — — 149,138
81,574 50,887 1,106 133,567
16,618 29,142 31,278 77,038
91,405 759 — 92,164
970,166 80,788 32,384 1,083,338
O] PBOC
(i)
(iii)
@
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CBRC

CBRC
2013 2012 CBRC

2018 Tier 1
Tier 1 7.50 8.50 10.50
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CBRC
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
Tier 1 8.64 9.12
Tier 1 9.65 9.17
11.98 11.87
Tier 1
48,935 48,935
58,636 58,636
(1,142) 3,584
27,263 23,362
73,911 64,555
136,666 118,668
48 75
Tier 1 344,317 317,815
Tier 1
(914) (854)
(840) (802)
Tier 1 342,563 316,159
Tier 1 O 40,107 1,828
Tier 1 382,670 317,987
Tier 2
Tier 2 65,368 69,299
26,963 24,447
7 7
475,008 411,740
3,964,448 3,468,135
(i) 2016 12 31 Tier 1 46

52
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2016 2015 2016 2015
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
( ) ) ) )
217,498 179,930 219,014 185,152
1,035,728 1,112,207 1,040,380 1,124,181
9,493 8,705 9,443 8,706
31,288 31,295 31,683 32,381
76,242 77,779 78,920 83,181
269,923 171,356 268,664 171,501
2016 12 31
) ( ) ( ) )
961 218,053 — 219,014
— 264,700 775,680 1,040,380
— 9,443 — 9,443
— 31,683 — 31,683
8,124 70,796 — 78,920
— 268,664 — 268,664
2015 12 31
)« ) ( ) )
833 184,319 — 185,152
— 450,781 673,400 1,124,181
— 8,706 — 8,706
— 32,381 — 32,381
7,615 75,566 — 83,181
— 171,501 — 171,501
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(b)
Q) Q) (i)
( )« )« ) «( )
2016 12 31
2,947 6,683 — 9,630
— - 1 1
— 50,699 — 50,699
— 4,581 — 4,581
— 3,363 2 3,365
— 42,232 — 42,232
— 1,769 — 1,769
42,080 354,452 13 396,545
375 20,279 83 20,737
25 116,025 — 116,050
— 22 - 22
768 — — 768
46,195 600,105 99 646,399
— 2,811 2 2,813
— 40,045 — 40,045
— 2,201 — 2,201
— 45,057 2 45,059
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Q) () D))

( )« DI ¢ ) )
2015 12 31
479 8,057 — 8,536
— — 1 1
— 15,226 — 15,226
— 2,457 — 2,457
— 1,288 3 1,291
17 11,472 — 11,489
— 1,008 — 1,008
40,313 257,120 11 297,444
— 352 70 422
671 74,643 — 75,314
— 10 — 10
424 — 22 446
41,904 371,633 107 413,644
— 992 3 995
1 10,118 — 10,119
— 304 — 304
1 11,414 3 11,418
®
(i)
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( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( (
) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) )
2016 1 — 3 11 70 22 107 ®3) [€)
_ — 1 — — — 1 (€)) (€Y
_ _ — 1 7 — 8 — —
— — () — — (22) (24) 2 2
_ — — 1 6 — 7 — —
2016 12 31 1 — 2 13 83 — 99 @) [©)
_ — 1 — — — 1 (€)) (€Y
( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( (
) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) )
2015 2 — 5 12 127 — 146 (10) (10)
_ — &) — — 22 20 7 7
— — — — an — an — —
— — — — (40) — (40) — —
@ — — (D) — — @ — —
2015 12 31 1 — 3 11 70 22 107 ®3) )
_ — &) — — 22 20 7 7
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@
(i) CITIC
65.37 CITIC
(i) cITIC CITIC
2015 23 BBVA
BBVA 9.6
BBVA CSRC 2016 22
2015 12 31 2,147,469 ,539
CNTC CNTC 4.39
CNTC 2016 17
2016 24 CBRC CNTC
2016 12 31
4.74 2,320,177,000

2016 17 2016 11 16 CBRC
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2016 12 31
O)
( ) ( ) ( )
367 13 —
1,204 — —
(588) (333) —
— 64 ) an
(804) — —
2015 12 31
BBVA
( ) ( ) ( )
268 — _
154 — _
(649) — —
— 66 383 8
(673) — _
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2016 12 31

®

19,436 5,490 —
(182) (64) —

19,254 5,426 —
170 5 —

1 — —

693 — —

28 — 19

663 — 1,111
10,743 — —

17,038 159 —
40 — 23
74,011 22,715 64
128 395 —
266 — —

257 — —

8,181 — —
1,586 — —

7,787 290 —
1,664 — —
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2015 12 31

BBVA

14,793 1,094 _
(151) — —
14,642 1,094 —

61 100 —
406 — 976
9,271 988 —

21,887 — —
11 112 —
49,555 — 22
110 — —
118 — —

968 255 —
90 — —
1,000 — —

432 — —

8,574 — —
2,780 39,755 —

i) BBVA CNTC
BBVA CNTC
CNTC 61(e)

©

2016 12 31 8.27
2015 12 31 11.63
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2016 12 31 2015 12 31
( ) ( )
11,475 13,669
8,120 17,042
1,981 2,729
21,576 33,440
CITIC



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 DO0000O00o0o00b0OoO0Odnoo(Es9d)

ooooooo
62
@
2016 12 31
2016 12 31
( ( ( ( (

) ) ) ) )
— 22 458,390 458,412 458,412
— — 452,966 452,966 452,966
— — 126,128 126,128 126,128
1,527 9,747 — 11,274 11,274
— 20,737 — 20,737 20,737
1,527 30,506 1,037,484 1,069,517 1,069,517

2015 12 31
( ( ( ( (

) ) ) ) )
— 10 147,605 147,615 147,615
— — 825,016 825,016 825,016
— — 139,971 139,971 139,971
5,306 5,152 — 10,458 10,458
— 422 — 422 422
5,306 5,584 1,112,592 1,123,482 1,123,482

58(a)(viii)
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(®)
2016 12 31
956,504 2015 12 31 659,118
2016 12 31
7,032 2015 5,808
1,813 2015 390 1,013
2015 228 2016 12 31
949 2015 12 31
387
2016 12 31
62,000 2015 12 31 25,266
20,000 2015 12 31
2016 12 31
57,401
2015 36,675
20,000 2015 7,561
2016 12 31 205,416 2015 12
72,549 CITIC

©
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63
2016 12

2016 12
2015 12
44,656

31

31
31 41,333
2015 12 31 38,925

4,499 2015 12 31 2,408

690

2016 12

2015

64

2016 12

© (iv)
2016 12 31
2015 12 31 286

31
69,971 2015 42,972
39,506

23(c)

31

37
119,126
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2016 12 31
49,155
2016 12 31
23(c)
54,025
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2016 12 31 2015 12 31
( )
550,987 509,851
187,080 64,800
3,372 1,101
162,708 98,276
63,590 25,349
43,546 10,384
170,804 137,210
32,081 29,849
2,592,552 2,304,874
479,591 328,994
217,498 179,930
1,030,059 1,109,807
22,249 22,249
17,166 15,448
838 801
12,589 7,930
52,703 37,352
5,639,413 4,884,295
184,000 37,400
981,326 1,069,630
50,042 32,399
41,478 8,439
120,342 71,110
3,429,060 2,994,826
8,062 7,610
6,050 4,694
36,447 37,422
244 2
369,829 273,262
43,831 35,863
5,270,711 4,572,657
48,935 48,935
34,955
61,359 61,359
@1,737) 4,790
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27,263 23,362
73,370 64,350
124,557 108,842
368,702 311,638
5,639,413 4,884,295
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(i)

(iii)
@iv)

2016 12 31

2015
O)
(i)

(iii)
(iv)

2015 12 31
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/

48,935 — 61,359 4,790 23,362 64,350 108,842 311,638
_ _ — — — — 39,010 39,010
— — — (6,527) — — — (6,527)

— — — (6,527) — — 39,010 32,483

— 34,955 — — — — — 34,955

_ — — — 3,901 — (3,901) —

_ _ — — — 9,020 (9,020) —
_ _ — — — — (10,374) (10,374)
48,935 34,955 61,359 (1,737) 27,263 73,370 124,557 368,702
46,787 51,619 435 19,394 50,350 87,138 255,723
_ — — — — 39,672 39,672

— — 4,355 — — — 4,355

_ — 4,355 — — 39,672 44,027

2,148 9,740 — — — — 11,888
_ _ — 3,968 — (3,968) —

_ _ — — 14,000 (14,000) —
48,935 61,359 4,790 23,362 64,350 108,842 311,638
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@
2016 12 31

0] — — — — — — —
— 783 868 313 176 — 2,140
(i) — — — — — — —
(i) — — — — — — —
Huang Fang — — — — — — —
Wan Liming —_ —_ —_ —_ —_ —_ —_
300 — — — — — 300
300 — — — — — 300
He Cao 150 — — — — — 150
Chen Lihua 150 — — — — — 150
Qian Jun —_ —_ — — — — —
— 700 659 298 168 — 1,825
300 — — — — — 300
300 — — — — — 300
300 — — — — — 300
— 340 791 253 154 — 1,538
— 290 382 42 141 — 855
— 240 836 294 174 — 1,544

2016
(ii) — — — — — — —
(iii) 150 — — — — — 150
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2015 12 31
(i) — — — — — — —
— 700 691 392 195 — 1,978
(i) — — — — — — —
(i) — — — — — — —
300 — — — — — 300
300 — — — — — 300
300 — — — — — 300
275 — — — — — 275
Cao Guogiang — 600 632 378 190 — 1,800
Shu Yang —_ —_ — — — — —
300 — — — — — 300
Jia Xiangsen 100 — — — — — 100
Zheng Wei 175 — — — — — 175
Cheng Pusheng — 300 1,999 227 140 — 2,666
Wen Shuping — 290 1,277 25 217 — 1,809
Ma Haiging — 223 2,202 282 191 — 2,898

2015
(iv) _ — — — — — —
Gonzalo José _ ) . . . . . . o
Torafio Vallin

) — 583 549 329 163 — 1,624
(vi) — — — — — — —
(iv) — 328 2,071 316 164 — 2,879
(iv) — 290 1,768 254 189 — 2,501
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@ 2016 2015 12 31

CITIC CITIC

(i) 2016
(i) 2016

(iv) 2015
) 2015 10

(vi) 2015
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(b)
2016 12 31 2015

2016 12 31 2015 12 31

2016

2015

67
(i) 2017 CBRC

E

54(c)(ii)

70 30 1,400,000,000 600,000,000

(ii) 2017 22
51
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Chapter 14 Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and

Other Comprehensive Income

For the pear ended 31 December 2006
(Amonmts in milicns of Renminki onless othermise stated)

Year ended 31 December

MNotes 1016 2015
Intersst income 13474 21 50681
Interest Expense {107, 3 36) flll,!!lj
Net lntersst lhoome [ 106, 138 lﬂl,‘ijj
Fee and commission income 45,360 37639
Fee and commission expense {3.080) {1.965)
Net for and commlsdon Ibcome 7T 42 FR0 55,5?4
Met trading gain 8 3547 3633
et galn from investment securities a 1,682 1,192
Met hedging gain 10 — 1
Other operating income 512 &l
Operatlag lacome 154,159 145545
Opemting expenses 11 (47,272) w
Operatng proflt before npalrment 106,887 94943
Impairment losses on
— Loans and advances to customers (45,715) (35,120}
— Others (6:573) (4.917)
Total limpalfnehi losses 12 (52,288) Hﬂ,ﬂjﬂ
Revaluation gain on investment properties 8 Fr
Share of profic of assoclates 1 53
Profit before mx 54,608 54 086
Income tax expense 13 (1Z2,822) (13,246)
Profli for the vear 41,786 41,740
Profit atttibutable tos
Equity holders of the Bank 41,629 41,158
Nnn-nunl'm]ﬂn.g Intep=sis 157 582
Profli for the vear 41,786 41,740
Dither mmpr:lucn:h: {loss)ilacome, et of taxe
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or
loss when specific conditions are met (et of tax):
— Fair value changes on available-for-sale financial assets (6627 4275
— Exchange difference on translating forelgn opemtions 1,897 1364
— Oithers — 3
Items that will not be reclasified to profit or loss
(net of ax)
— Met changes on the measurement of defined benefir
plan 5 ]
— Crthers — 8
Oiher comprehenstve (loss)/lncome, net of tax 14 (4,725 544
Total comprehensbre licome For the year 37,061 47,384
Tatal comprehenshre lncome attrlbuate tos
Equity holders of the Bank 36,903 46,573
Non-contmolling interests 158 &09
Earnlngs per share attHbutable to the ordlnary
shareholdets of the Bank
Basic and diluted earnings per share (RME) 15 0.85 0.88

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

1580 China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
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Chapter 14 Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As ar 31 December 2016
{Am ouris in milions of Renminb! onles othermwise stated)

31 Drecember 31 Diecember
Motes 2016 2015
Aszets
Cash and balances with central banks 16 553,328 511,189
Diepasits with banks and non-bank financial institutions 17 DR, G 1 B®O,BDA
Precious metals 3372 1191
Placements with and loans to banks and non-bank
financial insticutions 18 167,208 L1B,776
Financial assets at fair value through profit or los 19 4,911 26,220
Dherivathre fnancial assets 20 47,366 13,768
Financial assets held under resale agreements 21 170, B 138,561
Interest receivables 13 32,922 30,512
Loans and advances to customens 23 2,802, 384 2468283
Available-for-sale financial assets 24 534,533 373770
Held-to-maturity investments 25 217,498 179,930
I nwestments classified as receivables 5 1,035,728 1112207
Inwestments in associates bl 1,111 a7G
Property, plant and equipment 9 17,834 15,983
Intangible assets 201 B2
Inwestment properties an 305 325
Goodwill 31 914 B
Dieferred tax assets 32 1,697 7.981
Cither assets 35 SE,054 40,141
Total assets 5931,050 5,122,292
Liabilities
Bowrowings from central banks 184,050 F7.500
Depadr: from banks and non-bank financial institutions a5 FR1, 440 1,068, 544
Placements from banks and non-bank financial institutions an 83,723 49748
Diervative fnanclal liabilities 20 45,059 11,418
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements a7 120,342 TL168
Diepasits from customers ag 3,639,290 3,182,775
Accrued staff costs a9 B.819 8,302
Taxes pﬂ;rnblc 40 6, 364 4,693
Interest payable 41 3155 A e
Provislons 42 i 2
Diebt securities issued 43 386, 946 289,135
Dieferred tax liabilities a2 11 10
COrther labilities 44 53,105 41,652
Total Uabilities 5,546,554 4,802,606

2016 Ansuel Report 161
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Chapter 14 Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continucd)

Asae 31 December 20016
{Amonmts in milives of Renminh orless othermise stated)

31 December 31 December
Moes 2016 2015

Equity
Share capital 43 48,935 48,933
Preference shares 46 34,955 —
Capital reserve 47 58,636 58536
Other comprehensive (loss)/income 48 (1, 142) 3,584
Surplus reserve 49 27,263 23,362
General reserve 50 THh91 64,3335
Retained earmings 51 136,666 118 5658
Total equlity attHbutable to equlty holders of the Bank 379,224 31?,?4{!
Mon-contwlling interests 52 5,272 1946
Total equlty 384,496 319586
Total llabllitles and equity 5931, 050 3,122,292

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 22 Manch 2017.

L1 Qingping Sut Dreshun Fang Heylng L1 Pelxia Company stamp
Chairperseu Praidems Vice President and Cremeral Manager of
Chief Financial Officer  Findwer Department

162 China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
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Chapter 14 Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the pear ended 31 December 2006
{Am ouris in milions of Renminb! onles othermwise stated)

Eopty abaiable o squiey bokdee o e Baak Koot in g Lo
Okt iy ekt eyy
R Pebmn Cold wapebede  Supks Genl  Bded  duelolln  honian
Soms opled et e bowelon) rein mire einkg bombdiils  bolder  Toulegly
Aot | o 204 815 L I nE W o m S
{7 Peofclos e prar - - - - - - 4 i ] iw
1) Chber comprebensie oo foom: i3 - - - (L8] - - - 1 - i
Toal omprbena i ome - - - (L 1] - - i 1z H L
(14 Troced From sz of pofinct 1hem L] - s - - - - - - - W
{1 Froomdhs oy rker ety i mmcen s bl i) - - - - - - - - us A
W Mofppicon
= ﬂm-*m ] - bl - (3800) -
— A popicis v srond wem ] - - (X (% -
— T divschotion # mhiny busrlalis
e ek 1 - - - - - - m@ - -
— Dividend o v oa-couoling
i - - - - - - - m -
— e dirichorion  scher ity
itnmese bollry i - - - - - - - - [it] 14
Ao 31 Dhrmbe 2016 B W TN M WMy T Lk 13 NN
Fopinyscrborsbl i oquiiy hoblens ol e k. Bammlingineres
b Doy O iy
Bem apinl memt o nome T [ ] g ivwkilinin blles  Toud epiy
[ —— Wa RN m B WH AW BH L
it P e - - - - T I " BT
1) Ot e e W - - W - - - m -
Tonl seprbein nsm - - W - - w8 @ oW AW
(4 Chuoperin ooy i o i o chane of el - L] - - - - [541) - (%]
{7 Procechs o e mmnce 1k Ah - - - - -
i ok
— Mppicicre sph e ¥ - - T L
~ Apmpicices o e sv T T
— Tirkdends dion i oiker oy insrmmens bobds it - - - = = = = ] im
dgir 31 Dhrmber 201§ oy M MmN Wl I L e

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consclidated financial statements.
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Chapter 14 Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the pear ended 31 December 2006
{Amonmts in milives of Renminh orless othermise stated)

¥ear ended 31 December

016 2015
Operating acthitles
Profit before tax 54,608 54986
Adjustments fon
— revaluation loss on investments, derivatives and investment properties 1,068 519
= furratamrat paia (812) {111
— net (gain)floss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (62} 9
— unrealised Fnr:lEn mdm.ua: loss 850 104
— impairment losses 52,288 40,037
— depreciation and amortisation 2,703 2454
— interest expense on debt securities issued 14,052 8,382
— dividend income from equity investment (700 {10}
— income tax paid (14,155) (14,749}
110,470 91,521
Changes In operating assets and llabllites:
{Increase)/decrease in balances with central banks (46,833) 20,959
Diecrease/ (increase) in deposits with banks and
non-bank financial institutions 5,967 (2.400)
Increase in placements with and loans to banks and
non-bank financial institutions (49.368) (34.393)
ﬂmml:}fﬂ.ﬂ:mﬂu in financial assets at fair value 'ﬂumld:. the p.mﬂr ar loss (37.B51) 1,382
Increase in financial assets held under resale agreements {32, 196) (2757
Increase in loans and advances to customers (369, 112) I:E;SE,ESZ:I
Diecrease/ (increase) in investments classified as receivables 75,619 (459,657}
Innﬂlﬂf{dﬂ:ruu:l in E-u.m:rw]ngl from central banks 146,550 I:l Z,SSEI:I
{Drecrease)fincrease in deposits from banks and
mon-bank financial institutions (87, 181) 380,182
Increase in placements from banks and non-bank financial institutions 33,747 29,350
Diecrease in fnancial liabilities ar fair value through profic or loss - (573
Increase in financial assets sold under repurchase agreements 49,172 20 550
Increase in deposits from customers 443232 323,142
Increase in other operating assets {30, 769) (29, 169)
Increase in other operating liabilities T304 430
Subtoral 108,341 {11 2,456)
Net cash flows from/(used ln) operating acthritles 18,811 (20,835)

164 China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
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Chapter 14 Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continucd)

For the pear ended 31 December 2006
{Am ouris in milions of Renminb! onles othermwise stated)

Year ended 31 December

Motes 2016 2015

[hvestlng actibvitles
Proceeds from disposal and redemption of investments 545,058 GAR920
Proceeds from dispasal of property, plant and equipment,

land use rights, and other assets 109 22
Cash recetved from equity investment income &0 69
Payments on acquisition of investments {714, 490) (773.111)
Payments on acquisition of equipment and other assets (7. 708) (5427
Met cash paid for acquisition of o subsidiary — 27
Met cash paid for acquisition of an associate prs {1l —
Met cash flows used 1l livwestlag actbrites (176,451) {1‘1‘1,554]
Flaandhg activitles
Cash recetved from share capital issuance — 11,BEE
Cash received from prEErul.ne shares 46 34,955 —
Cash recetved from other equity instruments issued 52 3,324 —
Cash received from debt securities iznoed G0, 406 F10,065
Cash paid for redemption of debt securities issued {507, B40) (153,29a)
Interest paid on debt securities issued (14,192) (8.420)
Dhvidends paid {10.530) {137)
Cash paid for transactions with non-controlling Interests — (6.772)
Met cash flows from fihancing activitles 114,123 154,229
Met Lncreasel (decrease) Ln cash and cash equivalents 152,483 (9.160)
Cash and cash equivalents as at 1 January T2, 360 228,375
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash

equivalents 6,509 7.149
Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 53 385,350 226,364
Cash flows from opetatlng acthritles lnclude:
Interest recetved 213,544 207,743
Interest paid (94, 307) {102,040)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Chapter 14 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

{Amommts in milicns of Renminhi pmless otharmise stated)

1 Corporate information

China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited (the “Bank™ or “CMCE") is a joint stock company incorporated in the
Penple’s Republic of China (the *PRC” or *Mainland China”™) on 31 Dlecember 2006, Headguartered in Beijing, the
Bank’s registered office is located at Mo.9 Chacyangmen Beidajie, Dongcheng District, Beijing, China. The Bank lsved
Its A shares and H shares on Shanghai Steck Exchange and the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, respectively on 27 April 2007,

The Bank operates under financial services certificate Mo, Bo006H1 11000001 issued by the China Banking Regulatory
Commission (the “CBRC), and unified soclal credie code Mo, 91110000101 630723E issued by the State Administration
of Industry and Commerce of the PRC.

The principal activitles of the Bank and it subsidiaries (collectively the *Group™) are the provision of corporate and
personal banking services, conducting treasury business, the provision of asset management, finance leasing and other
non-banking financial services.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group mainly operates in Mainland China with branches coverng 31 provinces,
autonomous regicns and municipalities. In addition, the Bank’s subsidiaries have operations in Mainland China, the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of PRC ("Hong Kong™) and other overseas countries and regicns.

For the purposs of these consolidated Anancial statements, Mainland China refers to the PRC c:rJ.ud:lnE Hun.E Kun.E.
the Macau Special Administrative Region of the PRC ("Macan®™) and Talwan. Overseas refers to countries and reglons
ather than Mainland China.

The consolidated fimancial statements were approved by the Board of Directors of the Bank on 22 March 2017.
2 Basis of preparation
These consolidated financial starements have been prepared on a going concern basis.
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016 comprise the Bank and its subsidiaries.
fa) Accounting year
The accounting year of the Group is from 1 January to 31 December.

(b} Functional currency and presentation currency

The functional currency of the Bank is Renminbi ("RMB"). The functional currencies of overseas subsidiaries
are determined in accordance with the primary economic envirenment in which they operate, and are translared
into Renminbi for the prepamation of the consolidated financial statements according to MNote 4 (b)(il). The
consolidated financial statements of the Group are presented in Renminbi and, unless otherwise stated, expressed
in millizns of Benminbi
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Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable International Pinancial
Beporting Standards (*IFR.Ss") as issued by the Intemnational Accounting Standards Board ("LIASBE™), and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). These consclidated financial statements also comply

with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The 5tock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as medified by
the revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets, and financial assets and Amancial liabilities (including derbrative
Instruments) at fair value through profit or loss and investment properties, which are carried at fair value,

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.

It also requires management to exercise s judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The
areas Involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant
to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Mote 5.

(2) Mew and amended standards adopted by the Group

The Group has adopted the following new or amendments to the International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFB.55™), issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ("TASE™), that are mandatorily effective for
the current Fear and relevant tor the Gmu.p.

Amendments to [FRS 11 Acquisition of Interests in Joint Operations
Amendments to [AS 16 and [AS 38 Cladfication of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amaortisation
Amendments to [FRSs Annual Improvements to [FRSs 2012 — 2014 cycle
Amendments to IFRS 10, Imvestment Entities: Applying the Consclidation Exception
IFRS 12 and IAS 28
Amendments to [AS 1 Disclosure Initiathee
Amendments to [AS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements

Amendments to IFRS 11: Aquisition of [nterests in Joint Opemtions

The amendments to [FR5 11 - Joint Arrangements provide specific guidance on accounting for the acquisition
of an interest in a joint operation that is a business. The amendments require an investor to apply the principles
of business combination accounting when it acquires an intersst in a joint operation that constitutes a business.

Amendments to [AS 16 and [AS 38 Chofication of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and A mortisation

The amendments to IAS 16 — Property, Plant and Equipment, clarify that depreciation of an item of property,
plant and equipment based on reverme generated by using the asset is not approprate. The amend ments to
IAS 38 — Inmangible Assets, establish a rebuttable presumption that amortisation of an intangible asset based
on revenue penerated by using the asset is inapproprate. The presumption may only be rebutted in certain
limited circumstances.

Amendments to [FRSx Annwal Improvemenes to [FRSs 20012 — 2014 cycle

The Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012 — 2014 Cycle include a number of amendments to various [FRSs,
including the amendments IFRS 5 — Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations regarding
methods of disposal, the amendments to IFRS 7 — Financlal Imstruments: Disclosures reparding servicing
contracts, the amendments to IAS 19 — Employee Benefits regarding discount rates, the amendments o LAS
34 — Interim Financlal Reporting regarding disclosure of information.
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3  Statement of compliance (Continued)

{a) MNew and amended standards adopted by the Group [Cantinued)
Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IA5 28: [avestment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Fxception

The amendments to IFRS 10 clarify that the exception from preparing consclidated financial statements is
available to intermediate parent entitles which are subsidiaries of investment entities. The exception is available
when the investment entity parent measures its subsidiardies ar fair value. The intermediate parent would alsa
need to meet the other criteria for exception listed in [FRS 10. The amendments also clarify that an imvestment
entity should consalidate a subsidiary which is not an investment entity and which provides services in support of
the imvestment entlty’s investment activities, such that it acts as an extenslon of the investment entity. However,
the amendments also confirm that if the subsidiary is ltself an investment entity, the imrestment entity parent
should measure its investment in the subsidiary ar fair value through profit or loss. This approach is required
regardless of whether the subsidiary provides investment-related services to the parent or to thind parties.

The amendments to IFRS 12 clarify an investment entity thar prepares financial statements in which all of
its subsidiaries are measured at fair value through profit or loss in accordance with IFRS 10 shall present the
disclosures relating to imestment entities required by IFRS 12,

The amendments to [A5 28 allow an entity which is itself not an investment entity, but has an interest in an
associate or a jodnt venture which is an imvestment entity, o policy cholce to retin the fair value measurement
applied by the associate or joint venture, or to urmwind the fair value measurement and perform a consolidation
at the level of the assoclate or joint venture for their subsidiaries.

Amendments to [AS I: Disclosure Tnitia tive

The amendments clarify guidance in IAS 1 on matedality and aggregation, the presentation of subtotals, the
structure of financial satements and the disclosure of accounting policies. Although the amendments do not
require specific changes, they clarify a number of presentation isswes and highlight that preparers are permitted
to tailor the format and presentation of the financial statements to their circumstances and the needs of users.

Amendments to [AS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements

The IASE has amended IAS 27 — Separate Financial Statements. The amendment allows entities to use squiny
method to account for imvestments in subsidiades, joint ventures and assoclates in their separate financial
statements. The Group used equity method to account for investment in associate in separate financial statements.
The adoption of this new amendment does not have a significant impact on the Bank’s financial statements.

The adoption of thess amendments does not have a significant impact on the operating results, comprehensive
income, or financial position of the Group.
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3  Statement of compliance (Continued)

{b) Standards and amendments that are not yet effective and have not been adopted before
their effective dates by the Group in 2016

The Group has not adopted the following new and amended standards that have been issued but are not yet

effective.
Effective far annual perlods
beglonlng an of after
Amendments to 145 12 Income Tazes 1 January 2017
Amendments o A5 7 Starement of Cash Flows lfnmq!ﬁl]"
Amendmenis to IFRS 12 [ASE Annual Improvements 2014 - 2016 cpde 1 January 2017
Amendments to 145 28 [A5B Annual Improvements 2014 — 2016 cyde 1 January 2018
IFRS 15 Bevenue from Contract with Customers 1 January 2018
IFRS % Financial [mtruments 1 January 2018
Amendmenis to IFRS 4 Applying IFRS 9 Finandial [nstovments with 1 January 2018
[FRE 4 Insurance Contrcis
Amendmenis to 145 40 Transfer of Investment Propery 1 January 2018
Amendments to IFRS 2 Share — bared Paymenc 1 January 2018
IFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019
Amendments to JFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Asets between An [ovestor The amendments were ariginally incended to be
and [A5 28 and s Asseciabe or Joint Yentupe effective for annual perinds beginning on or
afier | Janumary 2016, The effective date has
now been deferved ind efinively.

Amendments to IAS 12: [ncome Tares

The IASE has issued amendments to [AS 12 — Income taxes. These amendments on the recognition of deferred
tax assets for unrealised losses clarify how to account for deferred tax assets related o debt instruments measured
at fair value, The Group anticipates that the adoption of the amendments will not have a significant impact on
the Group's consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to A5 7r Saement of Cash Hows

The IASE has isued an amendment to [AS 7 intreducing an additional disclosure thar will enable users of
Anancial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities. The amendment is part of
the LASE's DHsclosure Initiarive, which continues to explore how financial satement disclasure can be improved.
The Group anticipates that the adoption of the amendments will not have a significant impact on the Group's
consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 12: IASB Annval Improvements 2014 — 2016 cpcle

The IASE Annual Improvements 2014 — 2016 Cycle include the amendments to IFRS 12 Disclosure of
Interest in Other Entities. These amendments clarify the scope of IFRS 12 by specifying thar the disclosure
requirements, expect for those summarised financial information for subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates,
apply to an entity’s interests which are classified as held for sale or discontinued opeations in accordance with
IFRS 5. The Group anticipates that the adoption of the amendments will not have a significant impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to [AF 28: [458 Anoval Improvemen ts 2004 — 2008 cypole

The IASE Annual Improvements 2014 — 2016 Cycle include the amendments to IAS 28 — Investments in
Assoclates and Joint Ventures. These amendments clarfy thar the election to measure investees at fair value
through profit or loss is available for each imvestment in an associate or joint venture on an investment-by-
imvestment basis, upon initial recognition. The Group anticlpates that the adoption of the amendments will
not have a significant impact on the Group®s consolidated financial statements.
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3  Statement of compliance (Continued)

(b} Standards and amendments that are not yet effective and have not been adopted before
their effective dates by the Group in 2016 (Continued)

JFRS 15: Revenpe from Contmcts with Costomers

IFRS 15 esmablishes a comprehensive framework for determining when to recognise revenue and how much
revenwe to recognise through a 5-step approach. The core principle is that o company should recognise revenue
to depict the transfer of promised poods or services to the customer in an amount that refleces the consideration
to which the company expects to be entitled in exchange For those goods or services. It moves away from a
revenue recognition model based on an “earnings processes’ to an “asset-liability’ approach based on transfer of
contral. IFRS 15 provides specific guidance on capitalization of contract cost and license arrangements. It also
includes a cohesive set of disclosure requirements about the nature, amount, timing and uncertaingr of revenue
and cash flows arising from the entity's contraces with customers. The Group anticipates that the adoption of
this new standard will not have a significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

IFRS 9: Financial [narumenes

The complete wersion of IFRS 9 — Financial Instruments was issued in July 2014, It replaces the guidance in IAS
39 — Financial Instraments: Recognition and Measurement that relates to the classification and measurement
of financial instruments.

IFRS 9 retains but simplifies the mixed measurement model and establishes three primary measurement categories
for financial assets: amo rtlsed cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (MOCT7) and fir value through
profit or loss. The basis of classification depends on the entity’s business model and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial asset. Investments in squity instruments are required to be measured ar fair value
through profic or loss with the irrevocable option at Inception to present changes in fair value in ©0CI in which
case the accumulated fair value changes in OCI will not be recycled to the profit or loss in the hamare. For
financial liabilities there were no changes to classification and measurement, except for the recognition of changes
in owm credit risk in other comprehensive income for liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss.

In relation to the impairment of Anancial assets, IFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed ta
an incurred credit loss model under IAS 39. The expected credit loss model requires an entity to account for
expected credit losses and changes in those expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition. The measurement of the loss allowance generally depends on whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition of the instrument. IFRS 9 requires an entiny
to recognise lifetime expected credit losses for all financial instruments for which there have been significant
increases in credit risk since initial recognition considering all reasonable and supportable information, including
that which is forward-locking.

The new general hedge accounting requirements retain the three types o fhedge accounting mechanisms currently
available in [45 39. Under IFRS 9, greater flexibilicy has been introduced to the types of transactions eligible
for hedge accounting, specifically broadening the types of instruments that quality for hedging instraments and
the types of risk components of non-financial items that are eligible for hedge accounting. In addition, the
effectiveness test has been owerhauled and replaced with the principle of an “economic relationship’. Retrospective
assessment of hedge effectivensss is also no longer required. Enhanced disclosure requirements about an entity’s
risk management activitles have also been introduced.

The Group is analysing its business models, loans and other financial instruments’ contract terms and changes to
its existing credit exposures to assess the potential impact on its financial satements resulting from the adoption
of IFRS 9. Given the nature of the Group’s opentions, it is expected to have an impact on the classification of
financial instruments, the calculation, amount and timing of its allowances for impairment losses for financial
assets as well as the nature and extend of financial instraments disclosure. Implementation of IFRS 2 will also have
an impact on the rsk management crganisation, process and key functions, budgeting and performance review,
as well as the Information Technology systems. The Group is starting to collect and prepare the information
related to the expected credit loss model, updating financial instruments impairment policies and procedures as
well as launching redevant staff training.

The Group has not completed its assessment of the full impact of adopting IFRS 9 and therefore its possible
impact on the Group’s operating results and financial position has not yet been quantified.
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3  Statement of compliance (Continued)

{b) Standards and amendments that are not yet effective and have not been adopted before
their cffective dates by the Group in 2016 (Continned)

Amendments to IFRS 4: Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4 Insumnce Con tracts

On 12 September 2016, the [ASBE issued amendments o [FRS 4, Insurance Contracts, Applying [FRS 9
Financial Instruments with IFRS 4, which prm"l.d.ﬂ teo alternative measures to address the different effective
dates of IFRS 9 and the forthcoming insurance contracts standard. These measures include a temponary option
for companies whose activities are predominantly connected with insurance to defer the effective date of IFRS
9 until the eadier of the effective date of the forthcoming insurance contracts standard and the annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021, as well as an approach that allows an entity to remove from profit
or loss the effects of certain accounting mismatches that may cccur before the forthcoming Insurance contraces
standard is applied. The Group anticipates that the adoption of the amendments will not have a significant
impact on the Group’s consolidated Anancial statements.

Amendments to [AS 40: Transfer of [nvestment Propenty

On 8 December 2016, the [ASE issued amendments to [AS 40 — Transber of I nvestment Property. These
amendments specify that an entity shall transfer a property to, or from, imvestment poperty when, and only
when, there is a change in use of o property supported by evidence that a change in use has occurred; They
alse clardfy that the list of circumstances set out in LAS 40 is non-exhausthve list of examples of evidence that a
change in use has ocourred instead of an exhaustive list. The examples have been expanded to include assets under
construction and development and not only transfers of completed properties. The Group anticipates that the
adopticon of the amendments will not have a significant impact on the Group’s consclidated financial statements.

Amendments to I[FRS 2: Share — based Payment

On 20 June 2016, the JASE issued an amendment to IFRS 2, “Share-based Payment™, addressing three
classification and measurement issues. The amendment addresses the accounting for cash-settled share based
payments and equity-settled awards that include a “net settlement” feature in respect of withholding taxes.

The amendment clarifies the measurement basis for cash-settled share-based Paymments and the accounting for
modifications that change an award from cash-settled to equitgesettled. It also introduces an exception to the
principles in IFRS 2 that will require an award to be treated as if it is wholly equity-setted, where an employer
is obliged to withhold an amount for the employee’s tax obligation associated with a share-based payment and
pay that amount to the tax authority. The Group anticipates that the adoption of the amendments will not
hawve a significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financlal statements.

IFRS 16: Leasas

IFRS 16 addresses the definition of a lease, recognition and measurement of leases and establishes principles
for reporting usefal information to users of fAnancial statements about the leasing activities of both lessees and
lessors. The standard replaces IAS 17 "Leases’, and related interpretations.

IFRS 16 now requires lessees to recognise a lease liability reflecting future lease payments and a dght-ofuse
asset for virmally all lease contracts, unless the underlying asset is of low value or the lease is short-term, in the
consalidated statement of financial position. Accordingly, a lessee should recognise depreciation of the righe-
of-use asset and interest on the lease Hability in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, and also
classifies cash repayments of the lease liability into principal portion and an interest portion for presentation in
the consolidated statement of cash flows,

The standard will affect primarily the accounting for group’s operating leases when group as a lessee. As at 31
Diecember 2016, the group has non-cancellable operating lease commitments of BMEBE13.348 million (Mote 54
{d}). The Group has not yet determined to what extent these commitments will result in the recognition of
rght-cfuse assets and labilities for Rature payments and how this will affect the Group’s profit and classification
of cash flows. Some of the commitments may be covered by the exception for shori-term and low-value leases
and some commitments may relate to arrangements that will not qualify as leases under IFRS 16.

Far the lessor, IFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in IAS 17. Accordingly.
a lessor continues to classify its leases as cperating leases or finance leases, and to account for those two opes
of leases differently. The Group expects that, as a lessor, there will be no significant impact on the financial
information.

2016 Anmuel Report 171

250/382



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)
oOoOooodn

Chapter 14 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

{Amommts in milicns of Renminhi pmless otharmise stated)

3  Statement of compliance (Continued)

(b} Standards and amendments that are not yet effective and have not been adopted before
their effective dates by the Group in 2016 (Continued)

Amendments to IFRS 10 and [AS 28: Sale or Contribution of Assets between An Investor and lts Associare
or Joint Ven fure

These amendments address an inconsistency berween the requirements in IFRS 10 — Consolidated Financial
Statemnents and those in IAS 28 — Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures in the sale and contribution of
assets between an Investor and fts associate or joint venture. A full gain or loss is moognised when a transaction
involves a business. A partial gain or loss is recognised when a transaction imvolves assets that do not constiture
a business, even if those assets are in a subsidiary. The Group anticipates that the adoption of the amendments
will not have a significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

{c) Transformation from Business Taxes to Value-added Taxes (the “VAT Pilot Programs™)

Pursuant to the “Clrcular regarding the Comprehensive Implementation ofthe Pilot Programs for Transformation
from Business Taxes to Value-added Tawes (the VAT Pilot Programs™™ (Cai Shui [2016] Mo.36), the “Clrcular
regarding Purther Cladfication of Relevant Policies Applicable to the Pinancial Sector in the Comprehensive
Implementation of the VAT Pilot Programs (Cal Shui [2016] Mo.46), the “Supplementary Circular regarding
WAT Policies Applicable to Transactions between Financial Instirutions™ (Cal Shul [2016] No.70) issued by the
Ministry of Finance (the "MOF") and the State Administration of Taxation (the “SAT") of the PRC, effective
from 1 May 2016, the Group is subject to value-added tazes on its income from credit business, fee income on
financial services and trading of financial products ar 6%, instead of business tax at 5% pdor to 1 May 2016,

In accordance with “Circular regarding the ¥Value-added Taxes Policies for Financial, Real Estate Development
and Education Ancillary and Other Senvices™ (Cal Shul [2016] Ne. 140) and “Supplementary Circular regarding
lssues concerning Value-added Taxes Policles for Asset Management Products™ (Cal Shui [2017] Mo.2), managers
of asset management products shall pay WAT for the taxable activities during the operation afer 1 July 2017.

After the implementation of the VAT Pilot Programs, the Group's interest income, fee and commission income
and trading gain of financial products are presented net of their respective WAT in the consclidated financial
SOfEmEnts.
4  Summary of significant accounting policies
{a) Consolidated financial statements

i) Business combinations invalving enterprises nader ci control

A business combination invalving enterprises under comman contral is a business combination in which
all of the combining enterprises are ultimately controlled by the same party or parties both before and
after the business combination, and that control is not transitory. The assets acquired and liabilities
assumed are measured based on their carying amounts in the Anancial statements of the acquiree ar
the combination date. The difference between the carrying amount of the net assets acquired and the
consideration paid for the combination (or the total face value of shares issued) is adjusted against share
premium in the capital reserve with any excess adjusted against retained earnings. The issuance costs of
equity or debt securities as a part of the consideration for the acquisition are included in the carrying
amounts of these equity or debt securities upon initial recognition. Other acquisition-related costs are
expensed when incurred. The combination date is the date on which one combining enterprise obtains
control of other combining enterprises.
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continned)

{a) Consolidated financial statements (Contined)
(i}  Busness combinations not involving entities under common contral

A business combination immlving entities not under commeon control is a business combination in which
all of the combining entities are not ultimately controlled by the same party or parties before the business
combination. Where (i) the aggregate of the acquisition date fair value of assets transferred (including
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree), liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity
securities issued by the acquirer, in exchange for contmol of the acquinee, exceeds (il) the acquirer’s interest
in the acquisition date fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets, the difference is recognised as
goodwdll (Mote 4 {m)). IF (1) is less than (i), the difference is recognised in the consolidated statement
of profic or loss for the cument pericd. The issuance costs of equity or debt securities as a part of the
considenation for the acquisition are included in the carrying amounts of these equity or debt securities
upon initial recognition. Other acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. Any difference beoween
the fair value and the carrying amount of the assets transferred as consideration is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. The acquiree’s identifiable asset, liabilities and contingent
liahbilities, if the recognition criteria are met, are recognised by the Group ar their acquisition date fair
value. The acquisition date is the date on which the acquirer obtains control of the acquiree.

For a business combination not imwolving enterprises under common control and achieved in stages, the
Group remeasures its previously-held equicy interest in the acquiree to its fair value atr the acquisition
date. The difference between the fair value the cargying amount is recognised as investment income for
the current period; the amount recognised in other comprehensive income relating to the previoushy-
held equity interest in the acquire and will be reclassified to profic or loss, and other changes in the
owners' equity under equity accounting, are transferred to investment income in the period in which
the acquisition occurs.

(§i] Consolidated financial statements

The scope of consolidated financial statements is based on control and the consclidated financial statements
comprise the Bank and its subsidiaries, as well as structured entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when It is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When assessing whether
the Bank has power, only substantive rights (held by the Bank and other parties) are considered. The
financial statements of subsidiaries are Included in the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that contral ceases.

Mon-controlling interest Is presented separately in the consalidated statement of financial position within
owners equity. Profic or loss and total comprehensive income attributable to non-controlling equity holders
are presented separately in the consolidared statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

When the amount of loss for the current period ateributable to the non-controlling interest of a subsidiary
exceeds the non-controlling interest’s portion of the opening balance of equiny holders® equity of the
subsidiary, the excess is allocated against the non-contmolling interests.

When the accounting perod or accounting policies of a subsidiary are different from those of the Bank,
the Bank makes necessary adjustments to the fnancial smtements of the subsidiarny based on the Bank's
own accounting period or accounting policies. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows, and
any unrealised profits adsing from intra-group transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consalidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated only limited
to the extent that this is no evidence of impairment.

Where a subsidiary was acquired during the reporting period, through a business combination involving
enterprises under common control, the financial statements of the subsidiary are included in the consclidated
fimancial statements as if the combination had occurred ar the date the ultimate controlling party First
obtained control. Therefore the opening balances and the comparative fgures of the consclidated financial
statzments are restated.
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4  Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

{a) Consolidated financial starements (Continued)
{iif] Consolidated financial state men ts ( Continued)

Where a subsidiary was acquired during the reporting period, through a business combination not involbring
enterprises under common control, the identifiable assets and labilities of the acquired subsidiaries are
included in the sCopeE of consalidarion from the date that control commences, based on the fair valu= of
those identifiable assets and liabilities at the acquisition date.

Where the Bank acquires a non-controlling interest from a subsidiary’s non-contolling equity holders ar
disposes of a portion of an interest in a subsidiary without a change in control, the difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the amount of the consideration
paid or recelved is adjusted to capital reserve (share premium] in the consclidated statement of financial
pasition. If the credic balance of capital reserve (share premium) is insufficient, amy excess Is adjusted
to retained earnings.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary due to the disposal of a portion of an equity imvestment, the
Group derecognises assets, Habilities, non-controlling interssts and other related ttems in equitge holders’
equity in relation to that subsidiary. The remaining equity investment is remeasured at its fair value ar
the date when contral is lost. Any gains or losses therefore incurred are recognised as imvestment income
for the current perlod when the control is lost.

(b) Foreign currency translations
i) Trmnaslation of forefgn currengr transactions

When the Group receives capital in foreign currencies from investors, the capital is translated to
Renminbi at the spot exchange rate ar the date of the receipt. Other forelgn currency transactions are,
on initlal recognition, translated into Benminbi by applying the spot exchange rates at the dates of the
transaction. Monetary items denominated in forelgn currencies are translated to Renminbi ar the spot
exchange rate at the reporting date. The resulting exchange differences are recognised in the consalidated
statement of profit or loss. Mon-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated to Renminbi using the exchange rate at the transaction date. Mon-monetary tems
that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated uwsing the forelgn exchange rate ar
the date the fir value is determined. The differences arising from the translation of available-for-sale
equity imvestments s recognised in other comprehensive income. Changes in the fair value of monetary
assets denominated in foreign currency classified as available for sale are analysed beoween translation
differences resulting from changes in the amortised cost of the monetary assets and other changes in the
carrying amount. Translation differences related to changes in the amortised cost are recognised in the
consolidared statement of profit or loss, and other changes in the camrying amount are recognised in other
comprehensive income. The translation differences resulting from other monetary assets and liabilities
are recognised in the consolidated statement of profic or loss.

(i) Tmasation of Snandal s ts o i d in foreign comency

Financlal statements denominated in foreign cucrency are translated into Renminbi for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements. The assets and liabilitles in the financlal statements denominated
in foreign currency are translated into Renminbi at the spot exchange rates prevailing at the reporting
date. The equity items, except for “retained earnings”, are translated to Renminbi at the spot exchange
rates at the dates on which such items arose. Income and expenses are translated at exchange rates at the
date of the transactions, or a rate that approsimates the exchange rates of the date of the transaction.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Upon disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the translation differences recognised in
equity holders’ equity which relates to that foreign operation is transferred to profic or loss in the period
in which the disposal ccours.

The effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents held or due in a foreign currency are
reported in the statement of cash flows.
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continned)

{c) Financial instruments
il Casdfication

The Group classifies financial instruments into different categories at inception, depending on the purpose
for which the assets were acquired or the Habilities were incurmed, and on the contractual terms of the
financial instruments, The categories are: financial assers and financial liabilites ar fGir value through
profit or loss, held-to-maturity imvestments, loans and receivables, available-for-sale financial assets and
ather financlal liabilities.

Financial assets at jir value throwgh prafit or o

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include those classified as held for tading, and those
designated by the Group upon recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if it is: (1) acquired or incurred principally for the purpose
of selling or repurchasing it in the near verm; (i} part of a portfolio of identified financial instrauments
that are managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profie-
taking; or {iil) a derivathve (except for a derbvarive that Is a financial guarantes contract or a designated
and effective hedging instrumentd).

Financial assets are designated at fair value through profic or loss upon initial recognition when: (i) the
financial assets or are managed, evaluated and reported intemally on a fir value basis; (i) the designation
eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch in the gain and loss recognition ardsing from
the difference in measurement bases of the financial assets; or (iif) a contract contains one or more
embedded derivatives, i.e. an entire hybrid (combined) contract, unless: (i) the embedded derivative
does not significantly modify the cash flows that otherwise would be required by the hybrd (combined)
contract; or (ii) it is clear with little or no analysis when a similar hybrid (combined) instrument is first
considered that separation of the embedded derivative is prohibited.

Held-to-muturity invenments

Held-to-maturity imvestments are non-derivative financlal assets, quoted in an acthve market, with fized
or determinable payments and fixed maturity that the Group has the positive intention and ability to
hald to maturigr, other than: (i) those that the Group, upon initial recognition, designates as fnancial
assets ar fair value through profic or loss or as avallable-for-sale fnancial assets; (i) those that meet the
definition of loans and recebables.

Loares awd receivables

Loans and recetvahles are non-derbrative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market, other than: {i} those that the Group intends to sell immediately or in the
near term, which will be classified as held for trading; (ii) those that the Group, upon inital recognition,
designates as financial assets at fair value through profit orloss or as available-for-sale financial assets, or
{lif) those where the Group may not recover substantially all of its initial investment, other than because
of credit deterdontion, which will be classified as available-for-sals financial assets. Loans and receivables
mainly comprise balances with central banks, deposits and placements with and loans to banks and
non-bank financial institutions, financial assets held under resale agreements, investments classified as
recetvables, and loans and advances to customers.

Available-for-sile fimancial dseets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are designared as available-for-
sale or are not classified as: (i) financial assets ar fair value through profic or loss, (i) held-to-mataricy
investments or (ii{) loans and receivables.
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4  Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

{c) Financial instruments (Continued)
i) Classification (Continued)
Fimancial abilities ar faiv value through P!q‘l"r or loss

Financial liabilities ar falr value through profit or loss include those classified as held for trading, and
those designated by the Group upon recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

A financial liabiliey is classified as held for trading if it is: (i) acquired or incurred principally for the
purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near term; (1) part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that are managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of
shart-term profic-taking; or (1) a dervative (except for o dervative that is a financlal guarantes contrace
or a designated and effective hedging instrument).

Financial liabilities are designated at fair value through profit or loss wpon initial recogniton whem
(i) the financial liabilities or are managed, evaluated and reported internally on a fair value basis; (i) the
designation eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch in the gain and loss recognition
arsing from the difference in measurement bases of the financial liabilities; or (i) a contract contains
one or more embedded derbrathves, 2. an entire hybrd (combined) contract, unless: (i) the embedded
derbvative does not significantly modify the cash flows that otherwise would be required by the hybrid
{combined) contract; or (H) it is clear with little or no analysis when asimilar hybrid (combined) instrument
is first considered that separation of the embedded derivative is prohibited.

Oicher fimancial biabilivies

Oither financial liabilities are financial lHabilities other than those ar fair value through profit or loss, and
mainly comprise bormowings from central banks, deposits and placements from banks and non-bank
Anmancial institutions, financial assets sold under repurchase agreements, deposits from customers and
debts securities lssued.

i}  Dertratives and embedded derivatives

Deerivatives mainly include foreard amd swap contracts in foreign currency market and interest rate
market. The Group enters into derivatives to hedge its exposure on forelgn exchange and interest rare
rsks; and for customer initiated transactions. The Group adopts hedge accounting in accordance with
Noie 4 (e} For derivatives designated as hedging instruments if the hedge is effective. Other derbratives
are accounted for as trading fimanclal assets or Anancial liabilicies. Drerbvatives are recognised ar fair
value upon initial recognition. Positive fair value is recognised as assets while the negative fair value is
recognised as liabilitles. Gain or loss on re-measurement to falr value is recognised immediately in the
consolidared statement of profic or loss.

Certain derbvative is embedded into a non-derivative instrument (the host contract). The embedded
derbvatives are separated from the host contract and accounted for as a derbvative when (i) the economic
characteristics and risks of the embedded dedvative are not closely related to the host contracy (il) a
sepamate Instrument with the same terms as the embedded derbrative would meet the definition of a
derbvative; and (i) the hybrd (combined) instrument is not measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. When the embedded derivative is
separated, the host contract §s accounted for in accordance with Mote 4 (<)1),
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{c) Financial instruments (Continued)
{&i] Recognition and de-recognition

Al financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the statement of financial position, when and
only when, the Group becomes a party to the contraciual provisions of the instrument.

Financial dssets

The Group derecognises a financial asset, if the part being considered for de-recognition meets one of the
fallowing conditions: (i} the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the financial asset expire; or
(i1} the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset have been transferred, the Group
transfers substantially all the dsks and rewards of cwnership of the financial asset; or (i} the Group
retains the contractual dE]ltI to recebve the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual
obligation to pay the cash fows to the eventual recipient in an agreement that meets all the conditions
of de-recognition of transfer of cash flows (“pass through® requirements) and transfers substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asser.

Where a transfer of a financlal asset in its entitety meets the criveria for de-recognition, the difference
between the two amounts below s recognised in the consclidated statement of profit or loss:

— the carrying amount of the financial asset transfermed;

— the sum of the considemation received from the transfer and any cumulative gain or loss that has
been recognised directly in equity.

I the Group neither transfers nor retalins substantially all the risks and rewards of owneship and continues
to control the transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its continuing
invalvemnent and recognises an associated liabilicy.

Securitization

As part of lts operations, the Group securities financial assets, generally through the sale of these assets to
structured entities which issue securities to imvestons. Further details on prerequisites for de-recognition of
financial assets are set out above. When the securitisarion of financial assers that qualify for de-recognition,
the relevant financial assets are derecognised in their entirety and o new financial aset or labilides is
recognised regarding the interest in the unconsolidated securitisation vehicles that the Group acquired.
When the securdtisation of financial assets that do not qualify for derecognition, the rdevant financial
assets are not derecognised, and the consideration paid by third parties are recorded as a financial liability
when the securitisation of financial assets thar partlally qualify for de-recognition, the book value of the
transferred asset should be recognised between the derecognised portion and the retained portion based
on their respective relative fair values, and the difference between the book wvalue of the derecognised
portion and the total consideration paid for the derecognised portion shall be recorded in the consalidated
statement of profit or loss.

Sales af dssets om condition q"ngun:ﬁdrf

Die-recognition of flnancial assets sold on condition of repurchase is determined by the economic
substance of the transaction. If a Anancial asset is sold under an agreement to repunchase the same or
substantially the same asset at @ fized price or at the sale price plus a reasonable return, the Group will
not derecognise the asset. If a financial asset is sold together with an option to repurchase the fnancial
asset at Its fair value at the time of repurchase (in case of transferor sells such financial asset), the Group
will derecognise the Anancial asset.

Fimancial liabiliey

Financial liability is derecognised anly when: (i) the underlying present obligation speci fied in the contracts
is discharged/cancelled, or (i} an agreement between the Group and an existing lender to exchange the
orlginal fAinancial lHabiligy with a new fAnanclal liabiligr with substantially different terms, or a substantial
modification of the terms of an existing financial Habiliy is accounted for as an extinguishment of the
orlginal Anancial liability and recognition of a new financial liability. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial lHability derecognised and the consideration paid is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profic or loss.
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4  Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

{c) Financial instruments (Continued)
fiv] Measmrement

Financial instruments are measured initally ac fair value plus or minos, in the cse ofa financial instrument
not at fair value through pofic or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or Issue of the instruments. Transaction costs for financial instraments at fair value through profic or
loss are expensed immediately.

Subsequent to initlal recognition, held-to- maturicy investments, loans and receivables and other financial
liakilities are measured at amormised cost wnder effective interest rate method, while ather categories of
Amancial instruments are measured at faic value. Investments in avallable-for-sale equity instruments
that do not have a quoted market price in an acthre market and fair value cannot be reliably measured
are measured at cost.

Gain or loss on a financial instrument classified as at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in
the consalidated statement of profit or loss.

Gain or loss on an available-for-sale Ainancial asset is recognised directly as other comprehensive income,
except for impalrment losses and forelgn exchange gains or losses arising from the amortised cost portion
of monetary financial assets which are recognised directly in the consolidated statement of profic or loss.
When the financial asset is derecognised, at which time the cumulative gains or losses previoushy recognissd
in other comprehenshve Income are removed from other comprehensive income and recognised in the
consalidated statement of profit or loss. Interest on available-for-sale financial assets calculaved using the
effective interest method is recognised in the consolidated statement of profic or loss. Dividend income
from the available-for-sale equity instrauments is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit ar
loss when the investes declares the dividends.

When the available-for-sale financial assets are sold, gains or losses on disposal include the difference
between the net sale procesds and the carrying value, and the accumulated fair value adjustments which
are previously recognised in other co mprehensive income shall ke reclassified from other comprehensive
income to the profic or loss.

For financial instrument carried at amortised cost, a gain or loss is recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss when the financial instrument is derecognised, impaired, or through the amortsation

process,

iv)  Impaimment
The Group assesses at the reporting date the carrying amount of a financial asset (other than those at fair
value through profit or loss). If there is objective evidence that the financial asset is impaired, the Group
will recognise the impairment loss in the consolidated satement of profit or loss.
Objective evidence that a financial asser is impaired included but is not limited to:
—  slgnificant fimancial difficulty of the bormower or lsuer;

—  a breach of contract by the borrower or lssuer, such as o default or delinquency in interest or
princlpal payments;

— the Group, for economic or legal reasons relating to the bormower’s financial difficulty, granting
to the boroower a concession that the Group would not otherwise consider;

— it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial rearganisations;

—  disappeamance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties of the
issuer;
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continned)

ic) Financial instruments (Continued)
() Impaicneat (Continued)

— observable data indicating that there is 2 measurable decrease in the estimated future cash Aows
from a group of financial assets since the initial recognition of those assets, although the decrease
cannoit yet be identified with the individual financial assets in the group, inclading: adverse changes
in the payment status of borrowens in the goup, an increase in the unemployment rate in the
geographical area of the bomowers, a decrease in property prices for mortgages in the relevant
area, or adverse changes in industry conditions that affect the borrowers in the group;

—  significant chanpes with an adverse effect that have tken place in the technological, market,
economic or legal emvironment in which the bormower or issuer operates, indicating that the
advances to borrowers or the cost of an investment in an equity instrument may not be recovered;

—  asignificant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment in an equity instrument below
ez cost; and

—  other objective evidence indicating there is an impairment of a financial asset.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for all corporate loans,
imvestments classified @ receivables, available-for-sale financial assets mdh.:ld—m-mnmﬂtylmlrmmtl,n.nd
collectively for the remainder of financial assets {other than those ar fair value through profit or loss). If
the Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asser in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment. Financial assets that are indiridually assessed
for impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues to be recognised are not included in
collective assessment of impairment.

Impairment of fimdneial drvets cavviad at amortised cost

For financial assets carded ar amortissd cost, Lu.r_]u.dLuE loans and advances to customers, | nvestments
classified as receivables and held-to-maturity investments, an impairment loss is recognised in the
consolidated satement of pofit or loss when there Is objective evidence that the assets are impaired. The
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash Aows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the
fimancial asset’s original effective interest rate. For financial assets with variable interest rate, the discount
rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate determined under the contract.

The calculation of present value of the estimated hature cash flows of a collateralised financial asset
reflects the cash flows that are expected to result from foreclosure, less the cost of obtaining and selling
the callateral.

Impairmens reversal and soritien-aff

IE in a subsequent period. the amount of the impairment los on financlal assets carded at amortised
cost including loans and advances to customers, Investments classified as recetvables and held-to-maturicy
imvestments decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed. The reversal shall not result in a
carrying amount of the financial asset that exceeds the amortised cost at the date of the reversal, had the
impalrment not been recognised. The amount of the reversal is recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.

When the Group determines that a Anancial asset carried at amortised cost has no reasonable prospect
of recovery after the Group has completed all the necessary legal or other proceedings, the financial asset
carried ar amortised cost is written off against its allowance for impairment losses. IF in a subsequent
pcrhdth: financial asset carrled at amortlsed cost written off is recoversd, the amount recoversd will ke
recognised in the consolidated satement of profit or loss through impairment losses.
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4  Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

{c) Financial instruments (Continued)
{v)  Impaimment { Continged)
Rescheduled loans

Rescheduled loans are loans that have been restructured due to deterioration in the borrower's financial
paosition and where the Group has made concessions that it would not otherwise consider. Where
passible, the Group sesks to restructure loans rather than to take possession of collateral. This may
imvolve the agreement of new loan conditions. The group has analysed de-recognition of reschedulesd
loans in accordance with Mote 4 (c){iif). Management continuously reviews renegotiated loans to ensure
thar all criteria are met and that future payments are Hkely to occur. The loans continue to be subject
to Individual or collecthre impairment assessment, and the impairment allowance is calculated using the
loan’s orginal effective interest rate.

Available-for-sale financial ames

When an available-for-sale financial asser is impaired, the cumulative loss arising from decline in fair value
that had been recognised directly in other comprehensive income is removed from other comprehenshve
income and recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss even though the financial asset has
not been derecognised. The amount of the cumulative loss that is removed from other comprehenshre
income is the difference between the acquisition cost (et of any principal repayment and amortisation)
and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previoushy recognised in the
consolidared starement of profit or loss. Por equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of the securty below its cost is also evidence that the assets are impaired. If any such evidence
exists the cumulative loss, measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment lass on that financial asset previously recognised in the consclidated statement
of profit or loss, is removed from equity and recognised in the consclidated statement of profit or loss.

A significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an equity instrument is an objective indicator of
impairment of awailable for-sale equity instrument. The Group separately checks all available-for-sale
equity Imvestments ar reporting date. If a decline in the fair value of an equity instrument is beow its
initial cost by 50% or more, or fair value is below cost for one year or longer ar reporting date, It indicares
that such an equity instrument is impaired. If such a decline in fair value is below its inital cost by 20%
or more but not up to 50% at reporting date, the Group takes other factors such as price volatility into
consideration to judge whether the equity instrument is impaired.

If. ina ||.1]:|mq_|.1.=nt p:rhd, the Fair value of available-for-sale financial assets increases and the increase can
be objectively related to an event cocurrng after the impairment loss was recognised in the consolidared
statement of profit or loss, the impairment loss shall be treated in accordance with following principle:

i impalrment loss on debt instruments classified as available-for-sale should ke reversed, with the
amount of the reversal recognised profic or loss;

(i)  impairment loss onequity instruments classified as availablefor-sale should not be reversed through
profit or loss, and amy subsequent increase in the fair value of such assets is recognised directly in
other comprehensive income;

(i)  impalrment loss of available-for-sale equity investments carded at cost should not be reversed
through the consclidated statement of profit or loss.
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{c) Financial instruments (Continued)
{vi] Presentation of financial assets and financial liabiities

Financial assets and Anancial liabilities are presented separately in the statement of fAnancial position
and are not offser. However, financial assets and financial labilities are offser and the net amount is
reported in the statement of financial position only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set
off the recognised amounts and the transactions are intended to be settled on a net basls, or by realising
the asset and setiling the liability simultanecusly. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent
on future events and must be enforceable in the normal couse of business and in the event of defaule,
insalvency or bankruproy of the group or the counterparty.

(vifl Financial assets held under resale and financial assets sold wnder repurchase apreements

Financial assets held under resale agreements are transactions which the Group acquires financial assets
which will be resold at a predetermined price in the future date under resale agreements. Financial assets
sold under repurchase agreements are transactions which the Group sells Anancial assets which will ke
repurchased at a predetermined price in the Future date under repurchase agreements.

Cash advanced or received is recognised as amounts held under resale and repurchase agreements on
the statement of financial position. Assets held under resale agreements are recorded in memomandum
accounts as off-balance sheet itemns. Assets sold under repurchase agreements continue to be recognisad
in the statement of Anancial position.

The difference between the resale and repurchase consideration, and that between the purchase and sale
considenation, should be expired over the pericd of the respective transaction using the effective interest
method and are included in interest expense and interest income, respectively.

(v} Eguity instroment

The consideration recebved from the issuance of equity instruments net of tansaction costs is recognised
in equity. Consideration and transaction costs paid by the Bank for repurchasing self-issusd equity
instruments are deducted from squity holders® equity.

{dl Precious metals

Precious metals comprise gold and other precicus metals. Precious metals that are not related to the Group's
precious metals trading acthvities are initlally measured at acquisition cost and subsequently measured ar the lower
of cost and net realisable value. Precious metals acquired by the Group for trading purposes are initially measured
ar fair value and subsequent changes in fair value are recorded in the consolidated statement of profic or loss.

(el Hedging
Derivatives are initlally recognised at fair value on the date a dedvative contract is entered into and are subsequenthy
re-mensured ar their fair value. The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss depends on whether the

derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item is being hedged. The Group
designates certain derbvatives as hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or liabilicles (fair value hedge).

The Group documents at the inception of the transaction the relationship between hedging instruments and hedged
items, as well as its risk management ohjectives and strategy for undertaking various hedging transactions. The
Group also documents bts assessment, both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives
that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values of hedged items.

Fair Value Hedpes

Changes in the fair value of dervatives that are designated and qualified as fair value hedges are recorded in
the consolidated statement of pofit or loss, together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asser or
liability that are attributable to the hedged risk

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, the adjustment to the carrying amount of o hedged
item Ffor which the effective interest method is used is amortised to profic or loss over the peried to maturity.
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4  Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

(fi  Interests in subsidiaries

In the Bank’s statement of financial position, interests in subsidiaries are accounted for using the cost less
impairment losses (see Mote 4 (o)), Cost includes direct attributable costs of investment. Dividends declared
by subsidiaries are recognised in investment income.

g Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence.

Investment cost in an associate is initially recognised in accordance with the following principles: ar the
consideration paid if the Group acquires the investment by cash, or ar the falr value of the equity securities
Issued if an investment is acquired by lssuing equity securities.

An imvestment in an associate is accounted for using the equity method, unless the investment s clossified as
held for sale

The Group adopts the following accounting treatments when using the equity method:

—  Where the initial imvestment cost of an assoclate exceeds the Group’s interest in the fir value of the
imvestee’s identifiable net assets at the date of acquisition, the imvestment is initially recognised at the
initial imvestment cost. Where the initial investment cost is less than the Group'’s Interest in the fair value
aof the investee’s identifiable net assets ar the date of acquisition, the Investment is initally recognised ar
the imvestor's share of the fair value of the investee’s identifiable net assets, and the difference is charged
to profit or loss.

—  Afer the acquisition of the investment, the Group recognises its share of the investee’s profit or loss
and other comprehensive income as investment income or losses and other comprehensive Income
respectively, and adjusts the carying amount of the investment accordingly. Once the imvestee declares
any cash dividends or profic distrdbutions, the carrping amount of the investment is reduced by thae
amount attributable to the Group. Changes in the Group’s share of the investee’s owners” equity, other
than those arising from the investee's pofit or loss, other comprehensive income or profic diserdburion,
is recognised in the Group’s equity, and the carrying amount of the Investment s adjusted accordingly.

—  The Group recognises its share of imvestee’s profits or losses, other comprehensive income and other
changes in equity holders’ equity after making appropriate adjustments to align the accounting policies
or accounting periods with those of the Group based on the fir value of the investee’s identifiable net
assets at the date of acquisition. Unrealised profits and lasses resulting from transactions berween the
Group and its assoclates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interests in the assoclates. Unrealised
losses resulting from transactions between the Group and its associates are eliminated in the same way
as unrealised gains but cnly limited to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

— The Group discontinues recognising its share of net losses of investees after the carrying amount of
imvestment to the associates and any long-term interest that in substance forms part of the Group’s net
interest in the associates are reduced to zem, except to the extent that the Group has an obligation o
assume additional losses. Where profits are subsequently made by the asseciates, the Group resumes
recognising Its share of those profits only after its share of the profits equals the share of losses not
recognised.

Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of an imvestes
but does not have control or joint control over those policies.

The Group makes provisions for impairment of interests in associates in accordance with the principles described
in Mote 4 (o).
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(h) Property, plant and equipment

Property. plant and equipment is asset held by the Group for the conduct of business and is expecied to be used
for more than one year. Construction-in-progress, an item of property, represents property under construction
and is transferred to property when ready for its intended use

() Gost

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost upon indtial recognition. Costs of a purchased property,
plant and equipment comprise purchase price, related taxes, and any directly attributable expenditures for
bringing the asset to working condition for Its intended use. Costs of a self-constructed property, plant
and equipment comprise construction materials, direct labor costs and those expenditures necessarily
incurred for bringing the asset to working condition for its intended use.

Subsequent to initial recognition, property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

Where an item of property, plant and equipment comprises major components having different wseful
lives, they are accounted for as separate ivems of property, plant and equipment.

(&)  Subsequent costs

The Group recognises in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment the cost of
replacing part of such an item when that cost Is incurred if it is probable that the future economic benefits
embodied with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the Item can be measured reliably. All
other costs are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss as an expense when incumed.

{(#) Depreciation

Deepreciation is calculated to write off the cost, less residual value if applicable, of property, plant and
equipment and is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each
part of an item of property, plant and equipment.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Esrimuaied wafid lives
Buildings 30 — 35 years
Computer equipment and others 3 — 10 years

Mo depreciation is provided in respect of construction in progress.

The residual vahue and us=ful lives of assets are reviewsd, and adjusted if appropriate, as of each reporting
date.

(i) Impaimment

Impairment losses on property, plant and squipment are accounted for in accordance with the accounting
policies as set out in Mote 4 (o).

vl Disposal and retirement

Gains or losses arising from the disposal or retirement of property, plant and equipment are determined as
the difference between the net dilpn:unl pm-:\eadl and I:hcmrqu.ugn.m.uu.u.t of the asset and are mmgnhﬂd
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on the date of disposal or retirement.
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4  Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

(i) Land use rights

Land use rights are stated at cost less amortization and included under other assets. Land use rights are amortised
on a straight-line basis over the respective periods of grant. When the costs attributable to the land use rights
cannot be reliably measured and separated from that of the building at inception, the costs are included in the
cost of buildings and recorded in property, plant and equipment.

Impairment loss on land wse rights is accounted for in accordance with the accounting policies as set out in
Mote 4 (o).

{jl Intangible assets

Intangible assets are inicially recognised at cost. The cost less estimated net residual valwes (if any) of the intangible
assets Is amortised on a straight line basis over their useful lives, and charged to profit or loss. Impaired intangible
assets are amortised net of accumulated impairment losses,

Impairment loss on intangible assets is accounted for in accordance with the accounting policies as set our in
Mote 4 (o). Impaired intangible assets are amortised net of accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets which are not yet available for use should be estimated at least at each financial year-end, even
if there was no indication that the assets were impalired.

(k) Investment propertics
Investment properties are land andfor buildings which are owned andfor held under a leasehold interest to earn
rental income andfor for capital appreciation.

The Group’s investment properties are accounted for using the fair value mode for subsequent measurement
when =ither of the following conditions 1s met:

— There is an active property market in the location in which the imvestment property is situated;

— The Group can obtain the market price and ather relevant information regarding the same type of ar
similar properties from the property market, so as to reasonably estimate the fair value of the investment
property.

Investment properties are stated in the statement of financlal position at fair value. Any gain or loss arising
from a change in fir value or from the retirement or disposal of an investment property Is recognised in the
consolidated statement of p.mﬂl: ar loss.
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continned)

(i Lease

A lease is classified as either a finance lease oran opemating lease. A finance lease is a lease that transkfers substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of a leased asset to the lesses, lrespective of whether the legal
title to the asset is eventually transferred. An operating lease is a lease other than a finance lease.

i Finance laases

Where the Group is a lessor under Ainance leases, an amount representing the sum of the minimum lease
receipts and unguaranteed residual value, net of inital direct costs, all discounted at the Implicit lease rate
{the “net lease imvestment™), is included in “loans and advances to customers™ on statement of fnanclal
position as a fimance lease recelvable. At the commencement of the lease term, the Group recognises
the aggregate of the minimum lease receipts determined at the inception of a lease and the initial direct
costs as finance lease recetvable. The difference between the net lease investment and the aggregate of
their present value Is recognised as unearned finance income which is included in “loans and advances
to customers” as well. Unrecognised finance income under finance leases is amortised using the effective
interest rate method over the lease term. Hire purchase contracts having the chamctedstics of finance

leases are accounted for in the same manner as finance leases.
Impairment losses are accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy as set cut in Moee 4 (c)(v).

Where the Group s a lessee under finance leases, an amount equal to the lower of the fair value of the
leased asset and the present value of the minimum lease payments, each determined at the inception of
the lease, is included in “property, plant and equipment” on satement of financlal position as a leased
asset. An amount equal to the minimum lease payments s included in "other liabilities™ on statement
of financial position recognised as a long-term paable. The difference between the recorded amount of
the leased asset and the recorded amount of the payable shall be accounted for as unrecognised finance
charge. The Group recognises financial charge for the current period using the effective interest method.

Diepreciation policy are accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy as set out in MNote 4 (h)
and impairment losses are accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy as ser out in Mote 4
(o). If there Is a reasonable certainty that the lesses will obtain cwneship of the leased asset by the end
of the lease term, the leased asset should be depreciated ower its useful life. Otherwise, leased asser is
depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and its estimared useful life

()  Olperating leases
Where the Group leases out assets under operating leases, the assets are included in the statement of
fimancial position according to their nature and, where applicable, are depreciated in accordance with the
Group’s depreciation policies, as ser out in Note 4 (h) except where the asset is clasified as an investment
property. Impairment losses are accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy as set out in

Maote 4 (o). Revenue arising from operating leases Is recognised in accordance with the Group’s revenue
recognition policies, as set our in Mote 4 (u)(iv).

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating leases, payments made under the leases ane
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the accounting periods covered by the lease term,
except where an alternative basis is more representathve of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the
leased assets. Lease incentives received are recognised in the consolidated statement of profic or loss as
an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent rentals are charged to profic or
loss in the accounting period in which they are incurred.
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4  Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
(m) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a business combination over the Group’s interest in the fir value of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Goodwill is not amortised. Goodwill arsing from a business combination is
allocated to each cash-gererating unit (“CGU™) or group of CGL, that is expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination. The Group performs Impairment test on poodwill anmually.

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identiflable net assets over the cost of
a business combination is recognised immediately in the consolidated statement of profit or lass.

On disposal of the reated CGU or group of CGUs, any attributable amount of the purchased goodwill net of
allowance for impairment losses, if amy, is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Impairment loss on goodwill is accounted for in accordance with the accounting policies as set out in Mote 4 (o).

(n) Repossessed assets

In the recovery of impaired loans and advances, the Group may take possesslon of assets held as collateral
through court procesdings or voluntary delivery of possession by the bomrowers. Where it is intended to achieve
an orderly realisation of the impaired assets and the Group is no longer seeking repayment from the bomower,
repossessed assets are reported in “other assers”.

When the Group seiwes assets to compensate for the losses of loans and advances and interest receivables, the
repossessed assets are initially recognised at fair value, plus any taxes paid for the sekrure of the assets, litigation
fees and other expenses imcurred for collecting the reposessed assets are included in the carying value of
repossessed assets.

When the fair value less costs to sell is lower than a repossessed asset’s carrying amount, an impairment loss
is recognised in the consclidated statement of profit or loss. Bepossessed assets are recognised at the carrying
value, net of allowance for impairment losses.

The repossessed assets are disposed after acquisition and cannot be used without authorization. The repossessed
assets that are transferred to own use are treated as newly purchased property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss arising from the disposal of the repossessed assets s included in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss in the perod in which the item is disposed.

(o)  Allowance for impairment of non-financial assets
i) Impaimment of non-financial assets other than goodwnill

At the end of each reporting pericd, the Group assesses whether there is any indication that a non-financial
asset other than goodwill such as investments in associates, property, plant and equipment, imvestment
properties, intangible assets and other assets may be impaired. If any indication exists that an asset may
be impaired, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the asser.

The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair value less costs o sell and the present value
of the hature cash flows expected to be derived from the asset. The Group considers all relevant factors
in estimating the present value of future cash fows, such as the expected future cash Aows, the useful
life and the discount rate.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrping amount of the asset is
reduced to its recoverable amount. That reduction is recognised as an impairment loss in the consolidared
statement of profit or loss.

I, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss of the non-fAinancial asser other than goodwill
decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively to an event occurring after the impalrment was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through the profit or loss. A revemsal
of impairment loss is limited to the asset’s carrying amount thar would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior pedods.
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continned)

(o) Allowance for impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)
(i) Impaiment of poodwill

Faor the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to the
CGL or group of CGL that is expected to benefic from the synergles of the combination.

G is the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent
of the cash flows from other assets or groups of assets.

A CGU or group of G Us to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment by the Group
annually, or whenever there is an indication that the CGU or group of CGL are impaired, by comparing
the carrying amount of the CGU or group of CGUs, including the goodwill, with the recoverable amount
ofthe CGU or group o f CGLL. The recoverable amount of the CGLU or group of CGUs are the estimated
harure cash flows, which are discounted to their present value using a discount rate that reflects curmrent
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the OGU or group of CGUs
with allocated goodwill.

At the time of impairment testing of a CGU or goup of CGL o which goodwill has been allocated,
there may be an indication of an impalrment of an asset within the CGLT containing the goodwill. In such
circumstances, the Group tests the asset for impairment first, and recognises any impairment loss for that
asset before testing for impairment on the CGLT or growp of OGLE containing the goodwill. Similacy,
there may be an indication of an impairment of a CGU within a group of CGUs containing the goodwill.
In such circumstances, the Group tests the CGU for impairment first, and recognises any impairment
loss for that CGL, before testing for impairment the group of CG Us to which the goodwill is allocated.

For a CGW or a group of CGLL, the amount of impairment loss firstly reduces the carying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the OGLT ar group of CGUs, and then reduces the carrying amount of other
assets (other than goodwill) within the CGU or group of ©GUs, pro rata on the basls of the carying
amount of each asset. The carrying amount of an asset should not be reduced below the highest of its
fair value less costs of dispasal (if measurable); its value in use (if determinable) and zemm.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not eversed.

ip) Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an ordedy transaction
in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market conditions
{Le. an exit price) regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique (Note G0).
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4  Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

iq) Employee benefits
i) Short-term employee benefits

Druring the accounting period when an employee has rendered serice to the Group, the Group recognises
the undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits as a liability and as an expense, unless another
IFR.S requires or permits the inclusion of the benefits in the cost of an asset. Short-term employes benefics
include wages, bonuses, labor union expenses and employee education expenses, social Insurance such as
medical insurance, work-related injury insurance and matemnity insurance, as well as housing provident
hands, which are all calculated based on the regulated benchmark and ratio.

i}  Post-employment benefits; Defined contnbution plans

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, the Group participated in a defined contribution
basic pension insurance in the social insarance system established and managed by government organisations.
The Group makes contrbutions to basic pension insurance plans based on the applicable benchmarks
and rates stipulated by the government. Basic pension insurance contributions are charged to profic ar
loss when the related services are rendered by the employees.

In addition to the statwtory provision plan, the Bank's employess have joined its annuity scheme (the
“scheme”) which was established by the CITIC Group Corporation (“CITIC Group™) in accordance with
policies regarding the state owned enterprise annuity policy. The Bank has made annuity concributons
in propertion to its employee’s gross salaries which are expensed in the consclidated statement of profic
or loss when the contributions are made.

The Group operates a defined contribution provident fund and a Mandatory Provident Pund scheme
for Hong Kong staff. Contributions are charged to profic or loss as and when the contribution fall due.

(iif] Post-employment benefits: Defined benefit plans

The defined benefit plans of the Group are supplementary retirement benefits provided to the domestic
employess.

The Group adopts the projected unit credit actuarial cost method, using unbiased and mutually compatible
actuarial assumptions to estimate the demographic and financial variables, to measure the obligation
associated in the defined benefits plan. The discounted present value of the defined benefit obligation,
is recognised as the Habilities of the defined benefic plans.

The Group recognises the obligation of defined benefit plans in the accounting period in which the
employees render the related services. Past-service costs are recognised immediately in the consolidared
statement of profit or loss. The net interest cost s calculated by applying the discount mate to the net
balance of the defined benefic obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in
employee benefit expense in the consolidated statement of profic or loss. Re-measurement arising from
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumprions are charged or credited to equity in other
comprehenstve income in the period in which they arise.
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continned)

(r) (Government grants

Government Zrants are transfers of MO NEtary assets Of [on - netary assets from the Fovernment to the Gm-up
at no consideration except for any capital contribution from the government as an imvestor in the Group. Special
fands such as investment grants allocated by the government, if clearly defined in officlal documents as part of
“capital reserve™ are dealt with as capital contributions, and not regarded as government grants.

Government grant Is recognised at its fair value when there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and that the Group will comply with the conditicns attaching to the grant.

Grants related to assets are government grants whose primary condition s that an entity qualifring for them
should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire long-term assets. Grants related to income are gowvernment
grants other than those related to assets. A government grant related to an asset is recognised initially as deferred
income and amortised to profic or loss on a straight-line basis over the useful life of the asset. A grant that
compensates the Group for expenses to be incurred in the subsequent pericds is recognised initially as deferred
income and recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the same periods in which the expenses
are recognised. A grant that compensates the Group for expenses incurred is recognised in the consolidaved
statement of profit or loss immediately.

(s) Provisions and contingent liahilities

A provision is recognised in the consclidated statement of financial position when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an cutflow of economic benefirs
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. A provision is initially measured
at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the related present obligation. Factors pernining to a
contingency such as the risks, uncertainties and time value of money are taken into account as a whole in reaching
the best estimate. Where the effect of the time value of money is material, the best estimate is determined by
discounting the related future cash cutflows.

A contingent lability is (a) a possible obligation that arses from past events and whose existence can cnly be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-cccurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group; or (b} a present obligation that arises from past events and it is not probable that an
outflow of economic benefits is required to settle the obligation; or the amount of the obligation cannot be
measured reliably. Such liability is disclosed as contingent liabilities under Mote 54.

(t) Flduciar}; activities

The Group acts in a fiduciary capacity as a custodian, trustee, or an agent for customers. Assets held by the
Gmn.l.p and the related u.u.d.utnkLu.El to return such assets to customers are excluded from the consolidated
Anancial statements as the rsks and rewards of the assets reside with the customers.

Entrusted lending is the business where the Group enters into entrusted loan agreements with customers, whereby
the customers provide funding (the “entrusted funds”) to the Group, and the Group grants loans to third parties
{the “entrusted loans™ at the instructlon of the customers. As the Group does not assume the risks and rewards
of the entrusted loans and the comesponding entrusted funds, entrusted loans and funds are recorded as off
balance sheet items at their principal amounts and no impairment assessments are made for these entrusted loans.
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4  Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

(n) Income recognition

BRevenue is the gross inflow of economic benefit arbsing in the course of the Group's ordinary activities when
those inflows result in increases in equity, other than increases relating to contributions from owmers. Provided
it is probable that economic benefits will Aow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised in the consolidated statement of profic or loss as follows:

i) Interest income

Interest income arsing from the use of entity assets by others Is recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss based on the duration and the effective interest rate. Interest income includes the
amortisation of any discount or premium or other differences between the initlal carying amount of
an interest-bearing instrument and its amount at maturity calculated on an effective interest rate basis.

The effective interest method is 2 method of calculating the amortised cost of financial assets and Habilities
and of allocating the interest income and interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected
life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter peried to the net carrying amount of
the financial instrument. When calculating the effective intersst rate, the Group estimates cash Aows
considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, call and similar
options) but dees not consider future credit losses. The calculation includes all fees and interest paid or
recetved between partles to the contrace that are an invegral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Interest on the impaired financlal assets is recognised using the rate of interest used to discount future
cash Aows ("umwinding of discount™) for the purpose of measuring the related impairment loss.

(i}  Fee and commission income

Fee and commisslon income is recognised in the consolidated statement of profic or loss when the
corresponding service s provided. (rigination or commitment fees received by the Group which resule
in the creation or acquisition of a financial asset are deferred and recognised as an adjustment to the
effective interest rate. If the commitment expires without the Group making a loan, the fee is recognised

as revenue on eopioy.

(iif)]  [Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised in the consclidated statement of profit or loss on the date when the
Group’s right to receive payment s established.

{iv] Rentl income from operting lease

Rental income recetved under operating leases is recognised as other operating income in equal instalments
over the periods covered by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asser. Lease incentives granted are recognised in the
consalidated statement of profit or loss as an Integral part of the agpregare net lease payments recebvable,

(v)  Finance income from finance lease and hire purchase contrace

Finance income implicit in finance lease and hire punchase payments is recognised as interest income
owver the pericd of the leases 5o as to produce an approximately constant periodic mate of return on the
outstanding net investment in the leases for each accounting period.
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{v] Income tax

Current tax and deferred tax are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to a business combinatio n or items recognised direcily in equity (including cther co mprehensive income).

Current income tax is the expected tax payables on the tazable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantially enacted at the reporting date, and amy adjustment to tax payables in respect of previous perieds.
Dieferred tax is provided for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and Habilities for
Anancial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Temporary differences also arise from
unused tax losses and umsed tax credies. Dieferred tac Habilities are not recognised if they arise from the initdal
recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax s not accounted for §f i arises from Initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transmction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting por taxable profit or loss. A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be wtilised.

Dieferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable temporarny differences arsing from investments in
subsidiaries, assoclates and joint arrangements, except for deferred Income tax lability where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foresesable future. Deferred income tax assets are recopnised on deductible temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint armangements only to the extent that
it is probable the temporary difference will reverse in the future and there is sufficient taxable profit available
against which the temporary difference can be utilised.

At the reporting date, deferred tax assets and deferred tax lHabilities are measured ar the tax rates that are expected
to apply to the pedod when the asset Is realised or the liability is settled according to the requirements of tax
larwrs, The Group also considers the possibility of realisation and the setflement of deferred tax assets and deferred
tax liabilities in the calculation.

Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities if
the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and meet the
additional conditions that deferred tax assets and Habilities relate to income taxes levied by the same authority
on the same tazable enticy.

(w] Cash equivalents

Cash equivalents are short-rerm, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an inslgnificant rsk of changes in value, with orginal maturity of three months
or less ar acquisition.

(x) Profit distribution

Proposed dividends for ordinary shares which are declared and approved after the end of each reporting period
are not recognised as a liability in the consolidated statement of financial position and are instead disclosed as
a subsequent event after the end of each reporting perod in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.
Diividends payable are recognised as liabilities in the period in which they are approved.

As authorized by the shareholders’ annual general meeting, the Board of Directors has the sole discretion to
declare and distribute dividends an preference shares. Preference share dividend distribution is recognised as a
liability in the consclidated financial statements in the period in which the dividends are approved.

iy) Related parties

If the Group has the power, direcily or indirectly, to contmol, jointly control or exercise significant influence
over another party, or vice wersa, or where the Group and one or more parties are subject to common control,
jolntly control from another party, they are considered to be related parties. Related parties may be individuals
or enterprises.
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4  Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

(z) Optrnting segments

Oiperating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Group’s
chief operating decision-maker for the purposes of allocating resources and assessing performance. The Goup
considers the business from different perspectives including products and services and geographic areas. The
operating segments that meet the specified criterla have been agprepated, and the operating segments that meet
quantitative thresholds have been reported separately.

Intersegment revenues are measured on the basis of actual transaction price for such transactions for segment
reporting, and segment accounting policies are consistent with those for the consclidated financial statements.

5  Ciritical accounting estimates and judgements

Prepantion of the consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
that affect the applicaton of policies and the reported amounts of assets and labilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are believed o be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and associated key assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revislons to accounting estimates are
recognised in the perod in which the estimates are revised and in any future pericds affected.

(i)  Impairment losses on loans and advances to customers and investments classified as
receivables

The Group reviews it loans and advances to customers to assess impairment on a perdodic basls during the
year. In determining whether an impairment loss should be recognised in the consolidated statement of profic
or loss, the Group makes estimates and judgments as to whether there is any observable data indicating that
there Is objective evidence of impairment and the extent, if any, to which it will have a measurable decrease
in the estimared future cash fows related to individually assessed loans and advances or pools of loans and
advances to customers with similar risk characteristics, as described in MHote 4 (c)iv) impairment of financial
assets carrled at amortised cost.

Significant judgments are made in the determination of whether objective evidence of impairment exists in
individually assessed loans and adwvances to customers or pools of loans and advances to customers with similar
risk characteristics. Among other things, objective evidence of impailrment includes detedaration in the financial
condition of specific borrowers (or specific pools of borrowers) affecting their ability to meet their loan payment
DHignﬂnm, overdue status, fnancial position u:l:'au.m.u.tm:l, latest collateral valuations, concession the Gmup
that would not otherwlse be pranted to borrowers for economic or legal reasons relating to their financial
difficulties, as well as increasing industry sector over—capacity or obeclescence, or deterioration in national or
regional economic conditions that are correlated to increasing loans and advances to customers defaults. These
judgments are made both during management's regular assessments of credit quality of loans and advances to
customers and when other circumstances indicate the possibilige that objective evidence of impairment may exist.

Where it is determined that objective evidence of impalrment exists, significant judgments and estimates are
made in estimating the adverse impact on hature cash flows related to individually assessed impaired loans and
advances to customers. The methodology and assumptions used for estimating both the amount and timing
of future cash Aows are reviewed regularly to reduce any differences berween loss estimates and actual loss
experence. Factors affecting these estimates include the availability and granuladey of information reated to
specific bormowers; the results of regulatory reviews and the related portfolic analysis, and the clarity of the
comeation between qualitative factors, such as industry sector performance or changes in regional economic
conditions and loans and advances to custemer’s defaults of rdated borrowers.,
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5  Critical accounting estimates and judgements (Continned)

{i) Impairment losses on loans and advances to customers and investments classified as
receivables (Cantinued)

Loans and advances to customers (contin ped)

Corporate loans and advances to customers not identified as impaired from individually assessments, together
with all personal loans and advances to customers are included in in homogenous groups with similar credit
risks characteristics for performance of impairment assessments on a collective basis. Migration model is used
for corporate loans and ol rate models are used for personal loans considering the similarity of credit risks and
applying key assumptions. Significant judgments are applied to the calculation of assessed impalrment using
these medels. Critical factors affecting these judgments include modeling assumptions (e.g.. loss given default)
and levels of correlation between qualitative factors and loans and advances to customers default. The collective
impalrment loss is assessed after taking into account: (1) historical loss experience in portfolios of similar credit
sk charnacterstics; (i) the emergence period between a loss oocurring and thae loss being idencified; (i) high
sk products and geographic locations; and (iv) the current economic and credit environments and whether in
management’s experience these indicate that the actual level of inherent losses is likely to be greater or less than
that suggested by historical experience. The Group considers the impact of the changes and uncertainty in the
macro-economic envirenment, in which the Group operates when assessing the methodologies and assumptions
used for loss estimation, makes adjustments where approprate.

Tavestments classified as receivables

In determining whether an impairment loss should be recognised in the consolidated satement of profit or loss,
the Group makes significant estimates and judgments as to whether there is any observable data indicaring that
there is abjective evidence of impairment and the extent, if any, to which it will have a measurable decrease in
the estimated future cash flows related to investments classified as receivables by underying assets or groups of
underlying assets with similar risk characteristics, as described in Mote 4 (c){v) Impairment of financial assets
carried at amortised cost.

Where it is determined that objective evidence of impairment exists, significant judgments and estimates are
made in estimating the adverse impact on fature cash flows based on the underlying assets related to individually
significant impaired investment classified as recetvables.

Investments classified as receivables not identified as impaired from the individual assessment are included in
groups with similar credit rsk characteristics by underlying assets with the consideration of rsk factors specific
to different industries and different type of undedying assets, and assessed for impairment coll ectively. Significant
judgments are applied to the calculation of collectively assessed impairment.

(i) Impairment of available-for-sale equity investments

Far available-for-sale equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline in fair value below cost is considered
to be objective evidence of impairment. Judgement is required when determining whether a decline in fair value
has been significant or prolonged. In making this judgement, the Group considers historical data of market
volatility and historical share price of the specific equity investment as well as other factors, such as sector
performance, financial information regarding the investee and industry practice.

{iii) Fair value of financial instruments

Faor financial instruments without active market, the Group determines fair values using valuation techniques
which inchade discounted cash fAlow models, as well as other types of valuation models. Assumptions and inputs
used in valuation techniques include risk-free and benchmark interest rates, credic spreads and forelgn currency
exchange rates. Where discounted cash Aow techniques are used, estimated cash flows are based on management's
best estimates and the discount rave used Is o market rate at the end of each reporting pericd applicable for
an instrument with similar terms and conditions. Where other pricing models are used, inputs are based on
ohservable market data at the end of each reporting pericd. However, where market dara are not available,
management needs to make estimates on such unohservable market inputs based on assumprions. Changes in
assumptions about these factors could affect the estimated fair value of financial instruments.
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5  Ciritical accounting estimates and judgements (Continued)

{iv) De-recognition of financial assets

In its mormal course of business, the Group transfers financial assets through varous types of transactions
inclading regular way sales and transfers, securtisation, financial assets s0ld under repurchase agreements and
etc.. The Group applies significant judgement in assessing whether it has transferred these financial assets which

qualify for a full or partial de-recognition.

Where the Group enters into structured transactions by which it transferved financial asset to structured entities,
the Group analyses whether the substance of the relationship berween the Group and these structured entities
indicates that it controls these structured entities to determine whether the Group needs to consolidate these
structured entities. This will determine whether the following de-recognition analysis should be conducred at
the consolidared level or at the entigr level from which the financial assets was transfecred.

The Group analyses the contractual rights and obligations in connection with such transfers to determine whether
the de-recognition criterla are met based on the following considerations:

—  whether it has transferred the rights to receive contractual cash flows from the Anancial assets or the
transfer qualified for the “pass through™ of those cash flows to independent third parties;

— the extent to which the associated risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets are transferred by
using appropriate models. Significant judgment is applied in the Group’s assessment with repard to the
parameters and assumptions applied in the models, estimated cash fows before and after the transfers,
the discount rates used based on current market interest rates, varabiligy factors considered and the
allacation of weightings in different scemarios;

—  where the Group neither retained nor transferred substantially all of the risks and rewards associated with
their cwneship, the Group analyses whether the Group has relinguished its contrals over these financial
assets, and if the Group has continuing involvement in these transferred financial assets.

(v) Consolidation of strucrured entities

The Group makes significant judgment to assess whether or not to consclidate structured entities. When
performing this assessment, the Group—

—  assesses its contractual rdghts and obligations in light of the transaction structures, and evaluates the
Group’s power over the struciured entities;

—  performs independent analyses and tests on the varable returns from the structured entities, including
but not limited to commission income and asset management fees earned, retention of residual income,
and, if any, liquidity and other support provided to the structured entities; and

—  assesses its ability to exercise its power to influence the variable returns assessed whether the Goup
acts as a principal or an agent through analysis of the scope of the Group's decision-making awthority,
remunemation entitled, other interests the Group holds, and the rghts held by other parties.

(vi) Income taxes

Dietermining income tax provisions invebres judgement on the fature tax treatment of certain transactions. There
are certain transactions and activities for which the ultimate tax determination Is uncertain during the crdinary
course of business. The Group carefully evaluates the tax implications of transactions and tax provisions are set up
accordingly. The tax treatment of such transactions is reconsidered periodically to take into account all changes
in tax legislations. Dieferred tax assets are recognised for temporary deductible differences. As those deferred tax
assets can only be recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the unused tax credits can be utilised, management’s judgement s required to assess the probabiligr of
future taxable profits. Management’s assessment is constantly reviewsd and additional deferred tax assets are
recognised if it becomes probable thar future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax assets to be recoversd.
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Year ended 31 December

2016 2015

latetest lncome atislog fom (Wote (1))
Dieposits with central banks 75 7,302
Dreposits with banks and non-bank financial institutions 1,722 1,325
Placements with and loans to banks and non-bank

financial institutions 3724 2,925
Financial assets held under resale agreements 857 3998
Investments classified as receivables 45,830 45 638
Loans and advances to customers

— corpomate loans AL655 97.956

— personal loans 36,858 34,907

— discounted bills 1,705 3214
Investments in debr securicies 21,562 18,190
Oiithers 5 B
Subtotal 213,474 215.661
latetest expense atklng foms
Bomowings from central banks (2, 6:860) (994)
Depu:ll:l from banks and mon-bank Anancial institutions (32,629) {35,?'92]
Placements from banks and non-bank financial institutions (1, 470) (742}
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements (B61) GHal)
Dheposits frem customers (55,630) (64.749)
Dhebt securities issued (14,052 (8,383)
Oithers (8) (&)
Subtotal (107,336) (111,228)
Met interest income 106, 138 104,433

Mate:

[IE] [noren: Incoma nckides Inisnx Incanme sxried on

DOLE faur ended 31 Dacanbar 2015 RMBESE millizal.

7  Net fee and commission income

J aovecy of FEMBA2E millan for dw year anded 31 Dlacambar

Year ended 31 Diecember

2016 2015

Fee and commisslon laco mer
Bank card fees 19,324 15419
Commission for wealth management services T. 114 5.BOR
Agency fees and commission (Mote (1)) 6,128 3711
Consultancy and advisory fees 777 5,972
Commission for custodian business and other fiduciary 2,560 2,228
Guarantes fesg 2,384 3.131
Setilement and clearance fees 1,396 1,747
Oithers 671 623
Total 45,360 37.639
Fee and commission expense (3, D80 (1.965)
Met fee and commission income 42, TR0 35,674

Bt

0 gy femsand P 4 for ala ofbond, fards and P andp o amrumed lerding wrivicka.
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{Amommts in milicns of Renminhi pmless otharmise stated)

8  Net trading gain
¥ear ended 31 December

1016 2015
Dbt secudties and certificares of interbank d.:pudl: 894 1.531
Forelgn currencies 2,311 2,300
Drerivatives and related exposures 7 (436)
Financial instrument designated ar fair value through profit or loss 265 240
Total 3,547 3535

9  Net gain from investment securities
¥ear ended 31 December

2016 2015
Met gain from sale of available-for-sale securities 818 &0
Met gain from bills rediscounting 314 an&
Orthers 550 236
Total 1,682 1,192

10 Net hedging gain
Year ended 31 December
016 2015
Met gain of hir value hedge — 1

11 Operating expenses
Year ended 31 December

2016 2015
Staff costs
— sallaries and bonuses 17,071 15,260
— welfare EXpenses 1,470 1,296
— social insurance 1,189 1057
— housing fund 1,250 1,211
— labour union expenses and employee education expenses 613 &35
— housing allowance 484 439
— other short-rerm benefits 108 165
— postemployment benefis — defined contribution plans 2,190 2,291
— postemployment benefis — defined benefic plans 1 11
— other long-term benefits i 21
Subtotal 24,418 22,387
Property and equipment expenses
— rent and poperty management expenses 4,670 4523
— depreciarion 1,683 1,540
— amortisation expenses 1,020 a14
— electronic equipment operating expenses B4 821
— maintenance 685 Gle
— othems 363 347
Subtotal HI15 B.763
Tax and surcharges 4,487 10,033
Crther general openting and administrative expenses (Mote (1)) 9,142 9,419
Total 4T, 272 50,502
Nowm:
1] Included in cchar peoand of ared. s p wars sudit fen of RMBLE millien. Far the pasr (2015: MBS millon) wed man-aodic

Joex of RMB 14 millizn for che year [3015: FABES million).
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11 Dperating expenses (Continued)

{a) Individuals with highest emoluments

{Amomrty in millions of Renminbl onles othermwise sated)

Far the }u.r-au.dﬂl 31 December 2016, of the 5 individuals with I:hchld:.ﬂt emoluments in the Gm‘l.l.p, there
was ao director (20151 one) and ne supervsor (2015 Mil). The aggregate of the emoluments before individual
income tax in respect of the Ave highest pald individuals of the Group were as follows:

Year ended 31 December

2016 2015
RMB 0Dy EME 000

Basic salaries, ]:.-u'u.l'l.u.g allewances, other
allowances and benefits in kind 23,403 31,935
Discretionary bonuses 24,179 15,879
Contrbution to pension scheme 1,684 1,525
Toul 49,266 49.359

The emoluments before indbidual income tax of the five highese paid individuals of the Group are within the

following bands:
Year ended 31 December
2016 2015
Emolument bands (in RMEB)
RMEBS5, 000,001 — RMB 10,000,000 F ] 3
BME 10,000,001 — BMEB 15,000,000 3 2

Mo inducement fee and compensation for loss of office was paid to the five highest paid individuals in 2016

{2015: Mil).

12 Impairment losses on assets

Year ended 31 December

2016 2015
Loans and advances to customers 45,715 35120
Dreposits with banks and non-bank financial institutions ks ] —
Interest recetvables 5033 2,041
Anailable-for-sale financial assets 43 57
Held-to-maturity investments 2 {4)
Investments classified as receivables &71 729
Repossessed assets o 41
Off balance sheet items (az) (95)
Oithers GOE 1.248
Subtotal 6,573 4,917
Tatal 52,288 40,087
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13 Income tax

{a) Recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
Year evded 31 December

Mate 2016 015

Current tax
— Mainland China 14,920 12992
— Hang Kang 407 304
— Chrerseas 24 41
Dieferred tax 32 b) (2,529) @)
Income tax 12,822 13,246

Mainland China and Hong Kong income tax have been provided at the rate of 25% and 16.5% respectively.
Owerseas tax has been provided at the rates of taxation prevailing in the regions in which the Group operates

respectively.

ib) Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting profit
Year etvded 31 December

016 2015
Profit before tax 54,608 54986
Income tax calculated at PRC statutory tax rate 13,652 13,747
Effect of different tax rates in other regions (245) (196)
Taxz effect of non-deductible expenses 306 431
Tax effect of non-taxable income
— intersst income arsing from PRC povernment bonds (BEZ) (699)
— others (99} (37)
Income tax 12,822 13,246

14 Other comprehensive (loss)/income, net of tax
Yeat ended 31 December

1016 2015
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or
loss when specific conditions ate met
Orther comprehensive income of available-for-sale financial assets
— pet rJ:n.n.Enl in fair value r:mgnllu:l ﬂu.l"l.u.g H:LE}I’HI {6,889 5,578
— net amount transferred to profit or loss (1.926) (865)
Income tax relating to other comprehensive income of
wvallable-for-sale fimancial assets 2,188 {1,438)
Orther comprehensive (loss)fincome for available-for-sale
financial assets, net of tax {6,027 4375
Ezchange differences on translation 1,897 1,364
Oithers — 3
Items that will hot be reclassified to profit of loss
Actuarial gain/(loss) on defined benefic plans 7 (&)
Inmmtﬂ:rd.nﬂugh: rJ:.n.u.Eﬂ on the measurement of
defined benefit plans (2] 2
Changes on the measurement of defined benefit plans, net of tax 5 (3]
Orthers —_ 8
Ohthet comptehensive (loss) llhcoime, het of tax (4,725) 5544
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{Amomrty in millions of Renminbl onles othermwise sated)

15 Earnings per share

Eamings per share information for the year ended 31 December 2016 and 201 5 is computed by dividing the profit for
the year attributable to ordinary sharchalders of the Bank by the weighted average number of shares in issue during

the year.

The Bank issued non-cumulative preference shares during the year ended 31 December 2016, under the terms and
conditions as detailed in Mote 46. Mo cash dividend on preference shares was declared in the financial year of 2016,

The conversion feature of preference shares is considered to fall within contingently issuable ordinary shares. The
triggering events of comversion did not occur as at 31 December 2016, therefore the conversion feature of preference
shares has no effect on the basic and diluted earnings per share calculation.

Year ended 31 December

2016 2015

Profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Bank 41,629 41,158
Less: p.mﬂl: for the y=ar attributable to prc&n:n.oe

shareholders of the Bank — —

Profit for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Bank 41,629 41,158

Weighted average number of shares (in million shares) 48,935 46,787

Basic and diluted earnings per share (in RMB) 085 0.BB

16 Cash and balances with central banks

31 Drecember 31 December

Motes 2016 2015

Cash 7407 7,835

Balances with central banks

— statutory deposic reserve funds (i 464,633 432,965

— surplus depasit reserve funds (i) 58,855 63,656

— Hiscal deposits (i) 3,568 3797

— :Eu.ndgn c:rJ:.n.ng\e resense l::v}l 1,865 3416

Total 553,328 511,189

Hatax

[IH] The Graup placer manumry depeait cesmrre funde with the Peoples Bank of Chins ["PBOCT] and oversas cencral banks whare it has cparsdara. Tha
myivecry deprati rsanve fands s noe svallsbbe for we in the Graop's datly budnem.

Ao 31T bar 2014, cha y dapade fandr placed with the FBO C wan calenlaoed ae 1996 (3] Discarabar 2015: 1996] of sligible Ranminkd
dupartia for darmnil: beanchar of the Bank and ot 19% (3] Decembar 201 5: 0%} of sligible Ranminbl depostia fran ovsmes fironclal tneitioiiear. Tha
Bank was alea requined 1o depsele sn wmaune squivalant ca 3% (31 Decanbar 20 15: $96) of 1o foerdgn curmcy depotn From dematks beanch corteman
wr siztminry depade mmevn Fundr

Tha statuiary RMB depeatt reservs rues applicshle 1o ZThajiang Lin'an QTIC Roral Bank Carpeestin. Limied, 3 sshudiary of che Gesap, waa s 996
31 Decembar 2015; 2.596G].

Tie £ v dapssle furds placed with the contral banks of mvermsas ara d 1 by vaug jurtsd Tha
depasit remrve fands wre rterest besring cocepe Foe ihe fordgn currency mumr fands depario placed with chs FROC,

1 The sxplur depesic remees funds see malnioed with the FEOC for the purposs of charing.
(1T} Fircal depeatiz placed wiih the PEOC ar noc malbble for um in the Group's daily cperadans, and ace nac-tniens beadng.
¥} Tha Farsign acchunge cesarvs s matresined wich the PBO in sccordancs siih che ralaed nedes laasd by the PBOC on 31 Aagut 3915, The cesr s

paysble on » monchly buis s 2% of the toesl cantrace smeunt of cortoman  detvan foreraed. cumactiens i che previons manth. Such fanign sxchangs
resrvw b norsinceare boaring and will b repaysbh do 12 meothe acceeding eo che Medes,
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17 Deposits with banks and non-bank financial institutions

{a) Analysed by types and locations of counterparties

31 Deceinber 31 December
Mote 2016 2015
In Mainland China
— banks 123,913 36,194
— non-bank financial institutions 42,383 12,766
Subtotal lbi, 296 48960
Outside Mainland China
— banks 31,623 22568
— non-bank financial institutions 10,756 9,175
Subtotal 42,379 31,843
Gross balance 208,675 BOB0F
Less: Allowance for impairment losses 34 {34 —
Met balance 208,641 80803
(b} Analysed by remaining maturity
31 Deceinber 31 December
Mote 2016 2015
Demand deposits (Mote (i)} 100, 394 57323
Time deposits with remaining maturige
— within one month 84,016 12005
— between one month and ane year 24,765 11,4?5
Subtotal 108,281 23 480
Gross balance 08,675 B0, 803
Less: Allowance for impairment losses 34 {34 —
Met balance 208,641 BOB0F

w A 3e 31 Ducarchar 30 15, the carmying smeune of pledged depssics wish banks and scher Anandal insitions we RMBSYE milicn (31 Decarcher
2015: RMEIS1 raillian]. Thess dapouics wars matrly margin and marberhip fer pladged with a regalacary body.
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18 Placements with and loans to banks and non-bank financial institutions

{a) Analysed by types and locations of counterparties

31 Deecember 31 December
Mote 2016 2015
In Mainland China
— banks 3,003 15,320
— non-bank financial institutions 138,293 Tr262
Subtatal 141,296 92,382
Ohutside Mainland China
— banks 25,921 26,202
Subtotal 25,921 26,202
Gross balance 167,217 118,784
Less: Allowance for impalrment losses 34 ) (&)
Net balance 167, 206 118,776
(b Ani]}'sr.d by remaining maturity
31 Drecember 31 December
Mote 2016 2015
Within one month 57,802 57439
Between one month and cne year 109,382 61,298
Ohver ane year 33 47
Gross balance 167,217 118,784
Less: Allowance for impalrment losses 34 ) (&)
Net balance 167, 208 L1B, 776
19 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
31 Drecember 31 December
Motes 2016 2015
Held :E:r'l:mﬂ.[ng financial assets
— debt securities () 9,630 8,536
— certificates of interbank ﬂ:pmlt ﬂ::! S, 699 15226
— investment funds 1 1
Subotal 60, 330 23,763
Financial assets designated at fair value
through profic ar loss
— debt securities () 4,581 2457
Toral 4,911 265,220
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19  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Continued)
ia) Held for trading — debt securities

31 Decetnber 31 December
016 2015
lssued by
In Mainland China
— povernments 51 386
— palicy banks 1,579 3.7
— banks and non-bank financial instoations 3,138 &76
— COrparates 1,838 3.371
Subtotal 8,606 BA11
Outside Mainland China
— povernments — 33
— banks and mon-bank fimancial instioations B9R 44
— corporates 136 42
Subtotal 1,024 125
Tatal H 630 B30
Listed in Hong Kong L rrd &7
Listed outside Hong Kong 6,775 T737
Unlisted 1,878 102
Tatal H 630 B30

ib) Held for trading financial assets — certificates of interbank deposit

31 December 31 December
2016 2015

lssued by
Banks in Mainland China S0,699 15226
Listed outside Hong Kong S0,699 15226

{c) Financial asscts designated at fair value through profit or loss — debt securities

31 December 31 December
2016 2015

Tssued by
In Mainland China
— banks 4,183 1,496
— pul'l.qr banls F63 270
Subtotal 4,446 1,766
Outside Mainland China
— banks 135 =
— oorporates — &2l
Total 4,581 2457
Listed outside Hong Kong 4,446 2457
Unlisted 135 —
Total 4,581 2457

Diebt securities traded on the China Domestic Inter-bank Bond Market are included in "Listed outside Hong
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Derivatives

Drerivatives include forward, swap and option transactions undertaken by the Group in foreign exchange, precious
metals and interest rate markets related to trading, asset and liability management and customer initlated transactions.
The Group, through the operations of its branch network, acts as an intermediary for a wide range of customers for
structuring deals to offer risk management solutions to match individual customer needs. These positions are actively
managed through hedging transactions with external parties to ensure the Group’s net exposures are within acceptable
risk levels. The Group alio uses these derivatives for proprietary trading purposes and to manage its own asset and
Hability and structural positions. Dierivatives, except for those which are designated as hedging instruments (Mote 20
{c)). are held for trading. Deerivarives classified as held for trading are for trading and customer initiated transactions
purpaoss, and those for risk management purposes but do not meet the critera for hedge accounting,

The contractualf notional amounts of derivatives provide a basis for comparison with fair values of dervatives rcognised
on the consolidated statement of Financial position but do not necessarily indicate the amounts of hature cash fows
involved or the current Bir values of the decivathves and, therefore, do not indicate the Gmu.p’: EXposure to credic or
market risks.

Certain financial assets and financial liabilites of the Group are subject to enforceable master netting arranpements
or similar AgTesmenis. The agreement between the Gmu.p and the counterparty aencm.]ljr allows for net settlement
of the relevant financial assets and financial Habilities when both elect to settle on a net basis, In the absence of such
an election, financial assets and financial liabilities will be settled on a gross basls. However, sach party to the master
netting arrangements or similar agreements will have the option to settle all such amounts on a net basis in the event
of default of the other party. As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, the Group did not hald any other
financial instruments that were subject to master netting arrangements or similar agreements.

Under the daily mark-to-market and settlement arrangement, any gains or losses of the Group’s positicon in futuces wers
settled daily and the corresponding payments or receipts were included in deposits with banks and non-bank financial
institutions as at 31 Diecember 2018 and 31 Diecember 2015, A::-Drdjng]}r, the amount of mark-to-market gain or loss
of unexpired hatures contracts included in dedvative financial instruments above was nil.

31 December 2016 31 Decemnber 2015
Mominal Nomiral
ameunt Assets Liabilitles amount Asses Lisbilicies
Hedging instruments (Mate (c])
— interest race derivatives 14,068 0l 13 11,144 237 3B
Meon-Hedping instruments
— interest rate derivatives 842,387 3164 2700 593,379 1.0%4 57
— currency derivatives 2612557 41,232 40,045 1,600,764 11,489 10,119
— precious meral derivatives TTIE5 1,769 2201 18,763 1.008 34
— other derivatives — — — 5,222 — —
Taral 3,546,397 47,366 45,059 2,229,172 13,788 11,418

{a) MNominal amount ann]};scd by remaining maturity

31 December 31 December

2016 2015

Within three months D62, 420 #4085
Between three months and one year 2,298,022 1,299 448
Between one year and five years 283,656 113,955
Ohver Five years 2,299 1,744
el 3,546,397 2,229,272
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20 Derivatives (Continued)

(b} Credit risk weighted amounts

The credit risk welghted amount has been computed in accordance with “Regulation Governing Capital of
Commercial Banks (provisional)® promulgated by the China Banking Regulatory Commission ("CBRC™) in the
year of 2012, and depends on the status of the counterparties and the maturity characteristics of the instruments,
inclading those customer-driven back-to-back transactions. As at 31 December 2016, the total amount of credic
risk weighted amount for counterparty was RMB37,134 million.

{c) Fair value h:dgc

A subsidiary of the Group utilises fair value hedge to diminate the effect of fair value changes of financial assets
and financial liabilities caused by market interest rate fluctuations. Interest rate swap contracts are used for hedging
interest risks arising from available-for-sale debt securitles, certificates o f deposic and subordinated bonds issued.

21 Financial assets held under resale agreements

{a) Analysed by types and locations of counterparties

31 Decemaber 31 Diecember
016 2015
In Mainland China

— banks 146,370 136,959
— non-bank financial institutions 24, 4% 251
Subtotal 170y 804 137210

Outside Mainland China
— banks — 1.351
Subtetal — 1.351
Tatal 1710, B0 138,561

(b} Analysed by types of collateral
31 December 31 Diecember
016 2015
DHscounted bills — 70,788
Securities 170,770 67,232
aues i 541
Tatal 170,804 138,561
ic) Analysed by remaining maturity

31 December 31 December
016 2015
Within one month 170,770 135,200
Berween one month and cne year 34 3,241
More than one year —_ 100
Tatal 170, 804 138,561

Collateral received in respect of financial assets held under resale agreements are disclosed in Mote 55 (b).
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22 Interest receivables

31 Drecember 31 December
Mote 2016 2015
Loans and advances to customers 14,482 10,343
Investments classified as receivables 10,951 12,963
Diebt securities 9,608 7.BE2
Others 1,787 1458
Sross balance 36,828 32,646
Less: Allowance for impairment losses 34 (3, D) {2,134&
Met balance 31,922 30,512
23 Loans and advances to customers
{2) Analysed by nature
31 Drecember 31 December
Motes 2016 2015
C‘nrpnmt\e loans
— loans 1,811,765 1,749,543
— discounted bills T04T 92,745
— finance lease recetvables () 3, 509 17.879
Subtotal 1,921,321 1,860,167
Personal loans
— residential mortgages 433,210 TR, 026
— business loans 111,949 105,770
— credit cards 237,712 175,801
— others 173735 118,116
Subtoral 956,606 GE8,613
Gross balamce L BTT.92T 2,528,780
Less: Allowance for impalrment losses 34
— indbvidually assessed (25,448) (15.345)
— collectively assessed (50,095) (45,152)
Subtatal (75.543) {60.497)
Met balance 2,802, 384 2,468,283
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23 Loans and advances to customers (Continued)

(b} Analysed by assessment method of allowance for impairment losses
31 Decetaber 2016

Identified Lmpalred loans Giross
Loans and and advances (Mote (1)) Impalred
advances For which loans and
for which for which allowance advances
allowance allo wance Is as a % of
Is 1=  lndividually gross total
collectively  collectively assessed loans and
aszessed amsesoed (MNowe (10 Total advances
Gross loans and advances 2,829,347 10,579 38,001 2,877,927 ﬂ
Less Allowance for
impairment losses (41,988) (8,107 (25,448) (75.543)
Met balance 1,787,359 2472 11,553 1,801, 384
31 Decamber 2015
Identified impaired loans Gross
Loans and and advances (Mote (i)} impaired
advances for which loans and
for which for which allowance advances
allowance allawance is as a ¥ of
is is  indbridually gross total
collectively collectively assessed loans and
assessed assessed (Mote (i)} Total advances
Gross loans and advances 2,492,730 8,011 28,039 2,528.780  1.43%
Less: Allowance for
impairment losses {38.306) (5,846) (15.345) (B0, 497)
Met balance 2453424 2165 12504 2468283
Natae
[1H] [denified impxind leane and adh ] mchuds Jeans snd advances for which abjecdve svidmmon of impsimmen: sxine ad whick
horea bewn womeasedd ax baseing sgnificsne impainmme Jase which e asaned iodividually or colactively (poctiibias of bomog R——
advarcen).
[111] wmsamd Fi laara
31 Decambar 31 Decumbar
pLGE mis
Secured perilen 10,060 L4412
Unmcured perien 18044 13,527
Teead 3R004 2803
Ledid sl ol s \carmen (25448 (153485
Ma balanca 12553 L2404
Marknun sxposacs covensd. by pledge and collriars] bald 18,643 13748
Tha fair valua of collierd v d by manags based o cha Late ravab dnding avallabls sxernal vl IF sy, adjpumad

by taking lnca asssant the current readluckn sxpacmcs o wall a marke douilon
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23 Loans and advances to customers (Continued)

ic) Movements of allowance for impairment losses
Yeat evded 31 Decembet 2016

Loans and Impalred loans
advances and advances
for which for which for which

allowance Ls allowance Is allowance Is
collectively collectbrely Individually

assessed assessed assessed Tatal
Asat 1 January 2016 39306 5,846 15,345 60,497
Allowance for impairment losses
on loans charged 2562 6,918 3B, B45 4R 425
Reversal of impairment for the year — (405) (2,305) (2,710
Unwinding of discount on allowance — — (5] (564)
Transfer in (Mote (i)) 20 —_ 255 75
Write-offs (Mote 63) —_ (4,657) (26,295) (30,952)
Recovery of loans and advances
weritten off in previous year —_ 405 167 572
As at 31 December 2016 41,988 8,107 15448 75,543
Year ended 31 December 2015
Loans and Impaired loans
advances and advances
for which for which for which
allowance is allowance is allowance is
collectively collectively individually
d | d Tatal
Asat 1 January 2015 36,469 3,954 11,153 51578
Allowance for impairment losses
on loans charged 2,818 3.670 28,933 37421
Reversal of impairment for the year — (358) (1,943) (2.301)
Unwinding of discount on allowance — — (5920 (593)
Transfer in (Mote (i)) 19 — 13 v
Wiite-offs (Mote 63) — (3.778) (22,461) (26,239)
Recovery of loans and advances
written off in previous year — 358 742 00
As at 31 December 2015 39,306 5,846 15,345 60,497
Plocs:
[ H] Trandfar in ircloden tha offec of sxchangs raca
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23 Loans and advances to customers (Continued)

id) Owerdue loans analysed by overdue peried
31 Deceinber 2016

Ohverd Ohverd
Owerdue  between thiee betweeh one
withln thiee months and yeat ahd  Owverdue over
months ohe year three years thiee years Total
Unsecured loans 3985 5576 2,750 300 12,611
Guaranteed loans 7. 776 11,649 T.136 115 26,676
Loans with pledged
asses
— loans secured
|:|:r collaterl 22,689 17,191 B.560 561 49,001
— pledged loans 1,592 1,765 1046 62 5,465
Tatal 36,042 37,181 19,492 1,038 93753
31 December 2015
Owerdue Owverdue
Owerdue  between three betwreen one
within three months and year and  Owerdue over
months ane year three years three years Total
Uns=cured loans 3,425 3,053 2508 297 9.293
Guaranteed loans BS0T 5,285 5.105 230 19527
Loans with pledged
assers
— loans secured by
collateral 21,579 12,142 6,341 74 40,336
— pledged loans 3087 1.585 1,000 2 5744
Tatal 35,998 22,085 14954 BG3 748900

Bam:

Chardus lans mpresot leans of which tha principal or lotsnest o avardes ans day <r mon.
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23 Loans and advances to customers (Continued)

{e) Finance lease receivables

Finance lease recebtvables tramsactions are attributable to the Group’s subsidiares, CITIC Financlal Leasing
Limited {"CFLL"} and CITIC International Finance Heldings Limited (“CIFH™), include net imvestment in
machines and equipment leased to customers under finance lease and hire purchase contracts which have the
characteristics of flnance leases. These contracts wsually run for an initial period from 1 to 25 years. The total
minimum finance lease recebvables under finance lease and hire purchase contraces and their present values are

as fallows:
31 December 2016 31 December 2015
Present value Present value
of minlmum Minlmaum of minimam Minimum
finance leases fhance leases  Fnance leases  finance lease=s
recebrables recebrables recebvables receivables
Within one year (including one year) TATT 8,459 3543 4.3B8
One year to two years
{including two years) 6,514 7,761 3,689 4,343
Two years to three years
ﬁlndud.‘ln.g thres j’ﬂ.l:l::l 5,279 &, Thib 3,212 3,678
Ohver three years 14,059 16,762 7.435 8171
Gross balance 34,509 39,748 17.879 20,580
Less: Allowance for impalrment losses
— Lu.d.'h'ldu.nﬂy assessed 2y I:a::l
— collectively assessed (&43) (214)
Net balance 33,864 17,662
24 Available-for-sale financial assets
31 Drecember 31 December
Motes 2016 2015
Diebst securities (a) 306,545 297444
Certificares of deposit (b} 116,050 75314
Equity investments
— measured at fair value (<) ] 446
— measured at cost (<) 411 134
Investment funds (dy 20,TAT 422
Wealth management products 2 10
Total 534,533 373770
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24  Available-for-sale financial assets (Continned)

{a) Debt securities analysed by location of counterparties

31 Decetnber 31 December
016 2015
In Mainland China
— poVernments 166,151 97953
— palicy banks 91,905 72,893
— banks and non-bank financial instliutions 34,906 25,8&'1
— corparates 70,094 75.734
Subtotal 363,056 70423
Outside Mainland China
— e 15,023 16,759
— banks and non-bank financial instoations 11,787 7.130
— oorporates 6,679 3,153
Subtotal 33,489 7022
Tatal 396,545 207 444
Listed in Hong Kong 10,935 BAST
Listed outside Hong Kong 356,827 258974
Unlisted 18,783 J04013
Tatal 396,545 207 444
(b} Certificates of deposit analysed by location of counterpartics
31 Decetnber 31 December
2016 2015
In Mainland China
— banks 112,127 71053
Dueside Mainland China
— banks 3,923 3,261
Tatal 116,050 75314
Listed outside Hong Kong 116,050 75314
ic) Equity investments analysed by location of counterpartics
31 Dacembar 31 Decembear
2016 2015
In Mainland China
— corporates 391 115
Outside Mainland China
— banks and non-bank financial instmrions 136 126
— corporates 652 339
Toral 1,179 380
Listed in Hong Kong 305 338
Listed outside Hong Kong 116 108
Unlisted 758 134
Toral 1,179 380

Diebt securities traded on the China Domestic Inter-bank Bond Market are included in "Listed cutside Hong

Kong™.

China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
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24 Awailable-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

id) Investment funds analysed by location of counterparties

31 Deecember 31 December
2016 2015
In Mainland China
— banks and non-bank franclal insticutions 19,585 —
Ouiside Mainland China
— banks and non-bank franclal insticutions 457 §33
— corporates 695 —
Toal 20,737 422
Listed outside Hong Kong 19,585 —
Unlisted 1,152 423
Toial 20,737 422
25 Held-to-maturity investments
Diebt securities analysed by location of counterparties
31 December 31 Dacamber
Mote 2016 2015
In Mainland China
— governments 40, TR J0,066
— palicy banks &9, 861 64,022
— banks and non-bank financial instiutions 76,572 39.370
— corporates 21,430 26,469
Subtotal 217,149 178,527
Dueside Mainland China
— banks and non-bank financial instioutions 3B 40
— P‘I.L]!\]l.c entitles 3 4
Subtotal 351 44
Gross balance 21T, 500 178,971
Less: Allowance for impairment losses 34 (2) (41}
Total 217,498 179,930
Listed in Hong Kong 1 72
Listed outside Hong Kong 213, DB 174,848
Unlisted 4,199 4,810
Total 117,498 179,930
Fair value 219,014 185,152
OF which: listed securities 214,813 180,341

Diebt securities traded on the China Domestic Inter-bank Bond Market are included in “Listed outside Hong Kong™.
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26 Investments classified as receivables

31 December 31 December
Mote 2016 2015

Investment managFement pmdu.:l:! m.n.u.n.g:d
by securities companies 452,966 825016
Wealth management pmdu.:l: 458, 390 147 505
Trust investment plans 126,128 139471
Crthers — 500
Gross balance 1,037,484 1113092
Less: Allowance for impairment losses 34 (1,756) (8a5)
Met balance 1,035,728 1,11 2,207

HAs of 31 December 2006, Mlﬁ,ﬁ&} millicn {31 December 2001 % RMB7R630 mﬂﬂnn:l of Imvestments classified
as receivables listed abowe were managed by related companies of CITIC Corporation Limited, the Bank’s immediate

|FArent co mpany.

The undedying assets of investments classified as receivables primarily include interbank assets and wealth management
produces issued by other banks, credit assets and rediscounted bills (Mote 58 afvii)}.

27 Investments in associates

31 December A1 December
2016 2015
Investments in associates 1,111 a7h

{a) The Group holds its investment in associates through subsidiaries and details of the
associates as at 31 December 2016 was as follows:

Effectbre petoebiage
Forins of af shates and
busluess PFlice ol votlng Hght hedd Mol value of
Nume of comnpany sthictute  Incotpotation by the Groap Princlpal acthritles ] s
OTIC I janal Aaeets Carparasi Hang Kang i Iwvestment baling and  HEDZ2LE milica
Management Limited ["CLAM") aets managenent
Bichai (Tianjin) Financial farer Carparation. Mainkid China s Bnancial services FMB500 milliea
["BEAE") {Mae= )
Mate:

4] BFAE warsnisblithed on 24 March 2016, wich s mplammdcupled of RMES 00 million. Tha Group imesoed FAB 1D millan in BEAE mpresoiiog
0¥ of BFAE's squity.

(b} Financial information of the associates are as follow:

As at or for the yeat ended 2016

Tatal Total Total Opetating
Mame of Entetptise assers liabilieles et assets lhcome Net profit
CIAM 3102 579 1,523 (48] 3
BFAE 499 2 497 — (2

212 China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
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ic) Movement of the Group’s interests in associates

Total
Initial investment cost 993
Asat 1 January 2016 976
Additions 104
Share of gain from assoclates For the year 1
Dividend received [l
Exchange difference 43
As at 31 December 2016 1,111
Total
Inital investment cost B93
Asat 1 January 2015 BT
Share of gain from assoclates For the year 52
Share of other comprehensive income of associates for the year &
Dividend received (&)
Exchange difference 56
As at 31 December 201 5 976
28 Investment in subsidiaries
31 Drecember 31 December
MNotes 2016 2015
Investment in subsidiaries

— CIFH 1] 16,570 16,570

— CHNCE (Hong Kong) Imvestment Limired
("CHNCE Investment™) (id) LATT L377
— Lin’an Rural Bank (i) 102 102
— CFLL i) 4,00 4,000
Tatal 22,249 22,249

292/382
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28 Investment in subsidiaries (Continned)
Major subsidiaries of the Group as at 31 December 2016 are as Follows:

% of % of
vemeishlp  awhershlp The
Partlonlats of directly bhdd by  Group’s
Place of the Issued and Principal held by  subsidlatles  effective
Mame of entity Incotpotatlon  pald up caplml activitles the Bank of the Bank  Interest
CIFH [Nete (ij) Heng Eong HED7,503 million  Commerdal hanking and 100% — 100

other Anancal services

CMCE [vestment [Nece (ii)] Hang Kong HEKD1 589 million  Lending services 99.05% a9 10
Lin'an Rural Bank (Nece (i) Mainland China  BEME200 million Commerdial banking 1% — 1%
CFLL (Moee (iv) Mainland China  BMB4,000 million  Financial lease operations 100% — 10

Nowme

1] CIFH ta an lnvecment holing campany ceglmced sod kadquamecsd in Heop Kang. ha basinem scops chraugh ti subridiaci covencommarcil banking
ard ccher Anancial mevicon. Tha Bank belds 100 dhacsboling in CIFH. CIFH belds 1006 skarekaling in CITIC Bank Inmmaticaal Limed (5CHI™)

Ml NCE [nvescment was feunded In Hong Eeagin 1984, Hobing  money bnding Bosncelassed by the Heong Kang Corapany Ragisry, CHCE [ovesimani's

businam wops Includer csplial murke: ovenmere, lmding and scher relvied mrdco. Tha Bank held 00.09% shambalding o CHCB 1 and
CIFH halds iha g 0 99% shambaling In CHCB [ i 31 O bar 2014, tha Bank offs by hald 100%: sharshelding in CHCB
Invercrent.

il Lin‘sn Rursl Bank was foundsed in Thejlang Pravincs of Matolod China tn 2011 with a cagesced capteal of EAMB200 milien, [ principal acthities we
commnardal benking relsted burnames. Tha Bank kalds SL% of Lin‘an Rars] Bak's shams asd vating cigher.

B  TheBmk enablabed CFLL in 2014 with 2 regiatersd capieal of AME4 bilion. [ prncipal burines am financtl lesring.

214 China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
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29 Property, plant and equipment

The Group
Computet
Bulldings Construction equipment
{Mote (1)) I progress and others Total
Cost or deemed cost:
As at 1 January 2016 14,372 1,121 9,468 24,961
Additions 1,396 30 1072 3,498
Transfers [=:01] (G&ED) — —
Dhisposals (65) — (253) (318)
Exchange difference 85 — 71 156
As at 31 December 2016 17,468 471 10,356 28,297
Accumulated depreciation:
As at 1 January 20016 (3.452) — (5.526) (8.978)
Deepreciation charges (506) — (1,177) (1,683)
Diisposals 7 — 243 270
Exchange difference (18) —_ (54) (72)
As at 31 December 2016 (3.349) — (6,514) (10,463
Met carrying value:
As at 1 January 2016 10,920 1,1x1 3,942 15,983
As at 31 December 2016 (Mote (i) 13,519 471 3844 17,834
Computer
Buildings Construction squipment
(Mote (i)} in progress and others Total
Cost or deemned costr
As at 1 January 2015 12,264 1,684 8,368 22,316
Additions 1227 300 1,258 2,783
Transfers BG3 (863) — —
Dispazls (109 = (216) (226)
Etr_b.n.u.g\e differ=nce 28 — a8 B
As at 31 December 2015 14,372 1,121 9,468 24,961
Accumulated depreciation:
As at 1| January 2015 (2,992) = (4,586) (7.578)
Diepreciation charges (449) — {1,091} {1.540)
Disposals 3 — 193 196
Exchange difference (14) — (42) (56)
As at 31 December 2015 (3.452) — (5.526) (2874
Met carrying value:
As at 1 January 2005 9,272 1,684 3,782 14,738
As at 31 December 2015 (Mote (i) 10,920 1,121 3,942 15.983
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29 Property, plant and equipment (Cantinued)
Nome
1] An i 3l Dwcarnbar 2016, the eaginration trnafr procom of cortain bolldings s quind b noc bean conplesd, and cha oot koo valoe of mch bailings
wan s prezirasisly AME, 620 molizn (3] Discermber 2015: RMEL,ES0 milliar]. Tha Grosp balieve tha 1oz cmplss reglsiraan pracsdurs dass et afect
tha righta of ths Grosp u che lagel mucosmar oo chems baillings.

)  Analmed by remaining tern of leme

Tha nat curing vihu of buldings s the ceparing date 1s srdysd by the rematning ceemo of the kose w Bl

31 Decambar 31 Decumbar
pLGE mis
Leag carm e [ovar S0 yasrr), hald in Hong Eoap il (]
Madiam corsa lsasas (1050 yaeurs), keld in Hang Ezag 21 158
Medium orr lease [10-50 yasrs), held in 3Mainknd Ching 132132 LS
Parmansnt cecr. leass, haH In ovarsas 25 24
Teml 125180 LOLAZ0

30 Investment properties
31 Decemaber 31 Diecember
2016 2015
Fair value as ar 1 Jamuary 315 280
C]m.na: in fair value & 27
Transfers (51) —_
Emd:.n.ng\e difference 23 18
Fair value as ar 31 Diecember 305 325

Imvestment properties of the Group are buildings held by subsidiaries and mainly located in Hong Kong and leased o
third parties through operating leases. There are active real estate markets where the investment properiies are located
and the Group is able to obtin market price and related information of similar properties, and therefore makes
estimation about the fair value of the investment properties as at 31 December 2016,

All investment properties of the Group were revalued ar 31 December 2016 by an independent firm of surveyors,
Prudential Surveyors (Hong Kong) Limived, on an open market value basis. The fair value is in line with the definition
of “IFRS 135 — Fair value magsuremenst”. The revaluation surplus has been credited to the profit or charged to the loss.
Prudential Surveyors (Hong Kong) Limited has among their staff Fellows of the Hong Kong Institte of Surveyors
with recent experience in the location and category of properties being valued.

The investment properties of the Group are categorised into Level 3.

2165  China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
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30 Investment properties (Continned)
{2) Analysed by remaining term of leases
The net carrying value of investment properties at the reporting date is analysed by the remaining terms of the

leases as follows:
31 Drecember 31 December
2016 2015
Long term leases {ower 50 years), held in Hong FKong 15 16
Medium term leases (10250 years), held in Hong Kong 255 276
Medium term leases (10250 years), held in Mainland China as a3
Total 305 323

31 Goodwill

31 December 31 Dacambar
2016 2015
As at 1 January 854 793
Additions — 10
Exchange difference L] 49
As ot 31 December 14 B

Based on the result of impairment test, no impairment losses on goodwill were recognised as ar 31 December 2016
(200 5 Mil).

32 Deferred tax assetsf(liabilities)

31 December 31 December

2016 2015

Dieferred tax assets 12,607 7081

Dieferred tax liabilities {11} {10}

Het 12,686 7971
ia) Analysed by nature and jurisdiction

31 December 2006 31 December 2015

Deductible/ Dreductible/

(eazable) Dreferred (raxable) Dleferred
et po Fa by taz assets/ temporary tax assets/
differenoes {labilitdes) ditferences (liabilities)

Dreferred tax assets
— allowance for impairment losses 51757 13,165 AB.BTY 9,604
— fair value adjustments (96E) (250 (8,060) (24017)
— employee reticement benefits
and salaries payable 2,682 721 2,818 T
— othens (3.844) i939) (L647) {400)
Subtotal 50,827 12,697 31,990 7.981
Dreferred tax liabilities
— kair value adjustments (65) () (39 (10)
— others —_ — fl:ﬂ —
Subtatal (65) (1) (50) (10}
Met 50,762 11,686 31,930 7971
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32 Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) (Continned)

(k) Movement of deferred tax

Employee
Allowance tetlrement
for benefits Tatal
Impalrment  Falr value and accraed deferred
losses  adjustments staff cost Dthers tax
As at 1 Jaouary 2016 9694 (2,027 Tk (404) 771
Recognised in profit or loss 3,468 (4§22} 1w (538) 1529
Recognised in ather
comprehensive incame — 2,188 (e} — 2,186
Exchange difference 3 — — {3 —_
As at 31 December 2016 13,165 (261) 711 (933) 11,686
As at 1 January 2015 7830 (25@) 1,899 (162} 2317
Recopnised in profit or loss 1,861 (333 (L,197] (238) 71
Recognised in ather
comprehensive incame — (1.438) F — (1.436)
Exchange difference 3 (4) — — (L}
As at 31 December 2015 9694 [Z,027) T (408) 7471
Mais:
Thara la xw= maserial areeccgnimd deferred tac wsseis ar labildes soae 31 Oy ber 2016 (31 D bar 2005 M.
33 Otiher assets
31 December 31 December
Mates 2016 2015
Precious metal leasing 13,927 12443
Prepayments for properties and equipment (i) 12,335 12,555
Prepayments for assets acquired for finance leases 4,448 1.984
Fee and commisslon receivables 3,684 77T
Repossessed assets (1) 1,814 Qi
Leasehald improvements 1,677 1.793
Prepaid rent 1,065 1072
Land use rghts 1,054 a51
Advanced payments and settlement accounts 85 1.355
Crthers 7,845 4351
Total 58,654 40,141
i) Prepay far md
Freg e e tha rmup cxas Eor: fficn posalam leeig coxetrmcte]
[ Rapomsmsed muts
31 Decambar 31 Decumbar
1016 mis
Prembar 1835 L048
Ccharn 1986 B
Coom lbalance 2032 1130
Lan: Allawsnca far lmpalcnsnt leams 218 LT
[ 1LA14 260

A 21 31 Dacenbar 2004, cha Group dntendad io dispom ol F che repasmssed s, and bad no plan t3 warfer dhe cpomued i for e wa.
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34 Movements of allowance for impairment losses

Year ended 31 December 2016
Asat ] Charge for Rewersal for Citheis Asat3l
Motes Januaty the year the yeat  Wilte-offs Mote (1)  Decembet
Dleposits with bank and non-bank

fnsocial ingitutions 17 - 3 - - - 54

Place mencs with and lIoans o banks and
non-bank Finandal instirations 13 B — — — 1 9
[nterest receivables 12 L1 5452 Ei1g) (3.296) 35 3906
Lears and achances o costomers 3 [R5 4B425 (2,710) (30,95 183 5543
Available-for-sale financial assets 24 160 45 2 — (41) 162
Held-to- marurity investmenes 5 41 1 — — [41] z
[nvestments clasified 13 recehvables b1 BES B71 — - - 1,756
Olcher aseet 159 T (To) (387 76 1,360
Total 65,724 55,571 (3.201) (34.535) 313 B3, 771

Year ended 51 December 2015
Asat1  Charpe for  Revernl for Othen Asat 3l
Hotes Junuary the year thepear  Wrike-offs Mote (ij  December

Placements with and lnans to hanks and

nondank finandal instiruticns 18 -] — — — — B
Interest rocelvables 1 1,390 3,398 M5 (e 2% 2,134
Loans and achances m customers k| 51,576 Fan [2.301) (26,235 0 [ Ei
Availahle-for-rale Anancial assets 24 LHl 3 1] — 6 160
Hed-to-marurity invesxments 25 41 — 4 — § 41
[nvesemenis clamified 23 recehable 25 156 719 = = = ERS
Ocher wseets BB2 1,379 fa] {178 & 159
Toral 1% 42,990 (2,558 (28,644 a2 a5

Hatm:

i Cibiers tncluds snwinding of nmren 2o impaired fnencial aserr, mesvery of Lo wiimm off. and #fes of schangs diffarnce during che ye. In
addiian o the alswance for impaimmene Jomer thevs, the Group alse charged tmp urmens Joue againe oF-baluncs shest ks (Nate 13,

35 Depaosits from banks and non-bank financial institutions

Analysed by types and locations of counterparties

31 December 31 December
2016 2015
In Mainland China

— banks 446,824 306,463
— non-bank financial institutions 531,949 633,307
Subtotal ITETTI 1,051,770

Dutside Mainland China
— banks 1,566 16,722
— non-bank financial institutions 107 52
Subtotal L673 16,774
Total 981,440 1,068, 544
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36 Placements from banks and non-bank financial institutions

Analysed by types and locations of counterparties

31 Decetnber 31 December
016 2015
In Mainland China
— banks 46,689 31494
— non-bank financial institutions 20, 0 13,729
Subtoal 66,689 45,223
Crutside Mainland China
— banks 17,034 4,025
Subtotal 17,034 4,025
Total 83,713 49,248
37 Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements
{a) ."Lna]}rsn:l by type and location of counterparties
31 December 31 December
016 2015
In Mainland China
— PROC 85,415 BALT
— banks 33 100 60,223
— non-bank financial institutions — 1,870
Subtotal 118,515 T1:110
Cueside Mainland China
— banks 1,758 58
— non-bank financial institutions 69 —
Subtotal 1,827 58
Toal 120,342 71,158
(b} ."Lna]}rsn:l by type of collateral
31 December 31 December
016 2015
Diiscounted bills 29,055 77.492
Dhebt securities 21,287 43576
Toal 120,342 71,158

The Group did not derecognise financial assets transferred as collateral in connection with financial assets sold
under repurchase agreements. As at 31 December 2016, of these collateral pledged disclosed in Mote 55, no
legal title has been transferred to counterparties.
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38 Depaosits from customers
(2) Analysed by namure

31 Deecember 31 December
2016 2015
Dlemand deposits

— corporate customers 1,683,827 1,187,929
— pensonal customers 232,960 178,917
Subtotal L9116, 787 1,366,846

Time and call deposits
— corporate customers 1,390,212 1,446,939
— pensonal customers 325053 362,433
Subtotal 1,715,265 1,809,372
Ourward remittance and remittance payables T2 238 6,337
Total 3,639,290 3,182,773

(b}  Deposits from customers above included pledged dcposits for the fn]]wing:—

31 Drecember 31 December

2016 2015

Bank acceprance 213,624 292,556
Guarantess 25,822 2L773
Letters of credic 0624 9.24]
Others 148,798 121,310
Toml 397,866 444,862

30  Accrued staff costs

Year ended 31 December 2016
Additlons Reductions

As at duting duting As at 31

MNates 1 Jamuary the year the year Diecembet

Short-term employee benefits {a) B.158 20,554 (20,039) 8.673
Post-employment benefics

— defined contribution plans (b} 32 2,150 (2,190 31
Post-employment benefics

— defined benefic plans {c) 49 [ (@) 35

Other lonp-term benefis &3 39 (23} 79

Tol B30z 11,789 (22,272) B.B19

Year ended 31 December 2015
Additions  Reductions Transfer

Asar during during out As at 31

Mortes 1 Jaouary the year the pear (Mo (i) Diecember

Shioct-teren employee benefits (3 11,387 20,064 (19,517) (3.7B1) 8158
Post-employment benefics

— defined contribution plans by 16 2,291 {2,275 —_ 12
Past-employment benefics

— defined benefic plans fc) 40 1 [ — 49

Oither loog-term benefis T8 21 (38} — i3

Taul 11,521 22387 (2LE2%) {3,781} 8,302
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39  Accrued staff costs (Continued)

{a) Short-term employee benefits

Yeatr ebded 31 December 2016
Additions Reductlans

As at duting duting Asat 31
1 January the year the year Drecember
Salaries and bonuses 7134 15442 (15.093) TAB3
Social insurance 5 L189 (1,175) i
Welfare expenses — 147D (1, 47m) —
Housing fund 16 L.250 (1,257) 19
Labour union expenses and employes
education expenses 915 613 (468) L0G0
HG'I.I.ILI:I.E allowance 34 484 {470) 48
Orthers 14 106 (106) 14
Tatal B, 158 10554 [ 205035) 8,673
Year ended 31 Dlecember 2015
Addien:  Reductions Tracsfer
Asat during during out As ar 31
1 January the year the year [Miate (i)} Dlecember
Salaries and bonuses 10,589 15,260 (14.934) (3.781) 7,134
Social Insurance 19 1,057 {1,041) —_ 35
Welfare expenses — 1,294 (1.295) — —
Housing fand 25 1,211 {1,210 — %
Labour union expenses and employes
education expenses 711 G636 (432) — 915
Housing allowance 2B 439 (433) — 34
Orthers 15 165 i L) — 14
Tatal 11387 20,064 (19.512) {3.781) 8,158
BMatm
4] Thia rspreme defarced smelurmeno pryabls 1o anpleyee in reepec of mevdces previded ca che Groop, Such wiill bwdl ]
ta plara. As x 31 Decarmber 2018, the deformed smelumeni payshls smconced o FABS, 7] milllon and wa Incladed in "cchar Uahbilbies™
(Wcca 4.

ib) Post-cmployment benefits — defined contribution plans

Past-employment benefits-defined contribution plans include contributions to statutory retirement plan. Pursuant
to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC governing labor and soclal security, the Group joins statutory
retirement plan for the employees as set out by city and provincial governments. The Group is equired
make contributlons based on defined ratios of the salaries, bonuses and certain allowance of the employees o
the statutory retirement plan under the administration of the government.

In addition to the above statutory reticement plan, the Bank's qualified employees have joined a defined
contribution retirement scheme (the “Scheme”) which was established by the Group and managed by the
CITIC Group. The Bank has made annuity contributions at 5% (31 December 2015 5% of its employee’s
gross wages. For twelve months ended 31 December 2016, the Bank made annuity contribution amounting to
BEMB629 millicn (31 December 2015: RMBS71 million).

The Group’s employees based in Hong Kong join the Mandatory Provident Pund Scheme with certain
contribution ratics pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in Hong Kong,
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39 Accrued staff costs {Continued)

ic) Post-employment benefits — defined benefit plans

The Group offers supplementary retirement benefits for certain of its qualified employees in Mainland China.
These retired staff can elect to join this supplementary retirement benefit plan. The amount that is recognised
as at reporting date presents the discounted value of benefit obligation in the future.

The Group’s obligations in respect of the supplementary retirement benefic plan as ar the reporting date are
based on the projectad unit credit actuaral cost method and computed by a qualified professional actuary firm
{2 member of Soclety of Actuaries in the United States of America).

Save for the disclosed above, the Group has no other matedal obligation for payment of retirement benefits.

40 Taxes payable

31 December 31 December

2016 2015

Income tax 3442 2248
WAT and surcharges 2,911 —
Business tax and surcharges — 2,363
Others 11 {118
Tatal &, 364 4,693

41 Interest payable

31 December 31 December

2016 2015

Dreposits from customers 27,867 28,701
Diebt securities lssued 2,045 2,061
Dihers 72243 7397
Total 37,155 38,139

42 Provisions

31 Drecember 31 December

2016 2015

Litigarion provisions 44 2

Movement of provisions:

31 December 31 December

2016 2015

As at 1 January z 5
Accruals 243 3
Reversals — (1)
qunu:ntl (1) ﬁ:'
As ot 31 December 244 2

The Bank recorded litigation provisions for cases occurred in 2016 which amounted to RMB241 million.
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43  Debt securities issued

31 December 31 December

Motes 2016 2015

Long-term debt securities issued () 31,2788 31,295
Subordinated bonds issued:

— by the Bank (k) 68,441 ToA434

— by CBI {c) 7.801 7345

Certificates of deposit issued (d) @493 8,705

Certificates of interbank deposit issued (=) 69,923 171,356

Tatal 386,946 289,135

{a)  As ar 31 December 2016, long-term debt securities isued by the Group:

31 December 31 December

Annual lalg 2015
Livterest MNominal HMaminal
Bond Trpe Tssue Dare Marturicy Date Rate Valne Vilue
Fized race bond B Miovember 2013 12 November 2018 5.20% 15000 15000
Fized race bond 17 Febmuary 2014 27 February 2017 4.125% L5080 1,500
Fized race bond 21 Bay 2015 25 May 2020 3.98% Ta00 Ta00
Fixed rare bond 13, Movember 2015 17 November 2030 3.61% 2000 B000
Total nominal value 31500 31,50
Less: Unamoctued isuance cost (35) 28)
und discount

Elimination of postions ¥y 177

hed by a subsidiary
Carrying value 31,288 31,295

(k)  The carrying value of the Bank’s subordinated bonds issued as ar 31 Decemben

31 December 31 December
Mates 2016 2015
Subordinated fived rate bonds mataring:
— in June 2021 {iy — 2,000
— in May 2025 {ii) 11,500 11500
— in June 2027 (i} 13,972 19977
— in Auguse 2024 vl 36,962 36957
Tatal 68,441 T04534
Natee
[1H] Tha dnren cuiw an ths mbordinied fired roiw bends lansed on 22 Juns 2008 war 4. 12%: per sonom The Bank hed sxercbed the epiien 1o

rdsans all of tha bands st Ao value an 1 Jane 2016

111} Tha irearast rumm on cha mbordinaed Axed row beads oed on 1B Moy 2010 b0 4.30% per eonom Tha Banle bar an epticn 10 edemm che
bonds oo 28 May 2020, F chey ave noe cedsumned, th tnterese ram of th bonds will cematn o 4.30% par anoum foc the et fva year,

(101} Tha ircarear rume on the suhordinaced Azed cxie beode laoed. 20 21 June 3012 b 5.15%: per aonome The Back: har an cption o edeam. cha
bonds e 21 Juns 2021 [F they aw nee redemad,. cha Inmemat cscs of che beads will remsdn o 5.15% par anoum for dus oect Ave yascs.

Ix Ths Inmrast caca oo the mubcrdinaed fived con bonds doaed eo 26 Aogon 2014 i 6.13% par anoum. Tha Bank ba an cptien ca cedeam cha
beads cn 26 Angun 2019, 1F chay are nec redswmad, che o o of the bods will cemaln €196 per sooom for the meax fee pram
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43 Debt securities issued (Continued)
{c)  The camying value of CBI's subordinated bonds issued as at 31 Decemben:

31 December 31 December
Motes 2016 2015

Subordinated fxed rave notes maturing
— in Jume 2020 i 3641 3462
— in Seprember 2022 (i) 2077 1.933
— in May 2024 (i) 2,083 1,950
Toial 7801 Tudi3

(4] Suberdinaod nooa with naminal value of USD 400 millica bear an Inmeai cois of &879% per snnom wam lamed an 24 June 2000 by CBLL

payable sami-anneally. The notes s daied an Singapees Exchange Sscarkie Trading Limited.

[ TH] Suberdnaod nocer with nonina value of USDA0 millizn besr norcen: st o feed reoe of 2375 por wnoum wam lamed on 17 September
2012 by CB, paysbla semi lly urrtil 28 Sapterbar 2017, and thecesfier fied it an interent rsca of the prevatling fheyear U5 Troasury
bends yteld plas 339096 par annam If the neces ars nee edesmed an er befars he call dacs ac ihe aptien of the Bank The noce aw lused on
tha Singspom Exchangs Sscurtiar Trading Linlod wed will macars on 22 Sepeember 2022

[1TH) Suberdnaoed oo with neminsl value of USD30 million ke dncamr o 5 freed com of &.00%: par snonam. wam dousd co 7 Movembar 2013
by CEI, payabls sral-annusly wndl 7 May 2019, and thevesfinr Fered 2 dee Inierese cace of the provalling fveyar U5 Troamry boods plald
plua 4.718% par snnun IF the neom s nat edsemed oo the call dew. Tha ot sce lesd on che Heag Eong Siode Exchangs snd will msours
an T May 2024

{d)  These certificates of deposit were issued by CBI with interest rate ranging from 0.46% to 3.62% per annum.
(=) As at 31 December 2016, the Bank had issued cermin certificares of interbank deposits, totaling BMB269,923

million {31 December 2015 RMB171,356 million), with yidd ranging from 2.68% o 3.75% (31 December
2015: 2.75% to 4.77%) per annum. The original expiry terms are between one month to two years.

44  Other liabilities

31 December 31 December

Notes 2016 2015

Settlement and clearing accounts 30,033 253,718
Dheferred emoluments payable 39 (a) 3,756 3.7E1
Advances and deferred expenses 3.740 2,947
Accrued expenses 655 il
Payment and collection accounts 468 i1
Precious metal contracts 446 2,935
Dhormant acoounts 436 339
Orthers 1] 13,569 7002
Tatal 53,105 41,652

Har:

[IH] Ohbare Inclods cha Growep's soccunin paysble 1o the thind pany tovesices of sireciond acchier, As o 3L Dacamber 2014, che smeunt: of dum sccownn
poyable war FAMBA, £40 milbicn.
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45 Share capital

31 December 2016
and 31 Diecembet 2015

MNumber
of shates Nominal
{milllons) Yalae
Crrdinary shares
Registered, issued and fully paid:
A Share 34,053 34,053
H-Share 14,882 14,882
Toatal 48,935 48,935
Hote 31 Diecember 2016 31 December 2015
As ar 1 January 48,935 46,787
Additions (i — 2,148
As ar 31 Diecamber 48,935 4B.933
HNoim:
i On 31 Dacuisar 2015, the Bank chroagh privas phesmene tmoed 2, 147 469,539 shaer in Chirs Mational Tohasss Corpardnn (CNTC), a an fmancs
prbce aF AMBE 5 par shars, ralaing RME 11482 milin in toeal afee deducion of imisnes firschading und g ] i Eom] Suck

imuanca remhied i an inzreae o share capital and share premiun by RME2, 148 millicn snd AMBD.T4D millan, mepsxiealy

46  Preference shares

Financlal Issued  Imoed number Tssued

Instruments e of shates  nomlnal value Mutrity

In lssue Dividend rute (AMB) (RMB millions) (RMB millions) date  Comerslons

Preference sharss  3.80% per annum for the Arx 100 350 5000 Mo Ma
Frre years after ismuance, and maturity conrersion
re-priced every Fve yeurs daze during

the year

350 millicn preference shares of RMB100 each were isued in Ocrober 2016, with a dividend rate of 3.80% per annum
for the First Five years from issuance, to no more than 200 qualified investors, pursuant to the approval by its crdinary
shareholders” meeting and relevant regulatory authorities.

The carrying amount of preference shares, net of direct Isuance expenses, was RMB 34,955 million as at 31 December
2016, All the proceeds received is used to replenish Other Tier-One capital in order to increase the Bank’s Tier-One
capital adequacy ratle (Note 59). Dividends are non-cumulative and where payable are paid annually. The dividend
rate will be re-priced every five years thereafier with reference to the five-year PRC treasury bonds yied plus a fxed
premium of 1.30%.

As authorised by the ordinary shareholders’ Anmual General Meeting, the Board of Directors has the sole discretion
to declare and distribute dividends on preference shares. The Bank shall not distribute any dividends to its crdinary
sharehalders before it declares such dividends to preference shareholderns for the relevant peried. The distdbution of
preference shares dividend is at the Bank's discretion and is non-cumulative. Preference shareholders are not entitled
to participate in the distribution of retained profits except for the dividends stated above.

The Bank has redemption option when specified conditions as stipulated in the offering documents of preference
shares are met, subject to regulatory approval, whereas preference shareholders have no rdght to require the Bank to

redeem the preference shares.
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Preference shares (Continned)

Upon occurrence of the trigpering events as stipulated in paragraph 2 (3) of the Guidance of the China Banking
Regulatory Commission on Commercial Banks® Innovation on Capital Insruments (CBRC Mo.56 [2012]) and subject
to regulatory approval, preference shares shall be mandatorily converted into ordinary A shares of the Bank at the
comversion price of RMB7.07 per share, partially or entirely. The comvesion price of the preference shares will be
adjusted where certain events cccur including bonus issues, rights issue, capitalisation of reserves and new isvances of
ordinary shares, subject to terms and formulae provided for in the offering documents, to maintain the relative interests
between preference shareholders and ordinary shareholders.

These preference shares are classified as equity instruments, and presented as equity in the consolidated statement
of financial pesition; and are qualified as Addicrional Tier-One capital Instruments in accordance with the CBRC
requirements.

Capital reserves

oOoOooodn

31 Drecember 31 December

2016 2015

Share premium 58,555 58,555
Other reserves a1 Bl
Total 58,630 38,636

Other comprehensive (loss)/income

Other comprehensive (loss)/income comprises items that may be reclassified subsequently to profic or loss when
specific conditions are met, mainly include fair value changes or available-for-sale financial assets, exchange difference
on translating forelgn openations, etc; and items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss, such as net changes on

the measurement of defined benefit plan (MNote 39).

Surplus reserve

31 Drecember 31 December

2016 2015

As at 1 January 23,362 19,394
Appropriaticns 3,901 3,968
Az at 31 December 27,263 23,362

Under the relevant PRC Laws, the Bank and the Bank’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are required to app ropriate 10%
of its profit for the year, as determined under regulations issued by the regulatory bodies of the PRC, to the statutory
surphas reserve until the reserve balance reaches 50% of the registered capital. After making the appropriation to the
statutory surplus reserve, the Bank may also appropriate its profic for the year to the discretio nary surplus resenve upon
approval by ordinary shareholders at the Annual General Meeting. The Bank makes its appropriation on an annual basis.

Subject to the approval of ordinary shareholders, starutory surplus reserves may be used for replenishing accumulated
losses, if any, and may be converted into share capiral, provided thae the balance of statutory surplus reserve after such
capitalisation is not less than 25% of the registered capital before the process.
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50 General reserve

31 December 31 December

016 2015

As ar 1 January 64,555 50,447
Appropriations 9,356 14,108
As ar 31 December 73911 64,333

Pursuant to relevant Ministry of Finance ("MOF”) notices, the Bank and the Group’s banking subsidiaries in Mainland
China are required to set aside a general reserve to cover potential losses against their asses. With the regulations
enforced from 1 July 2012, the minimum general reserve balance should increase to 1.5% of the ending balance of
gms risk-bearing assets with a transition perod of five years. The Bank makes Its appropriation on an anmaal basis.

51 Profit appropriations and retained eamings

{a) Profit appropriations and distribotions other than dividends declared during the year

31 December 31 December
Motes 2016 2015

Approprations to
— surplus resenve 449 3901 3968
— peneral reserve 50 %,356 14,108
Az at 31 December 13,257 18076

In accordance with the approval from the Board of Directors dated 22 March 2017, the Bank appropriated
BEMEBE3.901 million to stamtory surplus reserve fund and RMB9,020 million to general reserve for the year of
2016, The Group’s subsidiaries Lin’an rural bank and CFLL made appropriations to general reserve in accordance
with relevant regulatory requirements.

(bB)  In accordance with the resolution approved in the Annual General Mecting of the Bank on 26 May 2016, o
total amount of approximarely RMB10,374 million (RMB2.12 per 10 shares) were distributed in the form of
cash dividend to the ordinary shareholders an 25 July 2016,

lc)  On 22 March 2017, the Board of Directors proposed a cash dividend of RMB2.15 per 10 shares in respect of
the year ended 31 December 201 6. Subject to the approval of the ardinary shareholders at the Annual General
Mesting, approximately RMB10,521 million will be payable to those on the register of ordinary shareholders as
at the relevant record date. This proposal is a non-adjusting event after the reporting period and has not been
recognised as lability as ar 31 December 2016,

(d]  As at 31 December 2016, the retained earnings included the statutory surplus reserves of certain subsidiaries
of RMEB&E7 million Gl Diecember 2015 RMES0 n:IJHnn:I, of which RMBAE millicn {2(!15: EMEBE18 mIJHuu:I
was the appropration made by the subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2016, Such statutory surplas
reserves in the retained earnings cannot be distributed.
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52 MNon-controlling interests

As ar 31 December 2016, non-controlling interests included ordinary shareholders held by non-contmolling interest
in subsidiades and other equity instrument holders’ interests. Other equity instrument holders’ interest amounted to
FMEB5.149 millicn representing other equity instruments issued by CBL an entity ultimately controlled by the Group.
Such instruments are perpetual non-cumulative subordinated additional Tier-One capital securities (the “Capital

{Amomrty in millions of Renminbl onles othermwise sated)

Securities™).
Flnancial Nominal
Instruments value Flrst Payment
In Issue Issue date (enuillio ns) call date  Coupon rate frequency
Capital 22 April USD3o0 22 Aprdl  7.25% per annum for the first Ffive years  Semi-annually
Securities 2014 2019 after issuance, and re-priced every five
years to @ rate equivalent to the five
year UUS Treasury rate plus 5.627%
per annum
Capital 11 October USDS00 11 Ocober  4.25% per annum for the first Ffve years  Semi-annually

Securitles 2016

2021

after issuance, and re-priced every five
years to a rate equivalent to the five
year US Treasury mate plas 3. 107%
|PEr annum

CBI may, at its sole discretion, eect to cancel any payment of coupon, in whole or in part, or redeem Capital Securities
in whaole on the first call date and any subsequent coupon distrdbution date, where the holders of these Capital Securities
have no right to require CBI to redeem. These Capital Securities listed above are classified as other equity instruments.

A diseribution payment of RMB146 million was paid to the holders of the Capital Securities issued ar 22 Apdl 2014
during the year ended 31 Diecember 2016 (as at 31 December 2015: RMB137 million).

Motes to consolidated statement of cash flows

Cash and cash equivalents

31 December
2016
Cash 7407
Cash equivalents
— 5|.1.|:p]|.1.: d.cpu:l.r reserve hands 56,855
— Deposits with banks and non-bank financial institutions
due within three months when n:\q_uLmd 20,065
— Placements with and loans to banks and non-bank financial
institutions due wichin threee months when n.cqtdmd. 63, 158
— Investment securities due within three months when acquired 51,271
Subtotal ITT49
Total 385,356

31 December
2015

7.353

63,656
TO,E26

64458
20,069

219,009
226,364
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{Amommts in milicns of Renminhi pmless otharmise stated)

54 Commitments and contingent liabilities

{a) Credit commitments

The Gmu.p’l credit commitments take the form of loan commitments, credit card commitments, financial
puamantees, letvers of credit and acceptances.

Loan commitments and credit card commitments represent the undrawn amount of approved loans with signed
contracts and credit card limits. Financial guarantees and letters of credit represent puarantees provided by the
Group to guarantee the performance of customers to third parties. Acceptances comprise undertakings by the
Group to pay bills of exchange drawn on customers. The Group expects the majority acceprances to be sertled
simultaneoushy with the reimbursement from the customers.

The contractual amounts of credit commitments by categories are set out below. The amounts disclosed in
respect of loan commitments and credit card commitments assume that amounts are fully drown down. The
amounts of guarantees, letbers of credit and acceptances represent the maximum potentlal loss that would be
recognised at the reporting date if counterparties failed to perform as contracted.

31 December 31 December
016 2015

Contractual amounnt

Loan commitments

— with an n-r]ﬁnnl matu ity within cne year A 446 T089
— with an criginal maturity of one year or above G, 490 59 949
Subtotal 74,936 TTA38
Guarantees 163,157 133567
Letters of credit B, 499 a2 164
Acceptances 535,33 631,431
Credit card commiltments 215,845 149,138
Total 1,075,750 1,083.338

(b} Credit commitments analysed by credit risk weighted amount

31 Decetnber 31 December
016 2015
Credit risk weighted amount of credit commitments 337216 391878

The credit risk welghted amount refers to the amount as computed in accordance with the rules set out by the
CBRC and depends on the status of counterparties and the matarity characteristics. The risk weighting used
range from 0% to 150%.
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54 Commitments and contingent liabilities (Cantinued)

ic) Capital commitments

i The Group had the following authorised capital commitments in respect of property, plant and equipment
at the reporting date:

31 Drecember 31 December

2016 2015

Contracted for 297 7119
Authorised but not contracted for 1,748 113

(i)  As announced by the Bank dared 17 Movember 2015, the Board of DMrectors approved the proposed
cooperation between the Bank and Baldu to establish a direct bank. The relevant matters relating to the
establishment of the direct bank are subject to the approvals of regulatory authorities. The registersd
capital of the direct bank was RMB2 billion and the Bank subscribed 70% of the registersd capital. As
at the date of this report, the Bank has fully paid for the consideration and the approval from CERC

(i) As announced by the Bank dated 17 November 2015, the Board of Directors approved the establishment
of an asset management company (with a proposed name of China CITIC Bank Asset Management
Carporation Limited) by the Bank subject to the approvals of relevant regulatory authorities. The propossd
registered capital of this asset management company was RMB2 billion.

(d) Operating lease commitments

The Group leases certain property, plant and equipment under operating leases, which typically run for an initial
peried from one to fve years and may include an option to renew the leases when all terms are renegotiared. Asat
31 Drecember, the Group’s future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

31 December 31 Dacamber

2016 2015

Within one year 2,917 2, B
Afrer one year but within o years 2454 2,553
Afrer two s bt within thres years 2,137 2,173
Afver three years but within fve years 3,354 3,310
Afer fhve years 2,486 3,609
Toal 13,38 14,799

(e} Outstanding contingencies including litigation and disputes

The Group has assessed and has made provisions for any probable cutflow of economic benefits in relation to
commitments and contingent liabilitles at the reporting date in acco rdance with i accounting policies including
litigation and disputes. Such contingencies, including litigation and disputes, will not have material impact on
Anancial position and operations of the Bank.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group was involved in certain pending litigation with gross claims of RMB517
million l::nl at 31 Diecember 201 5% RMEBE394 ml]lhn:l. Based on the apinion of internal and extermal ]qﬂ] counsels,

the Group had made a provision of RMB243 million (as at 31 December 2015: RMB2 million) against these
licigation (Mote 42).
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{Amommts in milicns of Renminhi pmless otharmise stated)

54 Commitments and contingent liabilities (Cantinued)

ifi Redemption commitment for treasury bonds

MAs an underwriting agent of PRC treasury bonds, the Group has the responsibility to buy back those bonds
sold by it should the holders decide to sarly redeem the bonds held. The redemption price for the bonds at any
time before their maturity dates is based on the nominal value plas any interest unpald and accrued up to the
redemption date. Accrued interest payables to the bond holders are calculated in accordance wich relevant rules
of the MOF and the PEOC. The redemption price may be different from the hir value of similar instruments
traded at the redemption date.

The redemption obligations below represent the nominal value of treasury bonds underwritten and sold by the
Group, but not yet matured at the reporting date:

31 December A1 December
2016 2015
Rnin:n:pﬁ.an commitment far treasury bonds 12,723 13371

The original maturities of these bonds vary from one to five years. Management of the Group expects the amount
of redemption before maturity dates of these bonds will not be material. The MOF will not provide funding
for the eardy redemption of these bonds on a back-to-back basis, but will settle the principal and interest upon

(g Underwri ting ob ligations
As at 31 December 2016, the Group had no unexpired securities underwriting commitment (as ar 31 December
201 % Mil).

55 Collateral

(a) Asscts pledged

i} The carrying amount of financlal assets pledged as collateral in the Group's ordinary course of businesses,
including financial assets sold under repurchase agreements and bormowings from central banks, are

disclosed as below:
31 December A1 December
016 2015
Diebt securities 324,303 115553
Diiscounted bills 19,188 7 492
Orthers 76 137
Total 353,567 143,182

As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, the Group’s liabilities related to the above collateral
were due within 12 months from the effective dates of these agreements and title of these collateral was
not transferred to counterparties.

(i}  Inaddition, as at 31 December 2016, the Group pledged debt securities and deposits with banks and other
fimancial institutions wich carrying amouwnt rurnﬂilng EME1L.153 million |:51 December 201% EMEB159
millicn) as collateral for derbvative transactions and guarantee fands to exchanges. Title of these pledgad
assets was not transferred to counterparties.

(b} Collateral accepted

The Group received debr securities as collateral for financial assets held under resale agreements as set our in
Mote 21. Under the terms of theses agreements, the Group could not resell or re-pledge these collateral unless
in the event of default by the counterparties. As at 31 December 2016 and 31 Diecember 2015, the Group did
not resell or re-pledge any of these collateral.
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56 Transactions on behalf of customers

{a) Entrosted lending business

The Group provides entrusted lending business services to corporations and indbviduals, as well as entrusted
provident housing fund mortgage business services. All entrusted loans are made under the instruction or at
the direction of these corporations, individuals or provident housing fund centre and are funded by entrusted
fands from them.

Faor entrusted assets and liabilities and entrusted provident housing fand mortgage business, the Group does not
expose to credit dsk in relation to these transactions, but acts as an agent o hold and manage these assets and
liabilities ar the instruction of the entrusting parties and recetves fee income for the senvdces provided.

Trust assets are not assets of the Group and are not recognised on the consolidated statement of financial
position. Income received and receivable for providing these services is included in the consolidated statement
aof profit or loss as fee income.

At the reporting date, the entrusted assets and liabilities were as follows:

31 Deecember 31 December

2016 2015

Entrusted loans 703,259 GO& 264
Entrusted funds T03, 260 606,334

(b) Wealth management scrvices

The 'Gmu.p’l wealih management services (o customers mn.inl}r rEpresent sale of wealth management pmdu.ctl,
including principal guaranteed (Mote 52 (c)) and non-princlpal or interest guaanteed wealth management
pmdu.ch I:Nate &2 I:b-:l}l, b0 corporate and p:mn.n] bmuklng CUSOImIErs.

The furds raised by non-principal guarantesd wealth management products from investors are invested in various
imvestments, including debt securities and money market instruments, credit assets and other debt instruments,
equity instruments etc. Credit risk, lquidity risk and interest rate risk associated with these products are borne
by the customers. The Group only earns commission which represents the charges on customers in relation o
the provision of custodian, sale and management services. Income Is recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss as commission income. The Growp has entered into placements transactions at market interest
rates with the wealth management produces vehicles (Fote 62 (b)).

The assets and liabilities of these wealth management products are not assets and liabilities of the Group and
are not recognised on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Asar 31 December 2016, the amount of total assets invested by these non-principal guaranteed wealth management
products isued by the Group was disclosed in Mote 62 (B).
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57 Segment reporting
Measurement of segment assets and liabilitles, and segment income and expenses is based on the Group’s accounting
policles.

Internal charges and transfer pricing of transactions between segments are determined for management purpose and
hanve been reflected in the pedformance of each segment. Met interest income and expenses arlsing from internal charges
and transfer pricing adjustments are referred to as “Internal net interest income/expenses™. Interest income and expenses
eamed from third parties are referred to as “External net interest income/expenses™.

Sepment income, expense, assets and liabilites include items directly attributable to o segment as well as those that can
be allocated on @ reaso nable basis. Segment assets and liabilities do not include deferred tax assets and liabilities. Segment
Income, expenses, assets, and liabilities are determined before intra-group balances, and intra-group transactions are
eliminated as part of the consolidation process. Segment capital expenditure is the total costs incurred during the year
to acquire assets (Including both tangible assets and intangible assets) whose estimated useful lhves are over one year.

fa) Business segments

The Group has the following main business segments for management purpose:

Corporate Banking

This segment represents the provision of a range of financial products and services to corporations, government
agencles and non-fnancial instioutions, as well as conducts imestment banking businesses and International
businesses. The products and services include corporate loans, deposit taking activities, agency services, remittance
and settlement services and guamantee services.

Personal Banking

This segment represents the provision of a range of financial preduces and services to individual customers and
small enterprises. The products and services comprise loans, deposit services, securities agency services, remittance
and settlement services and guarantes services,

Treasury Business

This segment conducts capital markets operations, inter-bank operations, which, specifically, includes inter-
bank money market transactions, repurchase transactions, and imvestments and trading in debt instruments.
Furthermore, treasury business segment also carries out derivatives and forex trading both for the group and
for customers.

Others and Unalloca ted

Oithers comprise components of the Group that are not attributable to any of the above segments, along with
certain assets, liabilities, income or expenses of the Head Office that could not be allocated on a reasonable
basis. This segment also manages the Group’s liquidity pasition.

Dhuring the year, the Group reallocated international businesses and investment banking businesses, from treasury
business segment to corporate banking segment. The related comparative Agures have been restated accordingly.
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57 Segment reporting (Continned)
(a) Buosiness segments (Continued)

Year ennded 31 December 2016
Cotpotute Personal Treasury  Othets and

Banklng Banking Busihess  Uhall ocated Testal
External net imtersst iu.-cnm.eﬂ:qu:] 5,027 8,624 25,781 (4,294 106,138
Intemal net interest incoms'{expense) 14221 (12.346) (16,768) 14,891 —
Bdet incerest income TiL248 16,278 2015 1557 106,138
et fee and commission Iammu'[u:_pm, 13,677 13,533 GBS {1,398 42780
Oither net income Mot ()] 1,714 4 626 3037 Saril
Operatlng Locome 85639 0,175 16,109 1L236 154,159
Opetatlng expenses
e (1,099) (470) (760) G4 (2703
— others (17.520) (21,535) (1.348) 4,168) [44,569)
Impairment losses (44,341) (7.322) (217) (408) (52,288)
Revaluarion gain on investment properties — — — ] B
Share af gain from wssodates — — — 1 1
Prodit before tax 12,679 10,848 13,786 7295 54,508
Prafit for the year 41,786
Capltal expendirure 1,811 1,182 1,955 B0 6,7TBE
31 Decetmber 2016
Coatpotute Personal Treasuty  (thets and
Banking Banking Busitess  Unall ocated Testal
Sepment asset 1.566,810 1,034,645 L775.T8E 535,089 5,917,142
Interest in associace — — 1o@ 1,011 1,111
Dieferred tax asmers 11697
Tatal asset 5931050
Segment Llabililes 3. 223,082 209, 320 L261472 151669 5 #6543
Dieferred tax liabilities 11
Total Uabilitdes 5, 56,554
(Offbalance sheer credit commitments 859,905 15,845 — — 1,875,750
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57 5&gment reporting (Continned)

(a) Business segments (Continued)

Year ended 31 December 20015
Corpomte Pemonal Treasury  Others and

Banking Banking Business  Unallocared Towal
Exteral net interest income{expense) 53,354 24,802 29,936 [3.459) 104,433
[nternal net incerest incomed(expense) 15,213 (9.003) (186400 12,430 —
Met ioterest income &6, 367 1559 11,296 8,571 14,433
Met Fze and commission income 14,14 17077 4,639 (238) 5674
Other et incoener{expense) (Mate (i) 2553 857 2424 (156) 5438
Opetating locome B5.414 33333 18,359 B3 145,549
Operating expenses
— depreciation and amartisation (1,020 (363) 703y (353) (24540
— other [L&,155) (25.337) (1.223) (3.429) (44, 148)
I mpuirmen Joses Eez) (2 (216) (98] (0037
Revaluatian gain on irvestment properties — — — n 7
Share of gain from associates — — — 53 53
Profit before tax 0,214 4,725 16,218 5829 4986
[ncome mx (13.246)
Prafit fot the year 41,740
Capital expenditure 3,045 1,094 2,126 G4 6,949
4] Dlecamber 2015
Corporate Pemonal Treasury  Others and
Bankinp Banking Business  Unallocared Toeal
Sepment assets 1,267 448 799410 1,584,881 451,596 5,113,335
Incerest in associate — — — 76 a7E
Cieferred tax assers 7981
Total asset 5,122,292
Sepment liahilitles 2,728,042 SEB.08 1,239,707 266,758 4,802,596
Dieferred tax liabiliries 10
Total Liahilities 4,802,606
O balance sheet credic commicments O34, 200 149,13 — — 1,083,338

Hate:

[1H] Chiber rent dnecoma carabm of ree trsding puin, rac gun fmo Imeocoent scorides, nee hedging puin sed other cparsing Incoma.

236  China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited

315/382



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)
oOoOooodn

Chapter 14 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

{Amomrty in millions of Renminbl onles othermwise sated)

57 Segment reporting (Continned)
(b) Geographical segments

The Group operates principally in Mainland China with branches located in 31 provinces, autonomous regions
and municipalities. The Bank’s principal subsidiades, CHCE Imvestment and CIFH are registered and operating
in Hong Kong. The other subsidiaries, Lin'an Rural Bank and CFLL are registered in Mainland China.

In presenting information by geographical segments, operating income is allocated based on the location of
the branches that generated the revenue. Segment assets and capital expenditure are allocated based on the
geographical lecation of the underlying assets.

Geographical segments, as defined for management reporting purposes, are as follows:

—  "Yange River Delta™ refers to the following areas where tier-1 branches of the Group are located:
Shanghai, Manjing, Suzhou, Hangzhou and Minghbo, as well as Lin'an Rural Bank;

— “Pear River Dielta and West Strait™ refers to the following areas where tier-1 branches of the Goup are
located: Guangzhou, Shenzhen, Dongguan, Puzhou, Xiamen, and Halkow;

—  “Bohai Rim™ refers to the following areas where tier-1 branches of the Group are located: Beijing, Tlanjin,
Dialian, Qingdas, Shijlachuang, Jinan and CFLL;

—  “Central” region refers to the following areas where tler-1 branches of the Group are located: Hefei,
Zhengzhou, Wuhan, Changsha, Talyuan and Manchang;

— “Western™ region refers to the following areas whene tier-1 branches of the Group are locared: Chengdu,
Chongging, Xi'an, Kunming, Manning, Hobhot, Urumgi, Guiyang, Larzhou, Xining, Yinchuan and
Lhasa;

— “Martheastern™ region refers to the following areas where tier-1 branches of the Group is located: Shenyang,
Changchun and Harbin;

—  "Head Office™ refers to the headquarter of the Bank and the Credic Card Center; and
— “Ohverseas” includes all the cperations of CHCB Investment, CIFH and its subsidiaries

Faor the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group reclassified elimination from presenting separately to sach
relevant gecgraphical segments. The related comparative figures have been restated accordinghy.
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57 Segment reporting (Cantinned)
(b) Geographical segments (Continusd)

Tear eided 31 Decenber 2014
Tugee Pl Rt
Rt Delinnd Baldd Head
Dedee  West ek Rin Cenind Watein  Nunbeasem e  Owmimu Toul
Eorrad 2 injrest i 11416 Lyih LM 1540 1510 E1 K m 11 L 8
e e Biene: s o) 10 E L E ALy [+ 65 (2] -
N initrs: inoee g 16357 LT e 141 FRiT) 1350 1 (AT
Ko fer woed o i e 0 M0 S84 LT AR o i 47 Er
Ctber cevincare [N [ L k] [ bt} m ] 1§ 7 Ml
Cpetuifa iine i} XynT bl L} 1L a1 L2 nm Lim 154,158
pernting expense
— depuecition, ed arariomions [L41) frd k) 3 L) 1] [ il
— b oEn  GREA B [BEL GaED L DBy (LA (s
Tonpuirmees b w1 AT T T | 1 [a3L o s
Revhatin gin oo irvetment prepera - - - - - - - 1 ]
e of prin fram mciaies - - - - - - - 1 1
Pralh beboee 1 T [ b1 114 L] L] 141 Lm g
b 1] ]
Prafl for the st 4178
Cagitl expeeston 119 % 1K b} in 106 un 17 (%]
31 Dhscriaher X6
Tgr  Puiline
Bet  Deduud Boka Hed
Tdu  Won fek I Ceutnd Waei  Suthesan (1Fe (hreinss Tod
Seritid ety 1LHS M LM LT M A7 LD BiE A
I - - - - - - - M ML
Tfrwred s 1287
Tud wen il
S Libilides LM HME LBAR 1N o E ] HliL T 1EED S
Tt e il 1
Toial kabililes: SR
(Hdkncr vt ool commiemd 1LLi% s L] ¥ LA min A B R
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57 Segment reporting (Continned)
(b) Geographical segments (Continusd)

Yeur ended 71 Deceaher 20§
Twae Fudfime
B [diasd Babai Had
Oeba W b In Coard Turn  Nadewin O Ovems Tod
Eorereal oo mterest o L] 115§ L% His Hal A i S
Interal ot neret ncnehrpenss L ] £ b N i T Laz =
Bt iciersi oo T ¥ ik Ty ki 13 L IEE M
Bec bt iod cammisivn inoee i o] L 10 EAri] b Lt mo M
Dicker e v [N () L1 b} H Ll in i) B L1 s
Opeinily hooine HRE 1§ XM 153 L 15 ain i L34
Opemieg spene
— eprizin 2] amainrion ]| oy i) o] o L] Fen) .
— ot B E RN R pam M) B e
opuimest o 1 R U R . I & . L (o
Rendugion pin so ivesmen: propiria - - - - - = = k) n
har of e o e - - - - - - - W 5
Peak bebore i 47 17 1155 LD g L L7 1200 o
[ {11286
Probi fethe yeat v
Lapial mpensdine i1 L} i &1 LIH L] 1M ] (L]
11 Deauber 11
Yiem Bl B
Texr  Dvbowd Bed
Tda Wil behifin [T Wurn  Mechiwm {1+ O T
Sepmeatamty Mg T Ly i TR na iy e ima
[iewst i e - = = = = = = w ]
[l o avis 8L
Toid s pArE o
Sepmeai hililia L L I Ly LK sl nan E may e
Dielrved rax ks »
Tuidl Habilices frar
(ks bace st e o g 1mm m hi i HW MM Wk 1
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58 Financial risk management

This section presents information about the Group’s exposure to and s management and control of risks, in particular
the primary risks asseciated with its use of financial instruments:

—  Credit Hsk Credit risk represents the potential loss that may arse from the failure of a customer or
counterparty to meet its contractual obligations or commitments to the Goup.

—  Market risk Market risk arises from unfavourable changes in market prices (interest rate, enchange rate, stock
price or commadity price) that lead to a los of on-balance sheet or off-balance sheet business
in the Group.

— Liguidity dsk  Liquidity risk arises when the Group, in mesting the demand ofliabilities due and other payment
obligations as well as the needs of business expansion, is unable to sufficlently, timely or cost-
effectively acquire funds.

—  Operatlonal Ask Operaticnal risk arlses from inappropriate or problematic intemal procedures, personnel,
IT systems, or external events, such risk includes legal risk, but excluding strategy risk and
reputational dsk.

The Group has established policies and procedures to identify and analyse these risks, to set appropdate dsk limits and
controls, and to constantly monitor the risks and limits by means of reliable and wp-to-date management information
systems. The Group repulardy modifies and enhances its risk management policies and systems to reflect changes in
markets, products and best practice risk management processes. Internal auditors also perform regular audits to ensure
compliance with relevant policies and procedures.

(a) Credit risk

Credit risk represents the potential loss that may arse from a customer or counterparty’s failure to meet its
obligations when due. The Group identifies and manages this risk through its target market definitions, credic
approval process, post-disbursement monitoring and remedial management procedures. Credit risk arses primarily
from credit business. In respect of treasury businesses, credit risk mainly represents impairment losses of different
types of investments due to default by issuers or counterparties, and inability of dertvative counterparties in
fulfilling their obligations.

Credit business

In addition to underwriting standands, the principal means of managing credit rsk are credic limit management,
credit approval process, post-dishursement monitoring procedures such as eady waming and examination etc.
The Group has policies and procedures to evaluate the potential credic risk of a particular counterparty or
transaction and to approve the transaction.

The Group undertakes ongoing credic analysis and monitoring at seweral levels. The policies are designed to
promote early detection of counterparty, industry or product exposures that require special monitoring. The
Risk and Intermal Contral Committee monitors overall portfolio risk as well as individual problemaric credic
business, both actual and potential, on a regular basis.

The Group adopts a credit risk classification approach to manage the portfolio dsk. Credit businesses are classified
as non-impaired and impaired based on the different risk level. When one or more event demonstrares there
is an objective evidence of impairment and losses, comesponding credit businesses classified as impaired. The
allowance for impairment losses on impaired credit businesses is collectively or individually assessed as appropriate.

The Group applies a series of criteria in determining the classification of credit business. The credit classification
criteria focuses on a number of factors, including (i) the obligor's ability to repay the credit business, (i) the
obligor’s repayment history, (1) the obligor’s willingness to repay, (v} the net realisable value of collateral if
any, and (v} the praspect for the support from any financlally responsible guarantor. The Group also takes into
account the length of time for which payments of principal and/or interests on credic business are overdue, high
risk products and geographical lecations together with deterdoration in national or regional econemic conditions.
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58 Financial risk management (Cantinued)

{a) Credit risk (Continued)
Credit busniness (Contined)

The Group's credit policies and approval processes for personal loans are designed with reference to the fact that
there are high volumes of relatively homogeneous, small value transaction in each retail loan category. Because
of the nature of retail banking, the credit policies are based primarily on the Group's strategy and statistical
analyses of rsks with respect to different produces and types of customens. The Group monitors s own and
industry experence to determine and perodically revise product terms and desired customer profiles.

The risks imvalved in credit-related commitments and contingencies are essentlally the same as the credic sk
imvolved in extending credit business facilities to customers. These transactions are, therefore, subject 1o the
mme credit application, portfolis maintenance and collateral requirements as for customers” application for
credit businesses,

Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in geographic, economic or industral factos similardy affect
the Group's counterparties whose aggregate credit exposure is matedal in relation to the Group’s votal exposures.
The Group’s portfolioc of credit business is diversified along industry, geographic and produce sectors.

Treasury business

The Group sets credit limits for treasury operations based on the credit sk inherent in the products, counterparties
and geographical area. The Group's system closely monitars the credit exposure on a real-time basls, regulady
reviews its credit limir policies and adjusts the credit limits, taken into account various factors including market
condition at the time

i Madimum credit dsk exposure

The mazimum exposure to credit rsk at the reporting date without taking into consideration of any
collatera] held or other credit enhancement is represented by the et balance of each type of financial assets
in the statement of Anancial position after deducting any allowance for impairment losses. A summary
of the maximum exposure is as follows:

31 Drecember 31 December
2016 2015
Balances with central banks 545,921 503,834
Deeposits with bank and non-bank
fimancial inseitutions IR, G641 ®O,BDR
Placements with and loans to banks and
non-bank financial insticutions 167, 206 118,776
Financial assets ar fair value 'I:]Lmud:. prDcEt ar lass 4,910 26,219
Diervarive financial assets 47, Jinin 13,.7BE
Financlal assets held under resale agresments 170, B 138,561
Interest receivables 32,922 30,312
Loans and advances to customers 2,802, 384 2,468,283
Available-for-sale financial assets 515,595 372,738
Held-to-maturity imvestments 217,498 179,930
Investments classified as recebvables 1,035,726 1,112,207
Other financial assets 49,669 36,222
Subtotal 5,855,646 5.081,893
Credit commirments LO7 5750 1,083,238
Maximum credit sk exposure 931,396 5,165,231
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58 Financial risk management (Continued)

{a) Credit risk (Contined)

i)  [Distribution by credit exposure of loans and advan ces to customers, due from central bank, other banks
and non-bank financial institutions, finan cial assets beld under resale apreements, investment securities,

and investments clssified as receivable are as follows
31 December 2016
[rue Erom
cetithal
bank, other
banks and ~ Flnanclal
Loans and  non-bank  assets held lovestments
adwances to fnanclal wnder resale  lowestment  classifled us
Motes customers  lnstltutlons  apreements secntlthes  recelvables
Impalred
[ndividually asessed
Gross balance 38,001 3 — 6l —
Allwance for impairment koaszs (25,448) (9 — (31) —
Net balance 11,553 24 — 30 —
Collectively amessed
1Gross balance 10,579 — — — —
Allowance for impaiment leases (8,107 — — — —
Met balance 1472 — — — —
Ohverdue but hot Lmpalted fiy
— less than chrez months 4,667 — — — —
— three months tm ane pear 14,193 — — — —
Gress halance 48,850 — — — —
Allowance for impaicment loses (8,395 — — — —
Wet balance 4,465 — — — —
Melther overdue not Impalred
Gross balance 1,7TR0. 48T 921,7BO 170804 TOSNTT 1037 484
e (34) - (o4 (L756)
Het balance 1, 7468 921,746 170804 THSTE 1,035,728
Tatal net balance 1,802,384 921,770 170804 TOS003 1035, 728
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58 Financial risk management (Cantinued)

{a) Credit risk (Continued)

(i}  [Nstrdbution by cred# exposure of loans and advances to customers, due from centrml bank other banks
and non- bank financial institutions, financial assets beld unde r resale apreements, invest men ¢ secu tfes,
and investmeents clssified as receivables are as follows (continoed )

A1 December 2015
Chue from.
central
bank, other
banks and Financial
Leans and monbuk  wmens beld Invemments

wdvances Anandal  under pesale [ovesiment  dassified as
Netes oupomens  imtitutions agreements securities  peceivables

Lmpadred
Individually asseseed
Greas balance 28,039 an — 128 —
Allowanee for impaicment loses (15,345) [8) = {120} —
et balance 12,604 2 = ] =
Collectively assessed
Greas balance 2011 — = = —
Allowance for impaicment loses (5,B46) — — — —
Met balance 1165 = — — —
Owetdue but not Linpalred fil
— less chan chree momths 35,118 — — — —
— three monchs to one pear G418 — — — —
Gros balnce 41,536 = — — —
Allowance for impairment lnses 15.544) — — — —
Mex balance iz — — — —
Nelther everdue nok mpalred
Groas balance 2451194 3,351 138,561 5Ta.056 1,113,052
Allrwance For impaicment loses [ (33,762) — — (37 [E=3)
Mex balance 417432 T390 138,561 78899 1,11n,%7
Tostal net bakance 2,468,283 o413 138,561 8907 1,113,507
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58 Financial risk management (Continued)
{a) Credit risk (Contined)

i)  [Distribution by credit exposure of loans and advan ces to customers, due from central bank, other banks
and non-bank financial institutions, finan cial assets beld under resale apreements, investment securities,

and fnvestments clhsofiad as recefvables are as Foll; it | d)
Moax
(1] Collsars] snd othar credi anbancemanis for cvardos bue not b P lowra wred in
31 Decamber 31 Dacurrkar
106 s
Secured perctien. 26,571 L1684
Vrmescund pertizn. 11432 pELE
Corpoescs ke and sdvancer which wars svardas
bt ree impuksd 3R004 30741
Mizinom srpomum coversd by pledpe and cellard bl 25426 210,571
Tha fulir walaw =F <=l I was d by W buwd on tha lame cevdusticns nchiding madlsbls sxzercool valusdars, IF

any, adjumed by esking ines sceount che comme madbanien sxperience @ wall o madest conditiene

[ 18] Such ul} Far imy Lo ra d o=l mmensd all an ac cha parp dam,

{iif] Loans and advances to customers analysed by industry sector:

31 December 2016 A1 December 2015
Losans and Leans and
wdwinces ahances
Grms secubed by Grag seaured by
balanee % collaenl balance % collaemd
Cocpocaie baans

— mumfacturisg 385,622 134 MESH s 164 201450
— real s 193,429 102 ME,107 fat ¥kl 0.l 18414
— wholesle and il 138,545 B3 14647 MO0 103 6L
— renvial and busines sendces 180,124 63 115905 147,798 54 7,060
— traniparatio, starage and pasal rervices 161,576 56 B4TIA  47STS 55 M0
— water, enviroment and public oiliy management 148,476 52 TIAlE 127415 50 4,321
— camgtnictian W, 656 ¥ 39412 12512 41 7,040

— praduciicn and nipply of elecric power,
gt and wamer 60,046 .l 15,187 704 21 w009
— public manazament and sacial arpnisatian 19,846 oy 4417 20ES 03 4,0
— vihen 267,344 2 Wesm  BEME LX] k.
Subeaial Lpd6, 174 1 LIBLSW L MRAL 3 9L
Permnal ham 95,606 B2 @531 GAR6LE LT I 1 )
Ciszraunmied hils TEMT 16 — JLM5 37 —
Goass hans snd adbances 02 cushmens WA WD LME2I AMEMD 100 L4SIn
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58 Financial risk management (Cantinued)
{a) Credit risk (Continued)
{ii] Loans and advances to custamers analysed by industry sector: (con tinged)

As at 31 December 20146, :ln:pn.Lmd loans and individual and collective allowance far impalrment losses
in respect of economic sectors which constitute 10% or more of total loans and adwances to customers

are as Follows:
31 Diecember 2016
Individually Callectively
limpalred assessed assessed Impalrment Impalted loan
loans and Imipalrment lmpaltment charged wiitten off
advances allewance dllowance durlng the year duting the yeat
Manufacturing 14,506 18,053 9,063 15,573 (10,979
Whalesale and retail 12,425 B452 5.877 15271 {11,278)
Feal estate 147 11 3,185 15 (45]
31 December 2015
Individually Collectively
Impaired aszessed assessed Impairment  Impaired loan
loans and impairmnent impairment charged written off
advances allowance allowance  during the pear  during the year
Manufacturing 10,338 5.378 BER4 o176 (7.BT1)
Whalesale and retail 12,127 TATS 6,313 14,140 (12,174)
Real estate 249 ] 2,505 {20) —

(i) Loans and advances to custamers analysed by pecgraphical sector:

31 Diecember 2016 31 December 2015
Loans and Leans and
advaices advances
Grass secuted by Grom serured by
balaice H callaperal balance % callateral
Bohai Rim {induding Head Oz} TT1ALS 168 377,851 £30,536 %4 15364
Yangtae River Diea 634,019 prA] 413,445 FiRE16 2149 3300052
Fearl River Delea and Wesz Senic 4TTHR3 1646 376,115 6ESA 157 10843
Westem Erp B LH 13.2 138,126 0226 135 201,973
Ceneral 374.358 130 130,806 EE42 134 25182
Kartheastern TO967 25 4.4 6,340 27 2,345
Ouiside Mainland China 169,393 5.8 64,128 135368 35 457
Tonl LATTAIT log 1,748,221 1,508,740 (L} 1450,118
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58 Financial risk management (Continued)
{a) Credit risk (Continged)
{iv)] Loans and advances to customers analysed by peopraphical sector (continued)
As at 31 Diecember 2016, impaired loans and individual and collective impairment allowance in respect
of geographic sectors which constitute 10% or more of total advances to customers are as follows:

31 December 2016

Indbridually Collectively

Limpalred assessed assessed

loans and lmpaltment lmpalrment

advance allowance allowance

Bohai Rim (including Head Office) 13,321 6,781 14,729
Central 10,312 5,307 7. 7RG
Yangtze River Delta B,00Z 5117 HBL5
Westem 7121 3324 74001
Pearl River Dielta and West Seraic 6,564 3273 8,747

31 December 20015

Individually Caollectivehy

Impaired assessed assessad

loans and impairment impairment

advance allowance allowance

Bohai Rim (including Head Office) B.BG9 3.3 12524
Central 5212 L.E73 7380
Yangtze River Deelta BB38 4,124 9.398
Western 2,668 1,281 5.795
Pearl River Dielta and West Straic 785 3440 B.A61

{v)  Loans and advances to customers analysed by type of security

31 Decemmber 2016 31 December 2015

Unsecursd loans 548,123 402 823
Guarantesd loans 506,536 4930935
Secured loans

— loans secured by collateral 1,417,736 1,169 587

— pledged loans 330,485 280,531
Subrotal 1,802,880 2,436,033
Diiscounted bills 75,047 92,745
Gross loans and advances to customers 2,87 927 2,528,780
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58 Financial risk management (Cantinued)

{a) Credit risk (Continued)
{vi] Rescheduled loans and advances to customers

31 December 2016 31 December 2015
% of wial % of toral
Giross loans and Giross loans and
balance advances balance advances
Rescheduled loans and advances
— rescheduled loans and
advances overdue more
than 3 months 14,6E0 5 1% 7.857 0.531%
— rescheduled loans and
advances overdue less
than 3 months 2,554 D09, 3,548 01.14%
Total 17,234 D03 11,405 0.45%

Rescheduled loans and advances are those loans and advances to customers which have been restractured
or renegotiated because of deterioration in the fnancial peosition of the bormwers, or of the inabilicy of
the bomowers to meet their original repayment schedule and for which the revised repayment terms are a
concession that H:chu.p would not otherwise consider. &5 ai 31 December 2018, with borooeers’ fnancial
difficulty, the concession the Group considered resulted from economic or legal reasons s not significant.

(vif] [ebt instruments analysed by credit meing

The Group adopts a credit rating approach to manage credit sk of its debt instruments portfolic. The
ratings are obtained from major rating agencies where the debt instruments are issued. The carrying amounts
of debt instruments investments analysed by rating as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

31 Drecember 2016
Unruted
[Mote (1)) LLLY Ad A  Bdowd Tokal
Diebt irsenuments usued by
— gmvemmenis 11655 14,050 2 208 1,182 218,097
— policy banks 162917 11 970 — — 1648
— public entities 3 — — — — 3
— banks and neo-bank:
financial insimucions 1,735 118982 13,873 18,506 T8 300,744
— corpones 1513 TL522 0,484 5608 1424 101551
Toeal 399,813 315,275 45,319 AR L5 795003
3] Dlecembeer 2015
Unraced
(Bote (1) AN A4 A Beelow A Tonl
Diebt irstnuments usued by
— grEmmenis 126,538 27025 a4 6,818 137 165,302
— peelicy banks 140,385 — e — - 140,963
— public enifies 4 — — — — 4
— banks and neo-bank:
financial instimcions 11157 118,243 15660 13,040 536 163,134
— CoTpooIes 1,890 A7.682 13557 4,181 1862 109,52
Toal 79,974 232,950 519 24,039 7125 §78.507
Mo
0 Uhoeesssd dabe insrumentyhad by thaCray e bands terosd peianly by ths Chins g paliey benks, bariks wnd man-bank
Frnanctal oo
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58 Financial risk management (Continued)

{a) Credit risk (Contined)
(viii) [mvestments classified as receiva bles analysed by tppe of undedying assets

31 December 31 Diecember
1016 2015

Interbank assets and wealth management
pmdu.:r: fssued 'by other banks 4R, 630 F06,247
Credit assets 310,361 2935378
Rediscounted bills 246,493 423,467
Total 1,037,484 1,113,082

The Group includes Investments classified as recelvables into integrated credit approval and management
system, so that management manages its credit risk exposure in a holistic manner. The type of collateral of
credit assets of Investments classified as recetvables includes guarantee, security by collateral, and pledge.

(b) Market risk

Market rsk refers to rlsks that may cause a loss of on-balance sheet and off balance sheet businesses for the
Group due to the adverse movement of market prices, including interest mates, foreign exchange rates, stock
prices and commodity prices. The Group has established a market risk management system that formulates
procedures to identify, measure, supervise and control market risks. This system aims to limit markes risk to an
acceptable level through examining and approving new products and limit management.

Risk and Internal Control Committes of the Group is responsible for approving market risk management policies,
establishing appropriate organisational structure and information systems to effectively identify, measure, monitor
and control market risks, and ensuring adequate resources to reinforce the market risk management. The Risk
Management Dlepartment is responsible for independ ently managing and controlling market risks of the Group,
inclading developing market risk management policies and authorisation limits, providing independent report
of market rigk to ldentify, measure and monitor the Group's market risk. Business departments are responsible
for the day-to-day management of market risks, including effectively identifring, measuring. controlling market
risk factors associated with the relevant operations, so as to ensure the dynamic balance benween business
development and risk undertaking,

The Group uses sensitivity analysis, foreign exchange exposure and interest rate re-pricing gap analysis as the
primary instruments to monitor marker dsk

Interest rate risk and currency risk are the major market risks that the Group is exposed to.

Interest rate rige

The Group’s interest rate exposures mainly arise from the mismatching of assets and liabilitles® re-pricing dates,
as well as the effect of interest rate volatility on trading positions.

The Group primarily uses pap analysls to assess and monitor its re-pricing risk and adjust the ratio of Acating and
fiwed rate exposures, the loan re-pricing cycle, as well as optimise the term structure of its deposits accordingly.

The Group implements vardous methods, such as duration analysis, sensitivity analysis, stress testing and scenario
simulation, to measure, manage and report the interest e sk on a regular basis.
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58 Financial risk management (Cantinued)
(b} Market risk (Continued)
Taterest mte dsk (Continped)

The following tables summarise the average interest rates, and the next re-pricing dates or contractual maturity
date whichever is earlier for the assets and Habilities as at the end of each reporting date

31 December 2016
Avetape Between
Interest Non Less than three Betwen
mte Intetest thtee months and obe and  Bore thay
(Noe L) Total beatlug mnte  onepear  fiveyears  fve pears
Jemeis
Cash and bdances with central hank 151% 553318 AR 515840 - - -
Diepesity with banks and non-bank
Finmndal instiutions L4 208541 — 206,641 2000 — —
Placements wich and Joans to hanks
nd non-bank financial instirociens L56% 167,208 4 BO460 B5TH — —
Financial amets hel mder resale
ETEEMENTS Lo 170804 — 170,776 8 — —
[ovestmenes clasified as receivables 401% 1035728 I8, 164 352,938 442532 169,148 42,06
Loars and advanoes tn cusmomers
{Bace i 482%  LAL3M M9 LISE361  S0GSER TM.ET3 11513
[rvesrmenns (Nate (iii]) 3% BIRGE 339 156.3%  1sIM 0 MEES 150,558
Dithers 174004 146,06 11,633 6715 — —
Total asets 5931050 136910 2563,045 LS3LTIL 1,192,380 206,014
Liahilitles
Beerowing from cencral banks inw 184,050 — 39,000 145,050 — —
Diepesits fram hanks and nea-bank
finmndal instinutions LBl 981 46 1,841 TTOA2T 208588 —_ 550
Placements fram hanks and noa-bank
finmndal instinutions L1 83,723 —_ 53,43 29,780 —_ —_
Financial ameis smld under repurchane
agneements L41% 120342 —  UTnH 1993 - -
Dlepesiis fram customen LEa% 3630290 14658 1731303 580026 310524 LETY
Diebe securities imued 5% 38E046 — BB, 582 194,164 47,258 56, M2
Oithers 150757 150,309 M5 03 — —
Total llabLlites 5,655 166,848 800,849 1,161,704  357.TER ST
lnnbebest hate gap 38449 TooE2  (1,137.BM)  4TL0IT BH.5TE 146,643
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58 Financial risk management (Continued)
(b} Market risk (Continusd)

Interest rate risk (Continued)
31 Deecember 2015
Berween
Average Mon  Les chan three Berween
interest rae inperest three  months and ane and  Mees than
[Moee ) Toal bearing manths one e Areyeam Five yeams
Assets
Cach ard balances wich cenimal bank L4T% 11,189 14,567 61 - - -
Dleparics with lanks and non-hank
financial insitutinrs 122% 80403 - 0T 6,726 - -
Placements wich and haans to banks
and nen-hark Fnandal instinudans 1M%  LIETTE u 78,17 4n1z0 — i
Financial asseis beld under perale
ipreemeEncs 90% 136,561 —_ 138,520 141 100 —_
[nvesiments dassified as receivahles j20% L1107 3,583 432,100 461,183 143,372 11,569
Leams and advances v cstamers
{Nate (i) 5E% 2468233 a0 1,035,127 990,508 428,157 14,091
[nvestments [Nnt |F.I.I.|'|:| 3E0% Ja0,896 L&Al 107,371 121,567 116221 133,746
Cithers 111,577 109416 43 1717 - -
Totl mses hl22292 129,689 1,362,200 1622052 E27.550 L&, 301
Liabilick=
Barcewing from ceniral hanks 350% 374500 — 13,5m 24,000 = =
Dlepasics from banks and nanbank
Anancial inscitutinns 3E0%  10G6ES544 1£32 535,885 J2E017 LaLn L, 000
Placemenes From banks and pon-bank
financial insinutinns 151% in24E — 7on L1374 5 —
Financial ameis sul under repurchase
AppeemTLs 241N TLI6E — E7,076 102 = -
Depasics from cistomers Ish  L1ERTTS 16263 2037461 ekl M2 &
Diebe eeruricies izmed £55% 28,135 — 2,007 05409 19795 T AM
Oithers 104,236 101,302 b 2,328 — —
Total labilides 4302606 119,097 L8754 L34 404,031 72,4
Lnterest hate gap J1%586 10,692 (#93,274) 29056 423519 &7,8EL

[1H] Aveage drmm i cpraanced the ccle of o dncomedesp s @ wenge oo bercing s tiabiliiee doring das year.

w Fer boara and achanan 1o cumamars, the "Leas than chres mondu” casgary Included swardus {rae af all Far lmg Jorsnid
af AAMBS4, 40 milien s st 31 Decamber 2016 fas s 31 Ducernbar 2014: AMBS0,079 millio).

{01} I inchudad tha fi | wrrwes ut falr valus through prafic or lear, nadlsbla-farade | surwtn wred bald ¥
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58 Financial risk management (Cantinued)
(b} Market risk (Continued)
Taterest mte nsk (continped)

The Group uses sensithriey analysis to measure the potential effect of changes in intersst rates on the Group's
net interest iIncome. The following table sets forth the resulis of the Group’s interest rate sensitivity analysis as
at 31 Diecember 2016 and 31 December 201 5.

31 December 2016 31 December 2015
Orther Other
Met Interest  comprehenshve Met interest comprehenshre
lhoome Income Income Income
+100 basis points (7.845) (1,442) (2.753) (304)
-100 basls points 7845 1,442 2,753 Q06

This sensitivigy analysis Is based on a statkc interest rate risk profile of the Group’s non-derivative assets and
liabilities and certain assumptions as discussed below. The analysis measures only the impact of changes in interest
rates within ome year, showing how annualised interest income would have been affected by repricing of the
Group’s non-dedvative assets and liabilities within the one-year pericd. The analysis is based on the following
assumptions: (i} all assets and liabilities that reprice or mature within the three months bracket, and the after
three months but within cne year bracket are both reprice or mature at the beginning of the respective pericds,
(i) it does not reflect the potential impact of unparallded yield curve movements, and (i) there are no other
changes to the portfolio, all positions will be retained and molled over upon maturity. The analysis does not take
into account the effect of risk management measures taken by management. Due to the assumptions adopred,
actual changes in the Group's net interest Income and other comprehensive income resulting from increases or
decreases in interest rates may differ from the results of this sensithvity anabysis.

Currency dsk

Currency risk arises from the potential change of exchange rates that cause a loss to the on-balance sheetr and
affbalance sheet business of the Group. The Group measures lts currency risk with forelgn currency exposures,
and manages its currency risk by spot and forward foreign exchange transactions and matching its foreign
currency denominated assets with comesponding liabilities in the same currency, as well as wing derivative
Anancial instruments, mainly foreign exchange swaps, to manage fts exposure.
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58 Financial risk management (Continued)

(b} Market risk (Continusd)
Currency rsk (continwed)
The exposures at the reporting date were as follows:

31 Diecember 2016
BMB usD HED Dthers Tatal
(AMB (RMB (RMEB
equbvalent) equivalent) equivalent)

Asseis
Cash and balances with central bank 524,885 17,676 Gl 166 553328
Dieposits wich banks and non-bank.

financial instirutions 158,350 19,861 12451 7979 208,641
Placements with and loans to banks

and noo-bank financial institutions 139,008 17,843 B.352 1,965 167,208
Financial assets held under resale

agreements 170,804 — — — 170,504
[nvestments classified as receivables 1,035,728 — — — 1,035,728
Loans and adhances ta custamers 253,542 169,570 RAGST 14,615 2,802,384
[nvesements 751,958 33,959 15,898 6,238 818053
Others 125,301 41,800 4,163 3550 174,904
Total assets 5.440,576 320,799 135,162 34,513 5.231,050
Liabilities
Enrmdl:g: from central banks 184,050 — — j— 184,050
Dleposits from banks and non-bank

Ffinancial institutions 932435 41,913 B15 65,273 981,446
Placements from banks and noo-bank

financial insticutions 57471 15,688 157 167 B3.723
Financial assets sold under repunchase

agreements 118,515 L8217 — — 120,342
Dleposits from cusbamers 3,904,504 181,508 119,014 34,264 3,639,290
Dlebst securiies issued 369,652 16,817 477 — 386,946
Others 126,796 14,603 3711 5,647 150757
Total Liabilbties 5./093,623 252,366 124,214 46,351 5.546,554
Met on-balance sheet positlon 346,953 38,433 10,948 (11,838) 364,496
Credit commitments 958,513 0,017 13,151 15,059 LA75.750
Derivaives (Note (1)) 31,003 (16,931) 12,341 (16:575) 9838

252 China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited

331/382



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)
oOoOooodn

Chapter 14 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

{Amomrty in millions of Renminbl onles othermwise sated)

58 Financial risk management (Cantinued)

(b} Market risk (Continued)

Courrency dsk ( con tinged)
31 December 2015
EMB usD HED Others Taowl
(RME (RME (RME
equivalent] equivalent) egquivalent)
Assets
Cash and balances wich central bank 405,205 14,178 613 193 511,189
Dieposits with banks ind non-bank
Financial instinations 37835 29,019 0,850 4,080 Ba,E03
Placements with and Joans w banks
und non-bank financial insticutions 79,775 19,751 6,615 1634 118,776
Financial amets beld under resale
igreements 137.210 1,351 = = 138,561
Iovestments classified as receivables 1,109,612 2,595 — — 1,112,207
Loans and advances o customers 2237568 168,536 63,532 B.B40 2468,283
Iovestments 527,396 24 B&3 15,299 13.518 SB0,E0G
Olchers 98924 £,541 3.BE3 iz7 111,577
Total assets 4,714,524 78R3 90,804 25310 5,122,292
Liabilicles
Barrowings from central banks 37,500 — — — 37,500
Dieposits from banks and non-bank
financial institations 1,028,229 34,148 B4T 5.320 1,068, 544
Placements from banks and non-bank
financial instinations 38,814 9,714 — 720 49,248
Financial amets sold under repurchase
ugreements 71168 — — — 71,168
Dieposits from custamers LBM.TIE 192475 99,888 35694 3.1B2,775
Diebt securities issued 273,085 14,350 1,700 — 289,135
Oichers 89,850 6,748 3257 4,381 104,236
Tostal liabilitles 4,393,504 257433 105,692 46,115 4802606
Met on-balunce sheet position 320,960 21,419 {5,888) {16.805) 319,686
Credit commitments o8 408 66,099 10,986 T.B45 1,083,338
Derivatives (Mate (i)) {26,270) E,141 1,257 27.960 11,088
oo
M N v uding undelivered Earsign aschangs spac, Socagn achangs Bineard,

Farsign excharge swsp and cacrency cption
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58 Financial risk management (Continued)
(b} Market risk (Continusd)
Currency rsk (continwed)

The Group uses sensithrity analysis to measure the potentlal effect of changes in foreign currency exchange
rates on the Group’s profit or loss and other comprehensive income. The following table sets forth, as ar 31
Drecember 2016 and 31 December 2015, the results of the Group's forelgn exchange rave sensitheicy analysis.

31 December 2016 31 December 2015
Oreher Oiher
Profit comprehenshve Profit  comprehenshve
before tax oo me before ax income
5% appreciation BiH 15 1.714 90
5% depreciation (B4 (15) {1.714) (90}

This sensitivity analysis is based on a static foreign exchange exposure profile of assets and labilities and certain
assumptions as follows: (i) the foreign exchange sensitivity is the gain and loss recognised as a resule of 500 basis
point fluctuation in the foreign currency exchange rates against RMB at the reporting date, (i) the exchange
rares against RMB for all forelgn currencies change in the same direction simultanecusly and does not take
into account the correlation effect of changes in different foreign currencies, and (i) the foreign exchange
exposures calculated include both spot foreign exchange exposures, foreign exchange derbvarbve instruments,
and; all positions will be retained and molled over upon maturity. The analysis does not take into account the
effect of risk management measures taken by management. Due to the assumprions adopted, actual changes in
the Group’s profit and other comprehenstve income resulting from increases or decreases in foreign exchange
rates may differ from the results of this sensitivity analysis. Precious metal is included in foreign currency for
the purpose of this sensithrity analysis.

ic) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk arises when the Group, in meeting the demand of Habilities due and other payment obligations
as well as the needs of business expansion, is unable to sufficiently, fimely or cost-effectively acquire hands. The
Group’s liquidity risk arises mainly from the mismaich of assets to liabilitles and customers may concentrate
their withd rawals.

The Group has implemented overall liquidity risk management on the entity level. The headquarters has the
responsibility for developing the entire Group’s liquidity dsk policies, strategies, and implements centralised
management of Hquidity risk on the entity level. The domestic and foreign affiliates develop their owm liquidiny
policies and procedures within the Group’s liquidicy stratepy management framework, based on the requirements
of relevant regulatory bodies.

The Group manages liquidity risk by setting various indicators and operational limits according to the overall
position of the Group’s assets and liabilities, with referencing to market condition. The Group halds assets
with high liquidity to meet unexpected and material demand for payments in the ordinary course of business.
The toaols that the Group wses to measure and monitor liquidity sk mainly inclade:

—  Ligquidity gap analysis

—  Ligquidity indicators (including but not limited to regulated and internal managed indicatoms, such as
loan-to-deposit ratio, liquidity ratio, liquidity gap rate, excess reserves rate) monitoring

— Scenaro analysis

—  Stress testing

On this basis, the Group establishes regular reporting mechanisms for liquidity risk to report the latest situation
of liquidity risk to the senior management on a timey basis.
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58 Financial risk management (Cantinued)

ic) Liguidity risk {Continued)
Analysis of the remaining contractual maturity of assets and liabilities
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58 Financial risk management (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk {Continued)
Analysis of the remaining contractual maturity of assets and lia bilities (con tin wed)
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58 Financial risk management (Cantinued)

ic) Liguidity risk {Continued)

Credit Commitments include bank acceptanoe, credit card commitments, Fuaraniess, loan commitment and letters
of credit. The tables bddow summarise the amounts of credit commitments by remaining contractual maturity.

31 December 2016

Less than
1 yeak 1-5 years  Obwet 5 yeats Total
Bank Acceptance 535.313 — — 535313
Credit Card Commitments 115845 — — 215,845
Guarancees BT 34 74,772 L9l 163,157
Loan Commitments 15,172 IT.B35 3529 74,936
Letter of Credit 84,999 1,500 — o499
Total 938,493 1,107 LS50 1075, 750

31 December 2015

Less than
1 year 1-5 pears Oher 5 years Tawl
Bank Acceptance 631,431 — — 631,431
Credit Card Commitments 149,138 —_ — 149,138
Guarancees B1.574 50,887 1106 133,567
Lean Commitments 16618 29,142 51,278 TT03R
Letter of Credit 91,405 759 — 92,164
Total 70165 BO,TRE 31384 1,083,338

[ H] For cush ared bslsnowr with cmeral banks, che urdsoed paried amamne capramoied stooiecy depostt msres furds and focal depeakes mxincdned
with the FBOLC. For placenania with and leans ex banks and neo-bank Anancial lowra and ad a and
tha undaid paricd amaure caprasanecsd tha balurces baing Impaiced or cvecduos For mees chan con monch. Equicy Invecoent wan she mperiad
urder andused padad

uy Tha balsrces af keans and shanas ic comamecs which wers sverdus wiibin ane meadh bax ot inpaind e incoded in cpayabl on demand.

M) lovemene incloded the finnsisl st s furvalos checagh profe ar lom, notlsble-far-ade Anancil s, and hal dte-nundey iotmne.
t the Greaps inemded holing peried.

Far tha \p b 1o oy d1d moe
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58 Financial risk management (Continued)

(d) Operational risk

Oiperational risk refers to the dsk ofloss arsing from inappropriate or problematic internal procedures, personnel,
IT systems, or external events, including legal risk, but excluding strategy risk and reputaticnal dsk

The Group manages cperational risk through a control-based emvirenment by establishing a sound mechanism
of operational sk management in order to identify, assess, monitor, control, mitigate and report operational
risks. The framework covers all business functions mnging foom finance, credit, accounting, settlement, savings,
treasury, intermediary business, computer applications and management, special assets resclution and legal
affairs. Key controls include:

— :lm'b]khLug matrix and centralised authorkzation mechanism, |r.|:||:rpm]:|.l.|:|il'|.n:|n of unauthorised activities;

— thmough consistent legal responsibility framewark, nking strict disciplinary actions against non-compliance
in order to ensure accountabilior

—  promoting operational rsk management culture throughout the crganisation; building a team of operational
sk management professionals. Through formal training and pedformance ap praisal system in raising risk

MARNAFEMEnt AWareness;

—  strenpthening cash and account management in accordance with the relevant policies and procedures,
intensifring the monitorng of suspicious transactions. Ensure our staff are well-equipped with the
necessary knowledge and basic skills on antl money laundering through continuous training,

— backup systems and disaster recowery plans covering all the major actheities, sspecially backoffice operations
in order to minimise any unforeseen intermption. Insurance cover is aranged to mitigate potential losses
assoclated with certain disruptive events.

In addition to the above, the Group improves its operational risk management information systems on an
ongoing basls to efficientdy identify, evaluate, monitor, control and report its level of operational risk. The
Group’s management information system has the functionalities of recording and capruring lost data and events
of operational risk to further support operational fsk control and selfassessment, as well as monitorng of key
risk indicators.

59 Capital Adequacy Ratio
Capital adequacy ratio reflects the Group’s operational and rdsk management capability and it is the core of capital
management. The Group’s capital management objectives are to meet the legal and regulatory requirements, and to
prudently determine the capital adequacy ratio under realistic exposures with reference to the capital adequacy ratio
levels of leading global banks and the Group’s operating sttuations.

The Group considers its strategic development plans, business expansion plans and risk variables in conducting it
scenarlo analysis, stress testings and other measures to forecast, plan and manage capinl adequacy matio.

The Group’s management monitors the Group’s and the Bank’s capital adequacy regulardy based on regulations issaed
by the CBRC. The required information is filed with the CBRC by the Group and the Bank semi-annually and
quarterly, respectively.

From 1 Jamuary 2013, the Group commenced the compuration of its capital adequacy matios in accordance with
“Regulation Govermning Capital of Commercial Banks {(provisional)” and other relevant regulations promulgated by the

CBRC in the year of 2012, The requirements pursuant to these regulations may hawe certain differences comparing to
those applicable in Hong Kong and other jurisdictions.
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59 Capital Adequacy Ratio (Cantimued)

Under the “Regulation Governing Capital of Commercial Banks (provisional)®, the Bank is required to meet the
minimum core Tier-Oine capital adequacy matio, Tierne capital adequacy ratio and capital adequacy ratio of 7.50%,
B.50% amd 10.50%., respectively, by the end of 2018. In additicn, overseas subsidiaries and branches are directly
regulated by the respeciive local banking regulators and the requirements of capital adequacy matios differ by counery.
Dhuring the year, the Group has complied in full with all its externally imposed capital requirements.

The capital adequacy ratios calculated in accordance with “Regulation Goveming Capital of Commercial Banks
(provislonal)™. According to the requirements, for credit risk, the capital requirement was measured using the weighting
method. The market risk was measured by adopting the standardised approach and the operational risk was measured
by using the basic indicator approach.

Relevant requirements promulgated by the CBRC are listed as below.

31 December 20016 31 December 2015

Core Tler-One caplial adequacy ratio B.64% 2.12%
Tler-Dine cl.pl.lnl nd.uqlm:_r ratlo .65% 9.17%:
Capltal adequacy rato 11.98% 11.87%
Components of capital base
Core Tier-Oine capital:

Share capital 48,935 48,935

Ql.l.n]:lﬂ.ud portion of :n.pitnl reserve SE, 630 58,6365

Dther comprehensive (loss)/income (1.142) 3,584

Surplus reserve 27,263 23,362

General resenve 73911 64,3373

Retained sarnings 13, G 118,668

Qualified portion of non-controlling interests L1 75
Total core Tier-Cine capital 344,317 317.813
Caore Tier-Otne capital deductions:

Gooduwill (914) (854

Oither intangible assets other than land use right

{net of reated deferred tax Hability) (B840 (803

Met core Tier-Oine capital 342,563 316,159
Dther Tier-Cne capital (Mote (i) 40, 107 1,B28
Tier-Oine capiral 381,670 S17.987
Tier-Two capital:

Qualified portion of Tier-Two capital instruments issued

and share premium 65,368 69,299

Surplus allowance for loan impairment 2,03 24447

Qualified portion of non-controlling interests 7 7
Met capital base 475,008 411,740
Tatal risk-weighted assets 3. 964,448 3,468,135

Bt

[IH] Aa w31 Dscyrnbar 2016, che Graop's cchar ThriOoe capiesl Inchuded paference shanm lansed. by the Bank (Moo 46] and non-concrelling: inacens
Meca 571,
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60  Fair value
Fair value estimates are generlly subjective in nature, and are made as of a specific point in time based on the

characteristics of the financial instraments and relevant market information. The Group uses the following hierarchy
for determining and disclosing the fair value of Anancial instraments:

Lewel 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or Habilities that the Group can access
ar the measurement date. This level includes listed equity securities and debe instruments on exchanges
and exchange-traded derivarives.

Leve 2 inputs other than quated prices inchuded within Lewel 1 are observable for assets ar liabilities, either directly
or indirectly. A majority of the debt securities classified as level 2 are Renminbi bonds. The fair values
of these bonds are determined based on the evaluation resules provided by China Central Diepository 82
Clearing Corporate Limited. This level also includes a majority of over-the-counter derbvative contracts,
the evaluation method of which includes Forward Pricing Model, Swap Model and Option Pricing Model.
Input parameters are sourced from the Open market such as Bloomberg and Reuters.

Leve % imputs for assets or llabilities are based on unobservable parameters. This level includes equity investments
and debt instraments with one or more than cne significant unobservable parameters. Management
determine the fair value through inguiring from counterparties or using the valuation technigues. The
miodel incorporate unobservable parameters such as discount rate and market price volarilities.

The fair value of the Group's Anancial assets and fnancial liabilities are determined as follows:

— Iferaded im active markets, fairvalues of financial as=t: and financial liabilitie: with standard terms and conditions
are determined with reference to quoted market bid prices and ask prices, respectively;

— 1f not traded in active markets, fir values of financial assets and Anancial liakilities are determined in accordance
with genenlly accepred pricing models or discounted cash Aow analysis using prices from observable current
market transactions for similar instruments. If there were no available observable current market transactions
prices for similar instruments, quoted prices from counterparty is used for the valuation, and management
performs analysis on these prices. Discounted cash flow analysis using the applicable yield curve for the duration
of the instruments is used for dervatives other than options, and option pricing models are used for option
derhvarives.

The Group has established an independent valuation process for financial assets and financial liabilities. The Financial
Market Diepartment, the Financial Institution Department, and the [mvestment Bank Department are responsible for the
fair valuation of financial assets and fimancial liabilities. The Risk Management Department performs an independent
review of the valuation methodologies, inputs, assumptions and valuation results. The Operations Department records
the accounting for these items according to the result generated from the valuation process and accounting policies.
The Finance and Accounting Dlepartment prepares the disclosure of the financial assets and financial Habilities, based
on the independently reviewed valuation.

The Group’s valuation policies and procedures for different types of financial instruments are approved by the Risk
Management Committee. Any change to the valuation policies, or the related procedures, must be reported to the Risk
Management Committee for approval before they are implemented.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, there was no significant change in the valuation techniques or inputs used to
determine fair value measurements.
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60 Fair value (Continued)

{a) Financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value

Financial assets and liabilities not carded at fair value of the Group include Cash and balances with central
banks, Dreposits with banks and mon-bank financial institutions, Placements with and leans to banks and non-
bank financial institutions, Financial assets held under resale AEreEments, Loans and advances to customers,

Held-to-maturity investments, Imvestments classified as receivables, Bomowings from centmal banks, Deposits
fram banks and mon-bank financial insticurions, Placements from banks and mon-bank financial imstiturions,
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements, Dieposits from customers and Diebt securities issued.

Except for the items shown in the tables below, the maturigy dates of aforesald financial assets and labilities are
within a year or are mainly floating Interest rates, as a result, their carying amounts are appoximately squal

to their fair value.
Catrylng values Falr values
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 Diecember
2016 2015 2016 2015
Flnanclal assets:
Held-to-maturity investments 217498 179,930 219,014 185,152
Investments classified as receivables 1,035.728 1112207 1,0, 3B0 1,124,181
Ananclal Babilities
Diebt securities issued
— certificates of deposic issued 9,493 B.705 9443 B.706
— debit securities issued 31,288 31,295 31,683 32,381
— subordinared bonds lsswed 6,242 779 78,920 83,181
— certificates of interbank deposit lissuesd 269,923 171356 268,664 171,501

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities abowve at fair value hierarchy is as follows:

31 December 2016

Lewvel 1 Level 2 Lewvel 3 Total
Hnanclal assets:
Held-to-maturity investments 61 218,053 — 219,014
Investments classified as recehvables — 264, 700 T75,LE0 1,040, 380
Financilal Habilities
Drebt securities issued
— certificates of dq:u:uil:
{mot for trading purpose) issued — @443 — o443
— debt securities ismed — 31,683 — 31,683
— subordinated bonds issued B, 124 T, T J— TE,920
— certificates of interbank deposic issusd — 268, 664 — 268,664
31 December 2015
Level 1 Lewvel 2 Level 3 Total
Hnanclal assetss
Held-to-maturity investments 833 184,319 — 185,152
Investments classified as recetvables — 450,7E1 73,400 1,124,181
Ananclal Babilities
Dhebt securities issued
— certificates of deposic
{mot for trading purpose) lssued — B.706 — B.706
— debt securities Issued — 32,381 — 32,381
— subordinated bonds lssued 7515 75,566 — 83,181
— certificates of interbank deposit issued — 171,501 — 171,501
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60 Fair value (Continned)

(b} Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair valoe

Lewel 1 Level 2 Level 3
(Mote (1)) (Note () (Note (11)) Total
As at 31 December 2016
Recurring fair value measurements
Assets
Financial assets at fair value H:mmgh
profit or loss
Held for trading Anancial assets
— debit securities 2,947 6,683 — 9,630
— imvestment funds — — 1 1
— certificates of interbank ﬂ.:pm!t J— 50,699 J— 50,699
Financial assets designed at fair value
through profic or loss
— debt securities —_ 4,581 —_ 4,581
Dlerivative financlal assets
— interest rare derivatives — 3363 z 3365
— currency derdvarives — 43,233 — 43,333
— precious metals derivarives — 1,769 — 1,769
Available-for-sale financial assets
— debit securities 42,080 354,452 13 396,545
— investment funds s 0,279 a3 0,737
— certificates of deposit 15 116,025 —_ 116,050
— wealth management produces — 22 — 22
— equity investments THE — — THE
Total financial assets measured at falr valoe 6,195 300, 105 a9 546,399
Liabilities
Dierivative financial liabilities
— interest rate derbvatives - 2,811 z I.B13
— currency dervatives — 40,045 — 40,045
— precious metals derivatives J— 2,201 — 2,201
Total financial liabilitles measared
at falr valae — 45,057 z 45,059
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60 Fair value (Continued)

{b) Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value (Continued)

Level 1 Level 2 Lewel 3
(Mote (1)) (Mote () (Mo (i) Total
As at 31 December 2015
Recurring fair value measurements
Assers
Financlal assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Held for trading financial assets
— debt securities 479 8,057 — 8,536
— investment funds — — 1 1
— certificares of interbank d.q:!ndr — 15226 — 15,226
Financlal assets designed at fair value
through profit or loss
— debit securities —_ 2457 — 2457
Dlerivative financial assets
— interest rate derivatives _ 1.2BE ] 1291
— curru.qrd:rh'lrhml 17 11,472 — 11,483
— precious metals dedvatives — 1,008 — 1,008
Available-for-sale financial assets
— debt securities 40,313 257,120 11 297 444
— Investment funds — a52 70 422
— certificates of deposit 671 74,643 — 75,314
— wealth management products — 10 — 10
— equity investments 424 — 22 446
Total financlal assets measured at falr value 41,904 371,633 Lilrd 413,644
Liabilieles
Dlerbvarive financial Habilities
— interest mate derivatives — Qo2 3 995
— cumrency derhvathves 1 10,118 — 10,119
— precious metals derbvatives — A0 — A0
Toal finandal llabllitles measatred
at falr value 1 11414 3 11418
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60 Fair value (Continned)

(b} Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair valoe (Continued)

Hare
w Druaring the cumene year, thars wars no dgatficsre tranfs smengst Lovel 1, Loval 2 and Lavel 3 =F cha fale valus hisracchy.

w Tha Sellevwing esble thews 3 recarciliviien From the baginning bulances o the ending balances fee Rir valas mesremmes in the Lessl 3 falr
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Finacidd.
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deslghed ot
e vk
Trading  thisagh  Dietteatiee Deitrattre
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[ lee ety Spalablefurmbe fooncl asets lakilties
lrament Dbt lnreies rire Dbt lovestinenr Equiry [erest 12
fnds  scuitks  detbabs eorkle fnds  lnsteinenrs Toual  detbrathves Ted
Mt | Jrmnary T016 1 - 3 1 n n 1y ] i
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ay ke e Arilablefarak fundil sen Tnkiftia
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61 Related parties

{a) Relationship of related parties

i The Group is controlled by CITHC Corporation Limited (incorporated in Hong Kong), which owns
5.37% of the Bank’s shares. The ultimate parent of the Group is CITIC Group (inco rporated in China).

(i)  Related parties of the Group include subsidiaries, joint vemtures and associates of CITIC Corporation
Limited and CITIC Group. The Bank entered inte banking transactions with its subsidiaries at arm’s
length in the ordinary course of business. These transactions are eiminated on consolidation.

Orn 23 January 201%, Banco Bilbao Wizcaya Argentaria 5.4, ("BEVA™) disposed of the Bank's share and
as a result, the shareholding ratio by BEWA in the Bank declined from 9.6% to less than 5% thereafter.
BEVA ceased to be related party of the Group from 22 January 2016 in accordance with the regulations
of China Securities Regulatory Commission (SCSRCT).

As at 31 December 2015, the Bank Issued 2,147,469.539 shares to China National Tobacoo Corporation
("CHNTC™) through private placement. After the private placement, CHTC holds 4.39% shares of the
Bank A non-executive director delegated by CHNTC was appointed on 17 March 2016, and was approved
by the CBRC on 24 June 2016, CHTC is thersafter regarded as the Group'’s related party as it has
slgnificant influence upon the Bank.

Diuring the year ended 31 Diecember 2016, Xinhu Zhongbae Co., Lid. acquired 2,320,177,000 shares
of the Bank from a third party, which represents 4.74% shares of the Bank. A non-executive director
delegated by Xinhu Zhonghbao Co., Lid. was appointed on 17 March 2016, and was approved by the
CBRC on 16 November 2016. Xinhu Zhonghao Co., Lid. is thereafter regarded as the Group’s related
party, as it has significant influence upon the Bank.

ib) Related party transactions

Dhuring the relevant years, the Group entered into transactions with related parties in the ordinary course of its
banking businesses including lending, assets transfer (i.e. issuance of asset-backed securities in the form of private
placement), wealth management, investment, deposit, settlement and clearing. off-balance sheet transactions,
and purchase, sale and leases of property. These banking transactions were conducted under normal commencial
terms and conditions and priced at the relevant market rates prevailing at the time of each transaction.

In addition, transactions during the relevant year and the comesponding balances cutstanding at the reporting
dates are as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2016

Ultinate patent
compaty equlty Othet major and
holders affillates Mote (1) Assodlates
Profit and loss
Intersst income T 13 —
Fee and commission income
and other operating income 1,204 — —
Interest expense (588) (333) —
Net trading gain/(loss) G4 (5) (17]
Oither service fees [F R Y] — —
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61 Related parties Continued)

i(b) Related party ransactions |Continned)
Year ended A1 Diecember 2015

Ultimate parent
company and

affiliates BEVA Assoclates
Profit and loss
Interest income LR — —
Fee and commission income
and other operating income 154 — —
Interest expense (549) — —
Met trading gain B ARF &
Oither service fees (673) — —
31 December 20016
Ultimate patent
company and Other majot equity
affillates holders Moteil) Assoclates
Asnets
Gross loans and advances to customers 19430 5,490 —
Less: collectively assessed allowance
for impairment losses [ 18Z) (64 —
Loans and advances to customers (net) 19,254 5,426 —
Interest recebvables 170 5 —
Dleposits with banks and non-bank
financial institutions 1 —_ —_
Placements with and loans to banks
and non-bank fAnancial institutions 603 — —
Drerivative financial assets 2B — 19
Investmants (%) — 1,111
Oiher assets 10,743 — —
Liabilities
Diepasits from banks and non-bank
financial instituticons 17038 159 —_
Dierivative financial liabilities ko] — 23
]:Pcpaih.': from customers T4011 22715 a4
Interest payable 128 35 —
Oither liabilivies 2l — —
Off_balance sheet Items
Guarantees and letcers of credic 257 — —
Acceptances 36 — —
Entrusted funds B,1B1 — —
Funds raised from inwvestors of
non-principle guaranteed wealth
management products 1,586 —_ —_
Guarantees received T.7ET 290 —
Mominal amount of derbrathees 1l — —
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61 Related parties (Continaed)

i(b) Related party transactions (Continued)
31 December 2015

Ultimate parent
company and
affiliates BEVA Assoclares
Assers
Gross loans and adwance:s to customers 14,793 1,004 —
Less: collectively assessed allowance
for impairment losses (151} — —
Loans and advances to customers {net) 14,542 1,004 —
Interest peceivables 59 — —
Placements with and loans to banks
and non-bank financial institutions 22 — —
Drerivative financial assets 61 100 —
Investments 408 — a7
Other assets 9,271 QERE —
Liabilieles
Dreposits from banks and non-bank
financial instimations 21,887 — —
Drertvarive financial labilities 11 112 —
Dleposits from customers 40,555 — 2
Interest payable 110 — —
Other liabilices 118 — —
Off-balance sheet ltems
Guarantess and letters of cred it 948 255 —
Acceptances a0 — —
Entrusted funds 1,000 — —
Funds raised from imvestoms of
non-principle puaranteed wealth
management products 432 — —
Guarantess recebred B574 — —
Mominal amount of derbratives 2,780 39.75% —
Moo
0 Otbar ajee squiry beldan inchida BEVA, CNITC end Xinks Zhenghes Co., Ltd The dixclomsd tag 4 thoss a

babicar whan they war considared o rilased partie of the Group daring the rbevane pericdr. The trnssceians snd balances sbor Inchded
afl tha wFilaren of BEVA wnd Xinbu Thenghss Ce., Ltd., and divace mbaidiaran of CNTC. The trnmctars wich C3TC Indisct mbaidiadan
and jeint venturer ava described o Hate 61 fal.
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61 Related parties Continued)

i) Key management personnel and their close family members and related companies

Key management personnel are those persons who have the authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of the Group, directly or indirectly, including divectors, supervisors and executive officers.

The Group entered into banking transactions with key management personnel and their close family members
and those companies controlled or jointly controlled by them in the normal couse of business. Other than those
disclosed below, there was no materlal transactions and balances between the Group and these individuals, their
close family members or those companies controlled or jointy contralled by them.

The aggregate amount of redevant loans outstanding as at 31 December 2016 to directors, supervisors and
executive officers amounted to RMBE 27 million l::u at 31 Diecember 2015: RMB11.63 mIJHDn:I.

The compensation paid or payable to key management for employee services is shown below:

Year ended Year ended

31 Diecember 2016 31 December 2015

RMB 000 BM B 000

Salaries and other emoluments 11,475 13,669
DHiscretio nary bonuses B 12D 17 042
Retirement schemes contributions 1,981 2,729
11,576 33440

id) Supplementary defined contribution plan

The Group has established a supplementary defined contribution plan for its qualified employees which is
administered by CITIC Group (Mote 39 (b))

{e) Transactions with state-owned entities in the PRC

The Group operates in an economic regime currenty predominated by entities directly or indirectly owned by the
PRC government through its government authorities, agencies, affiliations and other organisations (collectively
referred to as “state-owned entities”).

Transactions with state-owmed entities, including CHMTC's indirect subsidiaries and joint ventures, include but
are not limited to the following:

—  lending and deposit taking;

—  taking and placing of inter-bank balances;

— derivative transactions;

—  entrusted lending and other custedy services;

—  lmmmocr and srcasdiies szrocy, sod et xienacdiag oo

—  sle, purchase, underwriting and redemprion of bonds issued by state-ocwned entities;
—  purchase, sale and leases of property and other assets; and

—  rendering and recebring of utilitles and other services.

These transactions are conducted in the ordinary course of the Group’s banking business on terms similar to
those that would have been entered into with non-state-owned entities. The Group has also established s pricing
strategy and approval processes for major preducts and services, such as loans, deposits and commission income.
The pricing strategy and approval processes do not depend on whether the customens are state-cwned entities
or not. The Directors are of opinion that none of these transactions are materal related party transactions that
require separate disclosure.
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62  Structured entities

{2) Unconseclidated structured entities held by the Group

The Group imwests in unconsolidated structured entities which are sponsored and managed by other entities
for investment return, and records trading gains or losses and interest income thersfrom. These unconso lidaved
structured entities primarily include wealth management products, trust investment plans, imvestment management
products, investment funds and asset-backed securities.

The following table sets out an analysis of the carrying amounts of interests held by the Group asat 31 December
2016 in the structured entities sponsored by third party instioutions, as well as an analysis of the line items in
the consolidated statement of financlal position under which relevant assets are recognised:

31 December 2016

Carrylng amount
Held-to- Awallable for  Investment
matutity sale financlal  classified as Maodimum
Irrestimetiis assets recelvables Total loss exposure
Wealth management products
lssued by banks —_ 12 458,390 458,412 458,412
Investment management
products managed by non-
bank financial instltutions — — 452,966 452,000 452,966
Trast imvestment plans — — 126,128 126,128 126,128
Asset-backed securities 1,527 9,747 —_ 11,274 11,274
Investment funds — 0,737 — 20,737 20,737
Totl 1,527 30,506 1,037,484 L63.517 1,069,517

31 December 2015

Carrying amount
Held-to-  Awailable for  Imvestment
maturity  sale financial  classified as Maximum
imvestments assets receivables Total lass exposure
Wealth management products
lssued by banks — 10 147,605 147,615 147,615
Investment management
products managed by non-
bank financial instimurions — — 825,016 B25,016 "B25,016
Trast imvestment plans — — 139,871 138,871 139,971
Asset-backed securities 5306 5152 —_ 10,458 10458
Investment Rands — 422 — 422 423
Toal 5.306 5.584 1,112,592 1,123,482 1.123.482

The mazximum exposures to risk in the above wealth management products, trust investment plans, imvestment
management products, investment funds and asset-backed securities managed by securities companies and trust
imvestment funds are the carrying value of the assets held by the Group at the reporting date. The maximum
exposures to sk in the asset-backed securitles are the amortised cost or fair value of the assets held by the Group
at the reportng date in accordance with the line items under which these assets are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position. Analysis of investments classified as recebvables by type of undedying assets is
set out in Mote 58 (a)(viii).
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62 Stmctured entities (Contined)

(b Unconsolidated stroctured entities sponsored and managed by the Group

Unconsalidated structured entities sponsored and managed by the Group mainly include non-principal guaranteed
wealth management products. The wealth management products invest in a range of primarily fived-rate assets,
most typically money market instruments, debt securities and loan assets. As the manager of these wealth
management products, the Group invests, on behalf of s customers, in assets as described in the imvestment
plan related to each weealth management product and receives fee and commission income

As ar 31 December 2016, the total assets invested by these outstanding non-principal guaranteed wealth
manag ement pmdu.d:l ill1.|.ﬂi|:|}l’ 'ﬂul:'rmp amounted to RMBO56. 504 million I:al Diecember 2015 RMBa59,118
millicm).

Dhuring the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group’s interest in these weal th management products included
fee and commisslon income of RMB7.032 million (2{! 15: RMBS, 808 mﬂlhn:l; interest income of RMB1,813
million {2015: RMB390 million) and interest expense of RMB1,013 million (201 % RMB228 million). As at
31 December 2016, the carrying amounts of the Group’s fee and commission recetvables and interest recelvables
being recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position was RMEBE249 million (31 December 201 %
RMB3E7T mlﬂinn}l.

As at 31 December 2016, the placements from the Group with these wealth management products sponsored by
the Group amounted to RMBG2,000 million (31 December 2015 RME25,266 million), while the placements
from these wealth management produces to the Group amounted to RMB20,000 million (31 December 201 %
HMil). During the year ended 31 December 2016, the amount of maximum exposure of the placements from
the Group with these wealth management products sponsored by the Group was RMB37.401 million (201%
BEME35,675 million), and the amount of maximum exposure of the placements from these wealth management
products to the Group was RMB20,000 million (2015: BMB7.561 million). These transactions were conducted
under normal business t=rms and conditions.

As ar 31 December 2016, assets of these wealth management products amounting to RMB 205,416 million (as
at 31 December 201% BMB72.549 million) were invested in investments in which certain subsidiarles and
associates of the CITIC Group acted as trustees.

() Principal guarantesd wealth management products s]:lonsnrcd and managcd 1:-}" the Group
Principal guarantesd wealth management products sponsored and managed by the Group represent produces
to which the Group has guaranteed the investor's principal imvestment, regardless of their actual performance.
Investments made by these products and the corresponding liabilities to the imeestors of these products are
presented in the respective financial assets and financial liabilities ivems in accordance with the Group’s accounting
pelicies based on the nature of the assets and liabilities.
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Transfers of financial assets

Far the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group entered into transactions which involred transfers of financial assets
including securitisation transactions, transfers of loans including non-performing loans, and financial assets sold under
repurchase agreements.

These transactions were entered into in the normal course of business by which recognised financial assets were transferred
to third parties or structured entities. Transfers of assets may ghve rise to Rall or partial de-recognition of the financial
assets concemned. Chn the other hand, where transferred assets do not qualify for de-recognition as the Group has
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of these assets, the Group continues to recognise the transferred assets.

Deetails of the financial assets sold under repurchase agreements are set forth in Mote 37. Detalls of securitisation
and loan transfer transactions conduceed bjr the Gj:m.l.p for the ye=ar ended 31 Dlecember 2016 totalled EMB119,128
million are set forth below.

Securitisation transactions

Diuring the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group entered into securitisation transactions backed by financial assets
transferred with book value before impairment of BMB49,155 million (31 December 2015 RMEB41.333 million), of
which BEMB44.558 million I:El December 201 5: EMB38.925 mIJHDu}I wene qu.n]lﬂ:d For full dn-rﬂ:-ag.u.il‘lan..mh]mu
of BMB4.499 million (31 December 2015 RMB2,408 millicn) was in respect of non-performing loans transferred
and the Group concluded that it had continuing imvolvement in these assets as at 31 December 2016 based on the
related criveria set forth in Mote 4 (c) and Move 5 (iv). As at 31 December 2016, the Group continuwed to recognise
assets of RMB&90 million (31 December 2015 RMB286 million) under loans and advances to customers together
with assets and liabilities of the same amount under other assets and other liabilities, respectively, arising from such
contiming imvalvement (Mate 23 ().

Loan transfers

Dhuring the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group also through other types of transactions transferred loans of book
value befo re impairment of RMB&3,971 million (2015: EMB42.972 million), of which RMB54,025 millicn rep resented
non-performing loans (2015: RMB39,506 million). The Group carried out assessment based on the criteria as detailed
in Mote 4 (c) and Hote 5 (v} and concluded that these transferred assets qualified for full de-recognition (Note 23 ().

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial Habilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consclidated statement of
financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability simultanecusly.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group did not enter into enforceable master netting armangements with counterparties
and therefore there were no offsettings of any assets and Habilities in the consclidated statement of financlal position.
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65 Statements of financial position and changes in equity of the Bank

Statement of financial position
31 Decednber 2016 31 December 2015

Assets
Cash and balances with central banks 550,987 309831
Dq:!ndl: with banks and non-bank francial institutons 187,080 54 R0
Precious metals 3372 1,191
Placemenis with and loans to banks and

non-bank Anancial institutions 162,708 QB276
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 63,590 25349
Drerivative financlal assets 43,546 10,384
Financial assets held under resale agreements 170, B 137.210
I nterest recetvables 32,081 20 849
Loans and advances o customers 1,592,552 2,504 874
Avmilable-for-sale financial assets 479,591 328094
Held-to-maturity investments 217,498 179950
Investments classified as receivables 1,030, 059 1,109 807
Investments in subsidiaries 22249 22,249
Pmpc:ty, p]n.ur and squipment 17,166 15,448
Intangjble assets 838 &01
Dreferred tax assets 12,589 T8930
Orther assets 5LT03 37352
Total asets F.639,413 4 884205
Liabilities
E-arm'wlngl from ceniral banks 184, 00 A7 400
Dreposits from banks and non-bank financial institutions 981,326 1,069 530
Macements from banks and non-bank financial institutions S0,042 32,399
Drerivative fnancial liabilities 41,478 8439
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements 120, 342 T1,110
Dreposits from customers 3,429,060 2,994 826
MAcerusd staff coses BD62 TJE10
Taxes payahle 6,050 4504
Interest payable Fib, 447 A7 422
Provislons 244 2
Drebt securities issued 369,829 275,262
Orther Habilities 43,831 35.863
Total Uabilitdes 5,270,711 457 2857
Equity
Share capital 48,935 48935
Preference shares 34,955 —
Capital reserve 61,359 61,339
Dither :.Dmp.mh:m}r: ﬂ.cu:hrLu.mmz (L7371 4,790
Surplus reserve 27,263 23,362
Genenl reserve 73370 64,350
Retained earnings 124,557 108842
Total equlty F68, 70T 3114538
Total Uabilides and squit F.639,413 4 884205
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65 Statements of financial position and changes in equity of the Bank (Continned)

Statement of changes in equity
Ohet
Skiv  Pobteixr  Cipbl ok Supls Gaenl Lol Teal
apind shain ueve  lnooine/(kadl lestre Feebre aliligs equliy

Moz ] [amnary 2014 18435 - 3 Lm B M3 108,41 P
iy Profie For che pear - — - - - — M nn
I ——— _ _ e _ — s
Tl camperhiensive incoo - - — (1525 - - Wi ]
i Procted From invnsce of prefereoce dam - M - - - - - HEm
[l Piafi appeopristion
— Mppapii s s e R
— Appropristies: 11 genend ee - - - - - LIk (o2 -
— Dhividend disribution iv eyuiy
bokders: of che huak — — — — — — [103H) {10374
o 51 Deemher 2014 18235 HEH 133 (L7 I8 T 5T a0
Oither
Share Capital - comprebensive Surphus Gemenl Remined Tl
s & | [annary 2015 4,797 1809 4] 13,34 jnaio E7 L3 2h72
[} Prafit for the year — - - — - WL Iner2
[ii] Chiber camprebensive income - - 4355 - - - 4355
Tatal camprebenine income — - 435 - - MR 4,07
[iii] Proceed: from chares imuance 1,144 5740 — - - - 11,58
[0 Prafit approprativas
— Appraprativns o nurphs pesere = - - 1 ME - {3363 -
— .ﬁ:pg.mpnmm.: 5] pu] resene — — = - 14,000 I:I'i.ﬁl]] =
As a1 Decenber 2015 48,55 61,559 q7m 21,341 4350 L 442 111,638
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66 Benefits and interests of directors and supervisors

{a) Directors and supervisors’ emoluments
The remuneration of the Bank’s director and superdisor is set out below:

Pnrﬁeymrcnddal December 20016:

Eduwents pal of revetrable in iespect of petvkes as diecist sf mpetmborof the Bk
Encinans
pakd ol
teceivabile
I espect f
dieeciel ol
ety
wthet setvices bn
Bioplors’s  connectisn with

Dbedoraty  Alowuposs and  oreibeene  of the aFalis of

Ruie Fess Sty boonss  betelimlubind  beheli shemme the Bank Toid

RNEIn Moo RHED0 INEm B0 R Em IMEH0
Brecive ditmcints
Li Qnzpiog (Noke (3 - - - - - - -
Sua Dedon. - TEY ] 13 1% - LHD
Fois-esscuiive dibeciols
Ching Fhenaring (N ] - - - - - - -
T Xiackemng (Bexe ] - - - - - - -
Huucg Faog - - - — — — -
Was Liming - - - - - - -
Indepeident hsi-exemive

dlisciats
Wo Xiarqie n - - - - - n
Weog Luen Chencg docker n - - - - - ]
B G 150 - - - - - 150
[Chen [t 150 - - - - - I
(an Jux - - - - - - -
Sapeteisots
[an Coogiang - o0 5] m 1 - 1835
i Ty - - - - - - -
Wanp Xinhasg n - - - - - 1
Jis Xungen n - - - - - 1
Therg Wi n - - - - - 1
Checg Pusteng - Ha M pil] 15 - 1338
Wex Brping - L ] i 1 - 15
W Fliinging - L 5] L k] — 154
Formei Direciots and Sapetvbots
irslgned 1o 2015

Thurg Xiswwe [N (1) - - - - - - -
Li Theig [Foez il 158 - - - - - 10
Yon iing [Borz () b - - - - - F ]
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66 Benefits and interests of directors and supervisors (Cantinued)

(a) Directors and supervisors’ emoluments (Continued)
Pu:'ﬂ::}rﬂ:cu.dud 31 December 2015
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Chapter 14 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

{Amommts in milicns of Renminhi pmless otharmise stated)

66 Benefits and interests of directors and supervisors (Costimued)

{a) Directors and supervisors’ emoluments (Continued)

ny M. L Qangping, Mr. Chang Thenning and Mr. Thu Xlaokoang d1d not recdve any smelomenn from. the Geoop far the ywacs anded 31
Ducarber 2016 and 2015, Thair smclonsni were paid and beers by CITIC Liniied and CITIC Group, o nocnadiey pacene company ad
tha ul ly purent company, e by, of tha Graup which wam not disclomd In the bl sheve A parchan of thalr smolumm reosked.
from the pasmt companier wars In regect of thelr sarvicen 3 the Group.

i Mr. Thang Misawel mulgned in Angust, BLE.
]l Mr. i Theping sd M. Founming relgred in une, 2016.

iy Mr. Dau [lanchong, Mr. Geonzala Jank Tanss Vi, Mr. [ Gang and Mr. Dy Yo caigoed 1n May, 2015,

I Me. Cuyang CHan redgned in Oceabar, 2015,

i} Mr. Theng Xasxos reaigred in Augae, 2015,

(b} Other benefits and interests

Mo direct or indirect retirement benefits and termination benefits were paid to divectors as at 31 December
2016 (2015 Nil).

As ar 31 December 2016 and 31 December 20135, the respective balance of loans and advances from the Goup
to Directors, Supervisors or certain controlled body corporates and connected entities of the Directons or
Supervisors were not significant.

Mo significant transactions, amrangements and contracts in relation to the Group’s business to which the Bank
was a party and in which a director of the Bank had a material intensst, whether directly or indivectly, subsisved
at the end of the year or ar any time during the year 2016 (2015: Mil).

67 Events after the reporting period

(i On 5 January 2017, the Bank received the approval from CBRC for the Bank to prepare for the establishment
ef a direct bank (Mete 34 (c)(il)), CITIC Baixin Bank Corporation Limited (“Baizin Bank™). Balzin Bank will
be engaged in direct banking business as a separate legal entity with limited licence. The Bank and Pujian Baidu
Bo Rui Metcom Science and Technology Co., Lid subscribed, as promoters, 1,400,000,000 ordinary shares and
B0, D0, DD mdLu.m]r shares, mpectl\df, which represents 70 and 30% of the subscribed :n.pil:nl of Balxin
Bank. The Bank has fully paid for the consideration as at the date of this report. Baixin Bank will not engage
in financial services during the preparation period.

(#)  ©On 22 March 2017, the Board of Directors proposed a cash dividend and submited it to the crdinary shareholders
at the Annual General Meeting for approval (Mote 51).

276  China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
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2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
13.77 17.31 19.78 20.37 18.52
12.07 13.89 16.39 18.55 15.06
12.65 15.80 17.23 19.35 16.35
13.69 16.74 19.47 18.56 16.78
100
2016 2016 2016 2016 10 2016 11 2016 12
16.03 15.45 15.54 15.50 16.38 17.00
15.07 15.06 15.06 15.35 15.26 16.45
15.58 15.24 15.26 15.42 15.81 16.75
100
16.20 2017 14

100
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the shareholders of China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of Chinawith Limited Liability)

Opinion
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited (the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 160 to 276, which comprise:

the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016;

the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year then ended,;

the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give atrue and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2016, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year

then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“1FRSS”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure regquirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (*HKSAS”) issued by the Hong Kong
Ingtitute of Certified Public Accountants (*HKICPA™). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor's Responsihilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as awhole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

Key audit mattersidentified in our audit are summarised as follows:

Impairment of loans and advances to customers and investments classified as receivables
Consolidation of structured entities ~ Non-principal guaranteed wealth management products
De-recognition of financial assets
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Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matter

Impairment of loans and advances to customers and investments classified as receivables

Loans and advances to customers Loans and advances to customers

Refer to Note 4(c), Note 5 and Note 23 to the consolidated
financial statements.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s loans and advances |We evaluated and tested the design and operating

to customers amounted to RMB 2,877.9 billion, and the effectiveness of the relevant controls over the impairment
corresponding allowance for impairment losseswas RMB | assessments and impairment allowance computations for
75.5 billion. loans and advances to customers, including review and
approval of results of credit reviews on impaired loans, the
Allowance for impairment |osses represented management’ | periodic revaluations of collateral, the estimation of future

s best estimates of losses incurred within loans and cash flows for impaired |oans, and the collective impairment
advances to customers as at the balance sheet date. The computations (including the selection and changes of
allowance was computed individually or on acollective models, data inputs and key assumptions and changes

basis, where appropriate. thereof used in the computations).

We performed independent credit reviews of selected

Corporate |oans were initially assessed for impairment samples, considering the credit profiles of the related
individually by management. If objective evidence of borrowers, guarantors and the collateral, as well as externa
impairment was identified, management regularly assesses evidence and factors, to ascertain whether management’s
the amount and timing of the expected future cash flows ~ |identification of impaired loans was appropriate.

from the loans to cal cul ate the allowance for impairment
losses, which was the difference between the carrying

amount of the loans and the present value of their expected |&Sample basis, datainputs to the discounted cash flow
future cash flows. models, including the cash flow status of the borrowers and

guarantors, latest collateral valuations, applicable haircut
rates and disposal plans, in supporting the estimation of
future cash flows and present value.

For impaired loans identified individually, we examined, on
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Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matter

Non-impaired corporate loans and all personal |oans were
included in homogeneous groups with similar credit risk
characteristics for performance of impairment assessments
on acollective basis. Models were used for this purpose,
considering the similarity of credit risks and applying key
assumptions such as, historical loss experience, loss
identification period for incurred but unidentified
impairment losses, macro-economic factors, and special
considerations for high risk products and geographical
locations in the calculation methodology. M anagement
assessed these key assumptions on a periodic basis, and
made adjustments where deemed appropriate.

Investments classified as receivables

Refer to Note 4(c), Note 5 and Note 26 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Asat 31 December 2016, the Group’s investments
classified as receivables (“Investments’) amounted to RMB
1,037.5 hillion, and the corresponding allowance for
impairment losseswas RMB 1.8 billion.

For those |oans and advances to customers which were
assessed by management on a collective basis for
impairment losses, we conducted independent testing on the
appropriateness of the design and logic of the models
employed by management. We tested the migration model
for corporate loans and the roll rate models for personal
loans, respectively, including completeness of the source
data, appropriateness of the key assumptions, and
mathematical accuracy of the calculations.

We discussed with management and scrutinized the
appropriateness of those key assumptions applied in
management’ s impairment assessment, and compared them
with available external evidence where necessary. We aso
applied sensitivities to underlying key assumptions.

Investments classified as receivables

L oans and advances to customers and Investments relating
to the same borrower were included in the Group’s
integrated credit approval and management system so that
management managed its credit risk exposure in a holistic
manner.

For Investments with credit-type underlying assets, the
testing of relevant controls over impairment identification
and assessments of these Investments was covered through
our testing of internal controls over loans and advances to
customers mentioned above.

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matter
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Management focused on and assessed the Investments with
credit-type underlying assets individually for impairment.
Underlying assets not identified asimpaired from the
individual assessments were included in homogenous
groups with similar credit risk characteristics, considering
risk factors relating to different industries and different
types of underlying assets, and were assessed for
impairment on a collective basis.

I dentification and assessment of impairment of loans and
advances to customers and Investments involved complex
and significant judgments by management, and, as such, we
focused on this area as a key audit matter.

For Investments with credit-type underlying assets where the
underlying assets related to borrowers who also had
outstanding balances of loans and advances with the Group,
we applied a consistent approach, to selection of samples
and conducting credit reviews. For borrowers with no
outstanding balances of loans and advances to customers
with the Group, we separately selected samples and
performed procedures on them to ascertain whether there
was objective evidence of impairment for the underlying
assets.

For Investments with credit-type underlying assets, that
were not identified asimpaired from individual assessments,
we evaluated the appropriateness of the Investments
alowance for impairment losses based on the credit risk
characteristics of the underlying assets, and by reference to
the level of the Group’s collective impairment allowance for
its corporate |oans and advances to customers with similar
credit risk characteristics.

Based on the procedures performed above, in the context of
the inherent uncertainties associated with impairment
assessments, the assessment approaches, methodol ogies and
key assumptions adopted by management were considered
acceptable.
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Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matter

Consolidation of Structured Entities  Non-principal Guaranteed Weath Management Products

Refer to Note 4(a), Note 5 and Note 62 to the consolidated
financial statements.

As at 31 December 2016, unconsolidated structured entities |\ye evaluated and tested the design and operating

included non-principal guaranteed wealth management effectiveness of management's relevant controls over the
products (“WMPs") issued and managed by the Group. consolidation of structured entities for non-principal
guaranteed WMPs. These controls primarily included the
Management's decision on whether or not to consolidate | review and approval of the contractual terms, the resultsin
structured entities was based on an assessment of the Group | yariaple return calculations, and the consolidation

'S power, its variable returns and the ability to exercise its | asgeasment conclusions for these structured entities.
power to influence the variable returns from these
structured entities. We selected samples of structured entities for non-principal

guaranteed WM Ps and performed the following tests:
We focused on the consolidation assessment and judgment

made by management involving the structures entities for assessed the Group's contractual rights and obligations
non-principal guaranteed WMPs during our audit as in light of the transaction structures, and evaluated the
whether or not to consolidate these entities involved Group's power over the structured entities;

significant judgment. performed independent analysis and tests on the variable

returns from the structured entities, including but not
limited to commission income and asset management
fees earned, retention of residual income, and, if any,
liquidity and other support provided to the structured
entities;

assessed whether the Group acted as aprincipal or an
agent through analysis of the scope of the Group’s
decision-making authority, its remuneration entitlement,
other interests the Group held, and the rights held by
other parties.

Based on the procedures performed above, we found
management’ s judgment relating to the consideration of
structured entities for non-principal guaranteed WMPs
acceptable.

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matter

De-recognition of Financial Assets
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Refer to Note 4(c), Note 5 and Note 63 to the consolidated
financial statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group
entered into transactions which involved transfers of
financial assets including those through securitisation and
loan transfers.

Management analysed the Group’s contractual rights and
obligations in connection with such transfers, and assessed
the extent to which the associated risks and rewards of
ownership were transferred by using models to determine
whether the de-recognition criteriawere met. Where
necessary, the Group assessed whether it had relinquished
its control over the transferred financial assets to determine
whether the de-recognition criteria were met.

The de-recognition assessment relating to the transfer of
financial assetsinvolved significant judgment from
management, and as such, we focused our audit on the de-
recognition of these financial assets.

We evaluated and tested the design and operating
effectiveness of the relevant controls over transfers of
financial assets, including the review and approval of the
structure designs and contractual terms of the transactions,
the approval of models for testing the transfer of risks and
rewards of ownership and the key parameters and
assumptions used in the models, aswell asthe review and
approval of management’ s assessment results.

We selected samples and read through transaction
agreements to assess the contractual rights and obligations of
the Group, and whether the Group transferred the rights to
receive contractual cash flows from the financial assets or
the transfer qualified for the “ pass through” of those cash
flows, to independent third parties.

We also assessed the appropriateness of the models, the
parameters and assumptions, the discount rates, and the
variability factors. We also tested the mathematical
accuracy of the calculations.

For financial assets where the Group neither retained nor
transferred substantialy all of the risks and rewards
associated with their ownership, we analysed whether the
Group had relinquished its controls over these financial
assets, and if the Group had a continuing involvement in
these transferred financial assets.

Based on the procedures performed above, we found
management’ s assessment over de-recognition of transferred
financial assets acceptable.
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Other Information

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all
of the information included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’'s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility isto read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give atrue and fair view in accordance with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for ng the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic aternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the consolidated financial statementsas a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as abody, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance isa high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HK SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAS, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. |f
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financia statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’'s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.
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Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficienciesin internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these mattersin our auditor's report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Ho Shuk Ching,
Margarita.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 22 March 2017
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Shareholders of China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of Chinawith Limited Liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China CITIC Bank Corporation
Limited (the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries set out on pages 134 to 276,

which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2015,

the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that give atrue and fair view in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility isto express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on
our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonabl e assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give atrue and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
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the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonabl eness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give atrue and fair view of the financial
position of the Bank and its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015, and of their financia
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 23 March 2016

376/382



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)
oOoOooodn

134 276
( ) 2015 12 31

2015 12 31

2016 23
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IFRS

HKSA

HKSA

(Ho Shuk
Ching, Margarita)
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